Public Document Pack

CITY
LONDON

Local Government Pensions Board

Date: MONDAY, 12 JANUARY 2026
Time: 1.45 pm
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM - 2ND FLOOR WEST WING, GUILDHALL

Members: Peter Lisley (Chairman), Scheme Member Representative
Mark Wheatley (Deputy Chairman), Scheme Manager Representative
Christina McLellan, Scheme Member Representative
David Pearson, Scheme Member Representative
Paul Wilkinson, Scheme Manager Representative

Enquiries:  Molly Carvill
Molly.Carvill@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Accessing the virtual public meeting
Members of the public can observe all virtual public meetings of the City of London
Corporation by following the below link:
https://www.youtube.com/@ CityofL ondonCorporation/streams

A recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the end
of the public meeting for up to one civic year. Please note: Online meeting recordings
do not constitute the formal minutes of the meeting; minutes are written and are
available on the City of London Corporation’s website. Recordings may be edited, at
the discretion of the proper officer, to remove any inappropriate material.

Whilst we endeavour to livestream all of our public meetings, this is not always
possible due to technical difficulties. In these instances, if possible, a recording will
be uploaded following the end of the meeting.

lan Thomas CBE
Town Clerk and Chief Executive



https://www.youtube.com/%40CityofLondonCorporation/streams

AGENDA

Part 1 - Public Agenda

APOLOGIES

MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

MINUTES

a) To agree the public minutes and non-public summary of the Local Government
Pensions Board meeting on 21 July 2025 (Pages 7 - 14)

b) To note the public minutes and non-public summary of the Pensions
Committee meeting on 7 July 2025 and 22 September 2025 (Pages 15 - 26)

ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE BOARD'S TERMS OF REFERENCE
Report of the Town Clerk.

For Decision
(Pages 27 - 30)

PENSIONS COMMITTEE UPDATE REPORT (PUBLIC)
Report of the Chamberlain.

For Information
(Pages 31 - 34)

PENSION SCHEME - ADMINISTRATOR'S UPDATE
Report of the Chamberlain.

Note: Appendices B, C and E are non-public and can be found under Agenda ltem
24,

For Information
(Pages 35 - 44)

RISK REGISTER FOR THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE
Report of the Chamberlain.

For Information
(Pages 45 - 80)



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME - TRANSFERS-OUT OF THE
SCHEME: PROCESSES AND PRECAUTIONS
Report of the Chamberlain.

For Information
(Pages 81 - 86)

CITY FUND AND PENSION FUND - STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS, AUDIT
FINDINGS AND EXTERNAL AUDITORS ANNUAL REPORT 2024/25
Report of the Chamberlain.

For Information
(Pages 87 - 154)

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME 'FAIR ACCESS' CONSULTATION
Report of the Chamberlain.

For Information
(Pages 155 - 158)

LGPS COMMUNICATIONS ISSUED TO SCHEME MEMBERS
Report of the Chamberlain.

For Information
(Pages 159 - 174)

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

MOTION - That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items that

relate to business under the remit of the Court of Common Council acting in line with
requirements of the Public Services Pensions Act 2013 relating to pensions scheme
governance, to which Part VA and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972
public access to meetings provisions to not apply.

For Decision



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda
MINUTES

a) To agree the non-public minutes of the Local Government Pensions Board
meeting on 21 July 2025 (Pages 175 - 178)

b) To note the non-public minutes of the Pensions Committee meeting on 7 July
2025 and 22 September 2025 (Pages 179 - 192)

PENSIONS COMMITTEE UPDATE REPORT (NON-PUBLIC)
Report of the Chamberlain.

For Information
(Pages 193 - 232)

DRAFT FUNDING STRATEGY STATEMENT (FSS)
Report of the Chamberlain.

For Information
(Pages 233 - 290)

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE MONITORING TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2025
Report of the Chamberlain.

For Information
(Pages 291 - 314)

INVESTMENT STRATEGY REVIEW AND TRAINING
Report of the Chamberlain.

For Information
(Pages 315 - 350)

TRANSITION OF ASSETS TO THE LONDON CIV
Report of the Chamberlain.

For Information
(Pages 351 - 378)

LONDON COLLECTIVE INVESTMENT VEHICLE (LCIV) UPDATE
Report of the Chamberlain.

For Information
(Pages 379 - 392)

ADMITTANCE TO THE LONDON CIV - REQUEST FOR DELEGATED AUTHORITY
Report of the Chamberlain.

For Information
(Pages 393 - 400)



23.

24.

25.

26.

PENSION FUND CASHFLOW FORECAST 2025/26 TO 2028/29
Report of the Chamberlain.

For Information
(Pages 401 - 406)

PENSION SCHEME - ADMINISTRATOR'S UPDATE NON-PUBLIC APPENDIX
Report of the Chamberlain.
(Non-public appendices to be read in conjunction with Agenda Item 6).

For Information
(Pages 407 - 414)

NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
BOARD

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND
WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3a

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSIONS BOARD

Monday, 21 July 2025

Minutes of the meeting of the Local Government Pensions Board held at the
Guildhall EC2 at 1.45 pm

Present
Members:

Peter Lisley Paul Wilkinson
Christina McLellan

Officers:

Kate Limna - Chamberlain's Department

Graham Newman - Chamberlain's Department

Amanda Luk - Trainee Accountant - Chamberlain's Department
Raquel Pinto - Town Clerk's Department

Sarah Port - Chamberlain's Department

With Paul Wilkinson in the Chair until item 4.

1. APOLOGIES
Apologies were received from David Pearson and Mark Wheatley.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA
There were no declarations of interests.

3. ORDER OF THE COURT
The Board received an Order of the Court of Common Council dated 25 April
2025 appointing the Committee and agreeing its terms of reference for the
ensuing year.

4. ELECTION OF CHAIR
The Board proceeded to elect a Chair in accordance with Standing Order No.
28.

RESOLVED - that Peter Lisley, being the only Board Member expressing their
willingness to serve, was duly elected Chairman for the ensuing year.

5. ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIR
The Board proceeded to elect a Deputy Chair in accordance with Standing
Order No. 29.

Page 7



RESOLVED - that Mark Wheatley, being the only Member expressing their
willingness to serve, was duly elected Deputy Chairman for the ensuing year.

MINUTES
RESOLVED -
e That the public minutes of the meeting on 19 January 2024 be approved
as an accurate record of the meeting.
e That the public minutes of the Pensions Committee meeting on 19
March 2024 be received.

PENSIONS COMMITTEE UPDATE REPORT (PUBLIC)

The Board received a report of the Chamberlain which summarised the reports
and decisions made by the Pensions Committee on the public agenda at their
meetings on 13 February and 7 July 2025.

RESOLVED - that the report was received, and its content noted.

PENSIONS SCHEME - ADMINISTRATOR'S UPDATE

The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain concerning a summary of
general information around a range of topics in relation to the administration of
the Scheme since the last Local Government Pensions Board meeting on the
17 January 2025.

During the discussion the following points were noted:

e Emails would be sent to pensioners this week to promote the new portal.
Those without email would receive letters. The portal link was included in
the correspondence but not yet on the pension website or in the
newsletter.

¢ On the Pension Dashboard, onboarding began tomorrow with the first
meeting with the integrated service provider.

¢ Members noted that the processing time for refunds/payments had been
extended from 5 to 10 days to align with other KPIs, as agreed by the
Pensions Committee.

e Members noted a slight KPI decline due to the workload from the
McCloud remedy and a staff resource nevertheless all outputs remained
within expected timelines.

RESOLVED - that the report was received, and its content noted.

RISK REGISTER FOR THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE
The Board received a report of the Chamberlain concerning the Risk Register
for the Pensions Committee.

Members noted that the McCloud Remedy remained a top-rated risk. This was
due to the operational complexity rather than the financial impact. Officers
explained that this was a shared risk with the Police Pensions Board due to a
joint administration team.

Members also noted that the McCloud remedy had created a temporary
administrative burden, especially for the police pension scheme. However, for

Page 8



10.

11.

12.

the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), most work would be
completed with this year's annual benefit statements, and it was expected that
the workload to return to normal thereafter.

Officers explained that the Cybersecurity risk rating has been increased at the
Pension Committee’s request, and that a new risk entry on scams and fraud
had been added following a code of practice review by Barnett Waddingham.

RESOLVED - that the report was received, and its content noted.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS UPDATE FOR CITY FUND, PENSION FUND,
AND CITY'S ESTATE

The Board received a report of the Chamberlain with an update on the
production of the 2024-25 Statement of Accounts and planning for the 2024-25
audit of the City Fund, Pension Fund, and City’s Estate accounts.

The 2024/25 audit for the City Fund, Pension Fund, and City’s Estate was
underway. City Fund accounts were published on 30 May, and the Pension
Fund audit had started, with sign-off expected in September.

Officers explained that currently, the Pension Fund accounts must be signed off
alongside City Fund accounts (as per regulations). This has caused delays due
to auditor shortages. From 2026/27, audits would be separated—allowing the
Pension Fund to be signed off independently, as is already the case in Scotland
and Wales.

RESOLVED - that the report was received, and its content noted.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME - ADMINISTRATION
STRATEGY

The Board received a report of the Chamberlain on the City of London’s Local
Government Pension Scheme Administration Strategy, following an initial report
taken to the Pensions Committee on the 3 December 2024. This report
presents Members with draft documents/policies to be reviewed.

RESOLVED - that the report was received, and its content noted.

CITY OF LONDON PENSION FUND TRAINING POLICY

The Board received a report of the Chamberlain following a previous report on
Barnett Waddingham’s General Code of Practice Compliance Review which
checked the City of London Pension Fund’'s compliance with the Pension
Regulators General Code of Practice. This report followed up on the
recommendation made at a previous Pensions Committee to draft a Training
Policy for Members of the City of London Pension Fund.

The training policy had been updated following Barnett Waddingham’s
compliance review of the General Code of Practice. Members would receive a
self-assessment questionnaire to help identify future training needs, with
responses expected within a couple of weeks of this meeting.

Page 9



13.

14.

15.

Members noted that the new regulations now required the Pensions Committee
members to complete The Pensions Regulator (TPR) training, aligning them
with Board requirements.

This change addressed a potential turnover in committee membership post-
election and aimed to bring the Committee more in line the Board.

RESOLVED - that the report was received, and its content noted.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME — COMMUNICATION POLICY
The Board received a report of the Chamberlain following a report on Barnett
Waddingham’s General Code of Practice Compliance Review which checked
the City of London Pension Fund’s compliance with the Pension Regulators
General Code of Practice. This report followed up on the recommendation
made at that Committee to update the Communications Policy for the City of
London Pension Fund.

During the discussion the following points were noted:

e The policy was updated following actuarial recommendations to clarify
that annual benefit statements from Additional Voluntary Contribution
(AVC) providers were issued by those providers, not the Pensions
Office.

e No other changes were made to the communication strategy (e.g.
website or newsletters).

e Members discussed improving the clarity and accessibility of information
on the pensions website, particularly around the Pensions Board’s role
and terms of reference. While these were published and up to date,
Officers welcomed feedback to improve their clarity and visibility.

e Members agreed to review the website and portal and share suggestions
to enhance transparency and user understanding.

RESOLVED - that the report was received, and its content noted.

CITY OF LONDON PENSION FUND BREACHES OF LAW POLICY

The Board received a report of the Chamberlain on the City of London Pension
Fund Breaches of Law Policy, particularly following up on the recommendation
made to formally review the ‘Reporting Breaches of Law’ policy.

In response to a question on advice to members on how to act should they feel
there was a breach, Members were reminded that if they observe a potential
breach, they should first raise it with the Chamberlain or the Comptroller.
Members also noted that not all breaches were reportable to TPR, but a breach
log was maintained. An example was shared involving a minor delay in issuing
police annual benefit statements, which was reported to TPR without further
action.

RESOLVED - that the report was received, and its content noted.

ACCESS AND FAIRNESS CONSULTATION

Page 10



16.

17.

The Board received a report of the Chamberlain which reported on a
consultation from the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Levelling Up
(MHCLG) on the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) - ‘Local
Government Pension Scheme in England and Wales: Access and fairness’.

Officers explained that the questions were technical and aimed at employers,
S0 no response was planned from the administering authority.

In response to a query about gender pensions gap data, officers explained that
while not currently held in a reportable format, the team believes the necessary
data can be extracted if required.

RESOLVED - that the report was received, and its content noted.

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE - FIT FOR THE FUTURE CONSULTATION

The Board received a report of the Chamberlain containing the Government’s
response following the ‘Local Government Pension Scheme (England and
Wales): Fit for the Future Consultation’.

During the discussion the following points were noted:

e All pension fund assets must be transferred to the relevant pool (e.g.
London CIV) by 31 March 2026. Currently, 70% of assets were already
pooled, but some remain outside due to fee advantages or due to being
owned across multiple Corporation funds.

« The Pension Committees would only set high-level asset allocations and
would no longer choose fund managers or specify investment strategies
(e.g. active vs passive, UK vs global equities).

« Funds now have to consider local investment, defined as within the
pool’s geographic area (i.e. London).

o Pools were reluctant to manage legacy assets (e.g. private equity) due
to staffing constraints.

« Governance concerns were raised, including limited influence over
London CIV and potential conflicts of interest if investment advice must
come from the pool.

e There was no clear government guidance provided on climate strategy.
The London CIV may offer multiple climate strategy options to
accommodate varying targets, although this was not yet confirmed.

e In response to a question on the governance of the London CIV,
Members noted that each authority was a shareholder in London CIV,
typically represented by the Pensions Committee Chair.

e In response to a question on whether fiduciary duty remained, the Board
noted that fiduciary responsibility remained with the Pensions
Committee, including ensuring adequate funding and overseeing
actuarial valuations.

RESOLVED - that the report was received, and its content noted.

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD
There were no questions.

Page 11



18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
There was no other business.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED - That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part |
of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

MINUTES
RESOLVED -
e That the non-public minutes of the meeting on 19 January 2024 be
approved as an accurate record of the meeting.
e That the non-public minutes of the Pensions Committee meeting on 19
March 2024 be received.

PENSIONS COMMITTEE UPDATE REPORT (NON- PUBLIC)

The Board received a report of the Chamberlain which summarised the reports
and decisions made by the Pensions Committee on the non-public agenda at
their meetings on 13 February and 7 July 2025.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE MONITORING TO 31 MARCH 2025
The Board received a report of the Chamberlain relating to the Investment
Performance of the Pension Fund.

LONDON COLLECTIVE INVESTMENT VEHICLE (LCIV) UPDATE
The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain providing an update on
London CIV.

TRANSITION OF ASSETS TO THE LONDON CIV
The Board received a report of the Chamberlain which looked at the transfer of
the remaining un-pooled assets to the London CIV.

NON-PUBLIC APPENDICES - ADMINISTRATORS UPDATE
Members noted the non-public appendices relating to item 8.

NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF
THE BOARD
There were no non-public questions.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There was no other business.

CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES

RESOLVED - That the confidential minutes of the Local Government Pensions
Board meeting on 17 January 2025 be approved as an accurate record.

Page 12



The meeting closed at 2.59 pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: Ben Dunleavy
ben.dunleavy@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Agenda Item 3b

PENSIONS COMMITTEE
Monday, 7 July 2025

Minutes of the meeting of the Pensions Committee held at Committee Room - 2nd
Floor West Wing, Guildhall on Monday, 7 July 2025 at 2.00 pm

Present

Members:
Deputy Timothy Butcher (Chairman)
Deputy Christopher Boden
Clare James
Tim McNally
Alderman Simon Pryke

Officers:
Kate Limna - Chamberlain's Department
Amanda Luk - Chamberlain's Department
Graham Newman - Chamberlain's Department
Sarah Port - Chamberlain's Department
Ben Dunleavy - Town Clerk’s Department

Also in attendance:
Tony English - Mercer

1. APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Deputy David Sales.
Alderman and Sheriff Gregory Jones KC observed the meeting virtually.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA
There were no declarations.

3. ORDER OF THE COURT
The Committee received the Order of the Court of Common Council dated 25
April 2025.

4. ELECTION OF CHAIR
The Committee proceeded to elect a Chairman in accordance with Standing
Order No. 28.

Deputy Timothy Butcher, as the only Member expressing their willingness to
serve, was duly elected as Chairman for the ensuing year and took the Chair.

RESOLVED: That Deputy Timothy Butcher be elected as Chairman of the
Pensions Committee for the ensuing year.

Page 15



ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIR
The Committee proceeded to elect a Deputy Chairman in accordance with
Standing Order No. 29.

David Sales, as the only Member expressing their willingness to serve, was duly
elected as Deputy Chairman for the ensuing year.

RESOLVED: That David Sales be elected as Deputy Chairman of the Pensions
Committee for the ensuing year.

MINUTES

6.1 To receive the public note and non-public summary of the inquorate
Pensions Committee meeting on 13 February 2025

The Town Clerk informed the Committee that, as the meeting held on 13
February 2025 had been inquorate and had proceeded informally, the notes were
submitted for information purposes.

Members received the note of the informal meeting.

6.2 To note the draft public minutes and non-public summary of the
Local Government Pensions Board meeting on 17 January 2025

Members received the draft public minutes and non-public summary of the Local
Government Pension Board meeting held on 17 January 2025.

WORK PROGRAMME
The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain concerning the Work
Programme.

RESOLVED: That the report be received and its contents noted.

PENSIONS SCHEME - ADMINISTRATOR'S UPDATE
The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain providing an update on the
administration of the City of London Local Government Pension Scheme.

A Member asked if there was another score for common and conditional data for
the year. In reply, Officers advised that they had not been required to do an
annual return but could bring a score back to the next Committee meeting.

RESOLVED: That the report be received and its contents noted.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS UPDATE FOR CITY FUND, PENSION FUND,
AND CITY'S ESTATE

The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain providing an update on the
Pension Fund accounts.

RESOLVED: That the report be received and its contents noted.

Page 16



10.

11.

12.

13.

CITY OF LONDON PENSION FUND BREACHES OF LAW POLICY
The Committee considered a report of the Chamberlain concerning the City of
London Pension Fund Breaches of Law Policy.

The Chamberlain reminded Members that, when presenting the Breaches of Law
Register to the Committee in December 2024, they had also been advised that
the associated policy would be brought back for approval. The policy had been
updated to follow the Pensions Regulator’s General Code of Practice.

Members noted that the updated policy applies to both the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) and the Police Pension Scheme.

RESOLVED: That Members approve the Reporting breaches of the Law policy.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME - COMMUNICATION POLICY
The Committee considered a report of the Chamberlain concerning the City of
London Pension Fund’s Communications Policy.

RESOLVED: That Members approve the City of London Pension Fund
Communications Policy.

ACCESS AND FAIRNESS CONSULTATION

The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain concerning the Ministry for
Housing, Communities and Levelling Up’s consultation of the Local Government
Pension Scheme.

Members noted that Officers were reviewing the consultation and considering
whether to submit a response. The representative from Mercer said he could
confirm whether Mercer would be responding outside of the meeting.

RESOLVED: That the report be received and its contents noted.

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE - FIT FOR THE FUTURE CONSULTATION
The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain concerning the
Government’s response to the “Fit for the Future” consultation.

The Pension Scheme Bill was progressing through Parliament, with a further
consultation on detailed regulations expected in the Autumn.

Members requested further information on the impact of the Bill on the work of
the Committee, if passed, and on the accountability mechanisms between the
funds and the asset pool operator London CIV (LCIV). In reply, Officers said that
the Committee would retain its administrative and accountability function. The
draft Bill lacked some detail and Officers expected that the detail would be in the
draft regulations and guidance which was expected in the Autumn, with the final
regulations not anticipated to be released until 2026. The accountability
mechanism had not really been addressed in the consultation or the response.
LCIV would report to the Committee and Officers expected that LCIV would be
asked to attend several of the Committee’s meetings. The Chairman noted the
importance of holding LCIV to account and expressed his concern that LCIV
would be acting as ‘poacher and gamekeeper'.

Page 17



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

The Chairman requested that Officers produce a table with an implementation -
plan for the Committee’s next meeting.

In reply to a question from the Chairman on Mercer’s involvement with the LCIV,
the representative from Mercer said that they were an independent service which
the City Corporation voluntarily contracted with.

Following a query from a Member, the Chamberlain confirmed that it was not
possible for Pension Funds to change the Pool that they were invested in.

RESOLVED: That the report be received and its contents noted.

DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY OR URGENCY
POWERS

The Town Clerk shared the report of action taken under Delegation of authority
or urgency powers. As the last meeting was inquorate, several of the decision
items were subsequently approved under urgency by the Town Clerk, in
consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman.

RESOLVED: That the report be received and its contents noted.

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE
There were no questions.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT
There was no other business.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED: That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined
in Part | of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

MINUTES

18.1 Toreceive the non-public note of the inquorate Pensions Committee
meeting on 13 February 2025

Members received the draft non-public minutes of the Pensions Committee held

on 13 February 2025.

18.2 To note the draft non-public minutes of the Local Government
Pensions Board meeting on 17 January 2025

Members received the draft non-public minutes of the Local Government Pension
Board meeting held on 17 January 2025.

ADMITTED BODY STATUS - REQUEST FOR DELEGATED AUTHORITY
(CITY ACADEMIES TRUST)

Members considered a report of the Chamberlain concerning the City Academies
Trust.

Page 18



20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

PERFORMANCE MONITORING
20.1 Pension Fund Quarterly Monitoring Report Q1 2025

Members received a report of Mercer providing an update on the Pension Fund
Quarterly Monitoring report for Q1 2025.

20.2 Investment Performance Monitoring to 31 March 2025

The Committee considered a report of the Chamberlain regarding the Investment
Performance Monitoring of the Pension fund as of 31 March 2025.

LONDON COLLECTIVE INVESTMENT VEHICLE (LCIV) UPDATE

Members considered a report of the Chamberlain providing an update on London
CIV (LCIV), the asset pool operator for London LGPS Funds and in which the
Pension Fund is invested in.

TRANSITION OF ASSETS TO THE LONDON CIV
Members considered a report of the Chamberlain concerning the transfer of un-
pooled assets.

LCIV: INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT - REQUEST FOR
DELEGATED AUTHORITY

The Committee considered a report of the Chamberlain concerning the
Investment Management Agreement (IMA).

NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF
THE COMMITTEE
There were no non-public questions.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT AND
THAT THE COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

The Chamberlain provided further information regarding the Pension Regulator
training.

DRAFT CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES - LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSIONS
BOARD

The Committee received the confidential minutes of the Local Government
Pensions Board meeting on 17 January 2025.

The meeting ended at 3.26 pm

Chairman

Page 19



Contact Officer: Ben Dunleavy
ben.dunleavy@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 20



PENSIONS COMMITTEE
Monday, 22 September 2025

Minutes of the meeting of the Pensions Committee held at Committee Room - 2nd

Floor West Wing, Guildhall on Monday, 22 September 2025 at 2.00 pm

Present

Members:

Deputy Timothy Butcher (Chairman)
David Sales (Deputy Chair)

Deputy Christopher Boden

Clare James

Alderman Simon Pryke

Officers:

Kate Limna - Chamberlain's Department
Graham Newman - Chamberlain's Department
Amanda Luk - Chamberlain's Department
Sarah Port - Chamberlain's Department
Ben Dunleavy - Town Clerk's Department

In attendance:

Steve Turner - Mercer
Gregory Hall - Mercer
1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Tim McNally. Alderman and Sheriff Gregory
Jones KC observed the meeting virtually.

MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA
There were no declarations of interest.

MINUTES
The Chairman congratulated Peter Lisley and Mark Wheatley on their election
as Chair and Deputy Chair of the Local Government Pensions Board.

3.1 To agree the public minutes and non-public summary of the
Pensions Committee meeting on 7 July 2025
RESOLVED - That,
e the public minutes and non-public summary of the Pensions Committee
meeting held on 7 July 2025 were approved as an accurate record.

Page 21



3.2 To note the public minutes and non-public summary of the Local
Government Pensions Board meeting on 21 July 2025
RESOLVED - That,
e the public minutes and non-public summary of the Local Government
Pensions Board meeting held on 21 July 2025 were received.

WORK PROGRAMME
The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain concerning a forward-
looking Pensions Committee work programme.

RESOLVED - That Members,
e received the report and noted its content.

RISK REGISTER
The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain concerning the Risk
Register for the Pensions Committee.

The Chairman suggested that the risk score for CHB Pensions 001 (Insufficient
Assets — Pension Fund) which had a current risk score of 8, was too high and
asked if Officers could review the scoring.

Members agreed that the score should be reviewed and were content to
approve the Risk Register, subject to review.

RESOLVED - That Members,
e reviewed the existing risks and actions present on the Pensions
Committee’s Risk Register,
e agreed that Officers review the risk score for CHB Pensions 001
(Insufficient Assets — Pension Fund).

PENSION SCHEME - ADMINISTRATOR’S UPDATE

The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain concerning the standing
update on pension administration activities.

Members were informed that the Pensions Regulator is expected to formally
request the 2025 scheme return in October, which will include data scores.

A Member noted the lack of response from Aptia regarding the Guaranteed
Minimum Pension (GMP) update that was requested previously and offered
their assistance. Officers provided assurance that contact with Aptia had
resumed but welcomed the offer of assistance. They also highlighted the
complexity and importance of the dashboard project and requested that the
Committee have more visibility on the following:

e The matching criteria used for dashboard data
e The status of the Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA)

¢ How final salary and CARE benefits are displayed, whether separately or
blended and
e The implications for member benefit statements.

Page 22



Officers replied to say that the matching criteria were being developed with an
initial strict approach, which could potentially be relaxed during testing. A DPIA
was being drafted and would be brought to the next meeting, and more detalil
on the dashboard display would be provided once the system was live.

RESOLVED - That Members,
e received the report and noted its content.

PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION - GUIDANCE ON TRANSFERS OUT
The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain regarding the City of
London Pension Fund Transfers-out guidance document.

The Chamberlain presented the formal document outlining procedures and
precautions for transfers out of the scheme. The document was developed in
response to Barnett Waddingham’s recommendations from the compliance
review with the Pensions Regulator’'s General Code of Practice.

A Member asked who makes the decision to proceed when red or amber flags
are raised during a transfer-out process. At the request of a Member, Officers
confirmed that the Chamberlain and Corporate Treasurer were responsible for
making the initial decision to proceed with a transfer-out if red or amber flags
were raised. This decision could be escalated if this was deemed necessary.
Officers undertook to return with an expanded section 3.2, clarifying the
escalation process, to the next meeting.

RESOLVED - That Members,
e agreed to the recommendation of expanding section 3.2,
e received the report and noted its content.

CITY FUND AND PENSION FUND STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS UPDATE
2024/25

The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain concerning an update on
the publication and audit of the 2024/25 Draft Statement of Accounts for the
City Fund and Pension Fund.

A Member gueried the increase in net assets on the City Fund balance sheet
which appeared to be due to a reduction in the pension liabilities.

The Corporate Treasurer explained that the reduction was due to the
standardised Government IAS19 accounting treatment, not the actuarial
valuation which was not reflected in the accounts.

RESOLVED - That Members,
e received the report and noted its content.

CITY FUND AND PENSION FUND - STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS, AUDIT
FINDINGS AND EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT 2024/25

The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain concerning an update on
the publication and audit of the 2024/25 Draft Statement of Accounts for the
City Fund and Pension Fund.

Page 23



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Members were advised that the External Auditors had been complimentary
about the Pension Fund audit and that only a few recommendations had been
made, including for an internal audit to be conducted as there hadn’t been one
for some time. It was noted that this would be addressed over the next 12
months.

The Chairman commended Officers for producing a complex document under
tight timelines.

RESOLVED - That Members,
e considered the Audit Findings Report for the Pension Fund 2024-25 as
set out in Appendix 10.

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
COMMITTEE
There were no questions.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT
There were no items of urgent business.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED - That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part |
of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

Members considered the non-public minutes of the Pensions Committee
meeting on the 7 July 2025 and received the Non-Public Minutes of the Local
Government Pensions Board Meeting on 21 July 2025.

13.1 To agree the non-public minutes of the Pensions Committee
meeting held on 7 July 2025
RESOLVED - That,
e the non-public minutes of the Pensions Committee meeting on the 7 July
2025 were approved as an accurate record.

13.2 To Note the Non-Public Minutes of the Local Government Pensions
Board Meeting on 21 July 2025
RESOLVED - That Members,
e received and noted the Non-Public Minutes of the Local Government
Pensions Board Meeting on 21 July 2025.

CITY FUND AND CITY'S ESTATE AUDITOR PROCUREMENT PROCESS

The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain detailing the City Fund
and City’s Estate auditor procurement process

Page 24



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

DRAFT PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT
The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain concerning the Pension
Fund’s Draft Annual report for the year ended 31 March 2025.

PERFORMANCE MONITORING
The Committee received a joint report of the Chamberlain and a representative
from Mercer.

LONDON COLLECTIVE INVESTMENT VEHICLE (LCIV) UPDATE

The committee received a report of the Chamberlain who provided several
updates regarding the London CIV (LCIV), the asset pool operator for London
LGPS Funds and in which the Pension Fund is invested in.

INVESTMENT STRATEGY REVIEW AND TRANSFERRING OF ASSETS TO
LCIV

The committee received a report of the Chamberlain, providing an update on
the ongoing investment strategy review and status of asset transfers to the
London CIV.

REVIEW OF INFLATION LINKED BENCHMARKS
The Committee considered a report of the Chamberlain detailing Mercer’s
review of inflation-linked benchmarks.

CASHFLOW FORECAST
The committee received a report of the Chamberlain concerning the cashflow
for the Pension Fund for the four-year period 2025/26 to 2028/29.

PENSIONS INVESTMENT LETTER
The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain regarding a Pension
Investment Letter.

DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY OR URGENCY
POWERS

The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk which informed Members
of the decision taken under the delegated authority.

PENSION SCHEME - ADMINISTRATOR'S UPDATE NON-PUBLIC
APPENDICES

The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain concerning the non-public
appendices for Agenda Item 6.

NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF
THE COMMITTEE
No questions were raised.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT AND
THAT THE COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

No other business was raised.

Page 25



The meeting ended at 3.41 pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: Molly Carvill
molly.carvill@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 26



Agenda Item 4

Committee(s):
Local Government Pensions Board

Dated:
12/01/2026

Subject: Public report:
Annual Review of the Board's Terms of Reference For Decision
This proposal: N/A
e provides statutory duties
e provides business enabling functions
Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or No
capital spending?
If so, how much? N/A
What is the source of Funding? N/A
Has this Funding Source been agreed with the N/A
Chamberlain’s Department?
Report of: Town Clerk

Report author:

Molly Carvill, Governance
Officer

Summary

The annual review of the Local Government Pensions Board Terms of Reference
enables any proposed changes to be considered in time for the annual
reappointment of Committees and Boards by the Court of Common Council. The
Terms of Reference for the Local Government Pensions Board are attached at

Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration.

Recommendations
Members are asked to:

e Agree that the terms of reference of the Local Government Pensions Board,
subject to any comments, be approved for submission to the Court of
Common Council in April 2026, and that any further changes required in the
lead up to the Court’s appointment of Committees be delegated to the Town
Clerk in consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman;

¢ Members consider whether any change is required to the frequency of the

Committee’s meetings.
Appendices

e Appendix 1 — Terms of Reference

Page 27




Molly Carvill
Town Clerk’s Department
E: Molly.Carvill@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 28


mailto:Molly.Carvill@cityoflondon.gov.uk

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSIONS BOARD

Terms of Reference
In line with the requirements of the Public Services Pensions Act 2013 for the management of the City of London
Corporation’s Pension Scheme, to be responsible for:

(a) assisting the Scheme Manager (the City of London Corporation) in the following matters:
e Securing compliance with the scheme regulations and other legislation relating to the governance and
administration of the scheme and any statutory pension scheme that it is connected to;
e Securing compliance with requirements imposed in relation to the scheme and any connected scheme by the
Pensions Regulator; and
e Other such matters as the scheme regulations may specify.
(b) securing the effective and efficient governance and administration of the LGPS for the City of London Pension Fund

The Local Government Pensions Board will ensure it effectively and efficiently complies with the code of practice on the
governance and administration of public service pension schemes issued by the Pension Regulator.

The Local Government Pensions Board will also help ensure that the City of London Corporation Pension Fund is
managed and administered effectively and efficiently and complies with the code of practice on the governance and
administration of public service pension schemes issued by the Pension Regulator.

The Pensions Board shall meet at least two times per year.

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



Agenda Iltem 5

City of London Corporation Committee Report

Committee(s): Dated:

Local Government Pensions Board 12 January 2026
Subject: Public report:
Pensions Committee Update Report (Public) For Information

This proposal:
e provides statutory duties
e provides business enabling functions

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or No

capital spending?

If so, how much? EN/A

What is the source of Funding? N/A

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the No

Chamberlain’s Department?

Report of: The Chamberlain

Report author: Amanda Luk
Summary

The Local Government Pensions Board has responsibility for assisting the Pensions
Committee to ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the
scheme. The role is one of providing oversight of assurance in the governance of the
scheme administration and not in decision making. This report summarises the reports
and decisions made by the Pensions Committee on the public agenda at their
meetings on 22 September and 3 December 2025.

Recommendation
Members are asked to note the report.

Main Report
Background

1. This report summarises the reports and decisions made by the Pensions
Committee on the public agenda at their meetings on 22 September and 3
December 2025.

2. Since your last meeting, one Member of the Pensions Committee has stepped
down (Tim McNally).

Terms of Reference

3. At the December meeting, the Committee undertook their annual review of the
Pensions Committee Terms of Reference. The Committee agreed that the terms
of reference would need to be amended following recently issued government
regulations which meant the independent member would no longer have voting

Page 31




rights and that there was a change in responsibility of asset management. The full
report can be found here.

Administration

4. At each meeting the Pensions Committee has received the Administrators Update
and there is a separate report covering this on today’s agenda.

Risk Register

5. The Risk Register for the Pensions Committee is reviewed twice a year and was
last reviewed by the Pensions Committee at their meeting on 22 September. This
is a separate item on today’s agenda.

Guidance on Transfers Out

6. Following Barnett Waddingham’s review of the City of London Pension Fund’s
compliance with the Pension Regulators General Code of practice, the Pensions
Committee received a report at their September Committee which followed up on
the recommendation to produce a document that set out the precautions taken by
the Pensions Administration team with regards to transfers-out of the pension
scheme and avoiding potential scams. The full report can be found here. Following
a query from one of the Members around escalations, Officers undertook to return
to Committee with an expanded section clarifying the escalation process.

7. Atthe December meeting, Members received a report with the revised ‘Transfers-
out of the scheme: processes and precautions’ document that had been expanded
following the Members request. This is a separate item on today’s agenda.

City Fund and Pension Fund Statement of Accounts Update

8. At their September meeting the Committee received a report providing an update
on the publication and audit of the draft 2024/25 Statement of Accounts. The report
was for information and had been to both the Audit & Risk Committee (14 July)
and Finance Committee (16 September). The report stated that the City Fund and
Pension Fund accounts had been published in draft format in line with the statutory
deadline of 30 June 2025 and that the external audit had commenced on 16 June
2025. The full report can be found here.

City Fund and Pension Fund - Statement of Accounts, Audit Findings and
External Auditors Annual Report 2024/25

9. The Pensions Committee received a report at their September meeting which
provided an update on the audit of the Accounts, any changes and the Auditor’s
findings. The Committee considered the Audit Findings Report for the Pension
Fund and the Pension Fund management representation letter. This report has
been included as a separate item on today’s agenda.

10. At the same meeting, the Pensions Committee also considered the draft Pension
Fund Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2025 under non-public. Since
the report went to Committee, the Statement of Accounts and Annual Report have
been signed by the external auditors and the Annual Report has been published
on the Pensions website, which can be found here.

Fair Access Consultation

Page 32


https://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/documents/s226451/Pensions%20Committee%20-%20Terms%20of%20Reference%20Report%20-%20December%202025.pdf
https://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/documents/s222884/Transfer-out%20Covering%20Report%20Sept%202025.pdf
https://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/documents/s223161/City%20Fund%20and%20Pension%20Fund%20accounts%20update%202024-25.pdf
https://www.cityoflondonpensions.org/media/3qlleifu/pension-fund-annual-report-24-25.pdf

11. At their September meeting, the Pensions Committee received a report providing
a summary of the ‘Local Government Pension Scheme in England and Wales:
Scheme Improvements (Access and Protections) consultation, commonly
referred to as the LGPS Fair Access Consultation. The consultation closed on the
22 December 2025, and the City of London chose not to respond. This report has
been included as a separate item on today’s agenda.

Conclusion

12. The Pensions Committee met on 22 September and 3 December 2025. This report
is a summary of the reports and decisions made under the public side of the
Pensions Committee agenda.

Amanda Luk

Senior Accountant - Pensions

T: 020 7332 1372

E: amanda.luk@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 33


mailto:amanda.luk@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



Agenda Iltem 6

City of London Corporation Committee Report

Committee(s):
Local Government Pensions Board

Dated:
12 January 2026

Subiject:
Pensions Scheme — Administrator’'s Update

Public report:
For Information

This proposal:
e provides statutory duties
e provides business enabling functions

Chamberlain’s Department?

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or No
capital spending?

If so, how much? n/a
What is the source of Funding? n/a
Has this Funding Source been agreed with the n/a

Report of:

The Chamberlain

Report author:

Graham Newman —
Chamberlain’s Department

Summary

The administration of the City of London Local Government Pension Scheme (the
Scheme) is undertaken by the Pensions Team within the Chamberlain’s Department.

The table below provides a summary of general information around a range of topics
in relation to the administration of the Scheme since the last Board meeting on 21 July

2025. Members are asked to note the report and provide feedback.

Item

Update

Annual schedule of
events for the
administration of the
Pensions Scheme

Appendix A provides details of the events / dates that form
the main diary of the Scheme administration.

Information of
Scheme Record
Keeping

As the Scheme’s administrating authority, the City is
responsible for making sure the scheme has good records.

The City is required to ensure it has accurate, complete and
up-to-date records and should have controls and processes
in place to maintain these standards.

Failure to maintain complete and accurate records can risk
not meeting legal obligations as set by the Pensions
Regulator which could lead to fines and/or enforcement
action being taken.

Page 35




The City’s scheme data is measured once a year and the
data scores are submitted to the Pensions Regulator (tPR)
in the annual scheme return.

The Pensions Office submitted the 2025 Scheme Return for
the Local Government Pension Scheme on 1 December
2025.

Complaints or
disputes under the
Scheme’s Internal
Disputes Resolution
Process (IDRP)

Since the last Board meeting there have been two Stage 2
IDRP requests received by the Pensions Office.

A breakdown of the IDRP applications is included at
Appendix B on the non-public agenda.

Public Service
Pensions -
Reporting Breaches
of Pension Law

None to report

Any audit reports
relating to the
administration of the
Scheme

The City of London Internal Audit team will be undertaking
a review of the Pension Fund Administration function. The
review will start in January 2026.

Any reports relating
to the administration
of the Pension
Scheme which have
been considered by
other Committees

None to report.

Pension
Administration
System

The Pensions Office has rolled-out the Online Member
Portal which allows members to access their pension
record, make amendments to selected personal data (i.e.
name and death grant nominees) and to run their own
retirement estimates.

The portal was used for providing the 2024 and 2025
annual benefit statements and provides a potential platform
for future bulk mailings.

The system has been rolled out to all active and retired
scheme members and is now also available to deferred
scheme members so that access to the portal can continue
as active scheme members leave the organisation.

One of the main facilities that will be expected to be added
to the portal is the ability to upload pensioner payslips and
P60s and make these available to pensioner scheme
members.

This facility requires some add-on software to the existing
pensions portal (which will incur a cost) as well as the ability
to extract the necessary data from the payroll system and
upload it into the pensions online portal..

Page 36




The Pensions Office is in discussion with the Payroll Office
to determine whether the new payroll system that is being
developed will be able provide the required data in the
necessary format.

Once this has been confirmed it will be possible to move to
the next step in the process of obtaining the add-on
software.

Public Sector
Pensions Legal
Challenge

Lord Chancellor and Secretary of State for Justice v
McCloud and others

With effect from April 2015 (April 2014 for the LGPS) all
public sector pension schemes were subjected to reforms
that changed the way benefits were accrued and the date
from which they would become payable.

However, the legality of these reforms was successfully
challenged and they were found to be discriminatory on the
grounds of age. This challenge came to be referred to as
‘McCloud’.

The government consulted on what method of ‘Remedy’
should be used to remove the discrimination and on 10
March 2022 the Public Service Pensions and Judicial
Offices Act 2022 received Royal Assent.

The main purpose of the Act was to set out the intention of
the ‘McCloud Remedy’ and implement it in the public
service pension schemes.

Further consultation determined the form the Remedy
would take in respect of the LGPS and the regulations were
formally laid and then implemented with effect from 1
October 2023.

For active scheme members retiring after the
implementation date, their McCloud eligibility is assessed
by the Pensions Office and if appropriate their benefits are
based upon the terms of the Remedy. In addition, from
2025 onwards, all Annual Benefit Statements issued to
active and deferred members must include details in
respect of the Remedy and how it affects their individual
benefits.

With regards to retired members, all retirements since the
introduction of the career average scheme in April 2014 will
need to be assessed for eligibility for the McCloud Remedy.
For those deemed to be eligible, the process of
recalculating benefits already in payment under the terms
of the Remedy is underway. Any appropriate adjustments
are being made and arrears paid. This process will also
apply for the pensions being paid to the
survivors/dependants of an eligible member who passed
away before the Remedy was implemented.

Page 37




The Pensions Office has implemented the Remedy in
respect of active scheme members and all retirements that
have occurred since the implementation date (i.e. 1
October 2023) have been processed on this basis.

The 2025 Annual Benefit Statements (ABS) for eligible
scheme members were issued by the 31 August 2025
deadline and included the estimated underpin protection as
provided for by the McCloud Remedy.

Updates regarding the implementation of the McCloud
Remedy will continue to be brought to the Board.

Pension Committee
Training

All Members of the Board are expected to register for tPR
online training and complete the modules in respect of
public sector pension schemes.

The link for the online training is:
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/public-
service-pension-schemes/understanding-your-role/learn-
about-managing-public-service-schemes

Following a trial period by officers, Members of the
Committee have agreed to complete the online LGPS
training that has been created by our actuary Barnett
Waddingham. The training module is called ‘Enlighten’ and
is specifically directed at LGPS Committees, Boards and
officers. There are currently four courses available; each
consisting of several bitesize videos and followed by a quiz.

Details in respect of training modules completed by each
Member are included on the non-public agenda (Appendix
C).

Members are expected to re-do the tPR training modules
every 3-5 years.

Pensions Office Key

Appendix D provides statistics in relation to the

Performance performance of the Pension Scheme Administration.
Indicators
The working processes followed by the Pensions Team are
regularly reviewed to ensure the statistics accurately reflect
the work involved.
Pensions Introduced by the Department for Work and Pensions
Dashboards (DWP), Pensions Dashboards have been designed to

provide an online platform that will allow individuals to
access details of their accrued pension benefits from
multiple sources in one place. The intention is to support
better planning for retirement, and help individuals
reconnect with any pension pots they may have lost over
time.

Following revisions to the original staging dates, the
deadline for public sector pension schemes to connect to

Page 38



https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/public-service-pension-schemes/understanding-your-role/learn-about-managing-public-service-schemes
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/public-service-pension-schemes/understanding-your-role/learn-about-managing-public-service-schemes
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/public-service-pension-schemes/understanding-your-role/learn-about-managing-public-service-schemes

the national infrastructure was 31 October 2025. The City
of London met this deadline.

The service is scheduled to be released to the general
public by 31 October 2026. Schemes will be given at least
6 months’ notice before the public go-live date.

One crucial aspect of the Dashboard is the matching criteria
used by individual funds to match queries made by
customers via the dashboard ecosystem with the data held
on file by the pension provider.

Details of the matching criteria chosen by the City of
London are shown at Appendix E.

Updates regarding the progress being made in respect of
the Dashboards project will be brought to each Board
meeting.

Recommendation

The Committee is asked to note the report and provide any feedback in relation to

this information.
Appendices:

Appendix A — Annual Schedule of Events (Administration

Appendix B — IDRP cases received by the Pensions Office (NON PUBLIC)
Appendix C — Member Training (NON PUBLIC)

Appendix D — KPI Details

Appendix E — Pensions Dashboards Matching Criteria (NON PUBLIC)

Graham Newman

Pensions Manager | Chamberlain’s Department

T:020 7332 1132

E: graham.newman@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 39



mailto:graham.newman@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



Appendix A

Local Government Pension Administration - Schedule of Events 2025/26

Date Due Event Completed
1 April 2025 Employee  Contribution  band  review/ | 1 April 2025
implementation.
6 April 2025 Revaluation of CARE benefits. 6 April 2025
1 Monday in April | Pensions Increase (Pl) — Annual Inflation | 7 April 2025
following Tax Year | increase.
End
May 2025 Tax return for Quarter 4 (to 31/3/2025) 19 May 2025
31 May 2025 Pensioner P60s distributed 31 May 2025
30 June 2025 Publish draft City Fund Accounts 2024/25
(including the Pension Fund Accounts)
June/July 2025 Year-end data to the pension fund’s actuary 14 July 2025
August 2025 Tax return for Quarter 1 (to 30/06/2025) 6 August 2025
31 August 2025 Issue of Annual Benefit Statements deadline. | 31 August 2025
31 August 2025 Deadline for providing McCloud Remedy | 31 August 2025

information to the active and deferred

membership.

30 September 2025

Employee Contribution Band review

September 2025

5 October 2025

Issue of Annual Allowance (AA) Saving
Statements deadline

1 October 2025

31 October 2025

Pensions Dashboard staging deadline

31 October 2025

November 2025

Tax return for Quarter 2 (to 30/09/2024)

12 November 2025

1 December 2025

Publication of 2024/25 Pension Fund

Accounts and Annual Report

1 October 2025

3 December 2025

Scheme Return to the Pensions Regulator

1 December 2025

February 2026 Tax Return for Quarter 3 (to 31/12/2025)

1 April 2026 Employee  Contribution  band  review/
implementation.

6 April 2026 Revaluation of CARE benefits.

1 Monday in April | Pensions Increase (Pl) — Annual Inflation

following Tax Year
End

increase.

May 2026

Tax return for Quarter 4 (to 31/3/2026)

31 May 2026

Pensioner P60s distributed

30 June 2026

Publish draft City Fund Accounts 2025/26
(including the Pension Fund Accounts)

Page 41




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



oy abed

Appendix D

City of London Local Government Pension Scheme - Administration Key Performance Indicators

Target Number of Number of Number of
Task (Working Result cases in Result cases in Result cases in
Days) 2024125 2024/25 2023/24 2023/24 2022/23 2022/23
Initial payment of retirement benefits 10 days* 96.32% 190 94.32% 264 97.35% 279
Process refund and make payment 5 days 90.57% 53 95.79% 95 94.85 % 97
S’é?]t:fri?fm notifying estimate of retirement |, 4. ¢ 96.69% 151 96.57% 175 97.04 % 103
Statement detailing transfer-in credit 20 days 98.46% 130 100.00% 24 100.00 % 31
Transfers-out payments 20 days 100% 56 100.00% 34 100.00 % 156
Answering general correspondence: 10 days 97.73% 573 94.99% 579 96.50 % 501
Payment of lump sum death grants: 14 days 100% 18 100.00% 13 92.59 % 27
Letters to dependants in respect of 5 days 97.14% 70 94.74% 57 98.36 % 61
benefits due:
Running total for Running total
Target Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Number of cases theg ear number of cases
Task (Working 01/04/2025 — 01/07/2025 — in Ouarter 2 01/04 /32’025 _ for the year
days) 30/06/2025 30/09/2025 31/03/2026 01/04/2025 -
31/03/2026
Initial payment of 10 days* 95.35% 95.45% 66 95.41% 109
retirement benefits
Process refunds and 5 days 100.00% 75.00% 4 91.67% 12
make payments
Statement notifying
estimate of retirement 20 days 95.83% 87.50% 8 93.75% 32
benefits
Statement detailing 20 days 100.00% 95.83% 24 97.96% 49
transfer-in credit
Transfers-out payments 20 days 90.48% 88.89% 9 90.00% 30
Answering general 10 days 97.26% 97.76% 134 97.50% 280
correspondence
Payment of lump sum 14 days 100.00% 80.00% 5 90.91% 11
death grants
Letters to dependant's in | 5 4 90.00% 100.00% 9 94.74% 19
respect of benefits due




Appendix D
* At the June 2024 Committee meeting, Members agreed to change the target for the initial payment of retirement benefits from 5 to 10 working
days. Statistics shown for 2023/24 and earlier are based upon the 5 working days target. Statistics from April 2024 onwards have been collated
based upon the revised timeframe.

vt abed



Agenda Item 7

City of London Corporation Committee Report

Committee(s): Dated:

Pensions Committee (For Decision) 22 September 2025
Local Government Pensions Board (For Information) 12 January 2026
Subject: Public report:

Risk Register for the Pensions Committee For Decision

This proposal:
e provides statutory duties
e provides business enabling functions

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or No

capital spending?

If so, how much? £N/A

What is the source of Funding? N/A

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the N/A

Chamberlain’s Department?

Report of: The Chamberlain

Report author: Amanda Luk
Summary

This report reviews the Risk Register for the Pensions Committee. The Risk Register
details the key risks that have been identified alongside a risk score which indicates the
likelihood of a risk being realised together with the potential impact to the organisation
and the appropriate mitigations.

When reviewing the risks, the Pensions Committee should be aware that some
similar/generic risks are also included in the (CoL) Police Pension Board or the
Investment Committee (previously Financial Investment Board, prior to its dissolution)
Risk Registers: risks CHB Pensions 009 McCloud Remedy, 007 Cyber security and 005
Fraud are on the CoL Police Pensions Board Risk Register and risk CHB Pensions 013
Responsible Investment Duties is on the Investment Committee Risk Register.

The narrative “risk update” and “latest note” on associated actions has been amended
where necessary.

The Risk Register is included at Appendix 2 and Members of the Committee are asked
to review the risks and actions and confirm that appropriate measures are in place.

Recommendations
Members are asked to:

o review the existing risks and actions present on the Pensions Committee’s Risk
Register, and confirm that appropriate control measures are in place; and

o confirm that there are no further risks relating to the services overseen by the
Pensions Committee.

Page 45



Main Report

Background

1. The Pensions Committee reviews the Risk Register every 6 months and last reviewed

it at the meeting held on 13 February 2025. At that meeting Members reviewed the
existing actions and confirmed that appropriate controls were in place and that there
were no other risks relating to the services overseen by the Committee. Members did
however ask for Officers to consider the issues around the Section 37 Virgin Media
case and determine whether this should be considered a new risk in its own right or if
it could be incorporated into an existing risk. Following a review Officers have
incorporated this into CHB Pensions 012 Governance/Legislative Compliance on
the Pensions Committee risk register.

Review of Risks

2. The method of assessing risk reflects the City of London’s standard approach to risk

assessment as set out in its Risk Management Strategy approved by the Audit and
Risk Management Committee in May 2014. The City of London Corporation risk
matrix, which explains how risks are assessed and scored, is attached at Appendix
1 of this report. Risk scores range from one, being lowest risk, to the highest risk score
of thirty-two. These scores are summarised into 3 broad groups, each with increasing

” o«

risk, and categorised “green”, “amber” or “red”.

. The Risk Register to be reviewed is set out in Appendix 2. Members should note that
the layout of the risk register has been changed due to the introduction of new

standardised reporting to ensure the consistency of information.

Table 1: Risk Summary

Risk code

Risk title

Current
Risk
Score

Current
Risk Score
Indicator

CHB Pensions 009

McCloud Remedy

12

CHB Pensions 001

Insufficient assets - Pensions Fund

CHB Pensions 007

Cyber Security

CHB Pensions 010

Targeted returns — Pension Fund

CHB Pensions 003

Short term Cash flow

CHB Pensions 004

Breach of GDPR/Data Protection
regulations

Al | O] 0| 0

CHB Pensions 006

Employer Insolvency

CHB Pensions 008

Pension Scheme Administration

CHB Pensions 011

Service provider failure

CHB Pensions 012

Governance/Legislative Compliance

CHB Pensions 013

Failure to discharge responsible
investment duties

B T T R

CHB Pensions 005

Fraud

O O 0000 0|00k

Page 46




Risk code Risk title Current [Current

Risk Risk Score
Score Indicator

CHB Pensions 002 [Actuarial Valuation 1 @

4.

6.

The Risk Register contains thirteen risks which are summarised in table 1 above. In
the table, “Current Risk Score indicator” displays the current “RAG” rating for each
risk. Each risk presented in the Risk Register is accompanied by one or more
“action(s)” which reflect how the risk is managed and mitigated. A “due date” for
required completion is set against each action. Due to the nature of the risks overseen
by the Committee, in many cases it is impossible to entirely eliminate a risk, and
therefore corresponding actions will always remain live. These ongoing actions are
necessary in order to maintain the current risk score. Where this is the case the Risk
Register includes an annual due date, which will be renewed each year.

Officers have reviewed the Risk Register to establish whether the risk environment
has changed and whilst all scores have been maintained at their previous levels each
has been reviewed and updated where necessary in the Register itself. Updates to
the Risk Register are underlined throughout.

As requested by Members, Officers have reviewed the Section 37 Virgin Media Case
and incorporated it in CHB Pensions 012 Governance/Legislative Compliance on
the Pensions Committee risk register. The case is representative of potential new
legislative requirements that need retrospective adjustments and the effect this could
have on the Pension Fund. The latest note contains the background on the Virgin
Media case and the most recent update regarding the Government’s decision to
amend the Pensions Scheme Bill which is currently being read in Parliament to allow
retrospective validation of amendments which may have otherwise been invalid.

Conclusion

7.

The risks overseen by the Pensions Committee are primarily of low likelihood but
represent substantial impact, particularly with regards to financial loss and
reputational damage.

Officers have amended CHB Pensions 012 Governance/Legislative Compliance as
per Members request at the last Committee to consider including the Section 37 Virgin
Media Case.

The Pensions Committee is requested to review the risks and confirm that appropriate
control measures are in place for these risks and that there are no other risks that
should be added to the Risk Register.

Appendices

e Appendix 1 — City of London Corporation Risk Matrix
e Appendix 2 — Pensions Committee Risk Register

Amanda Luk

Senior Accountant — Pensions
Chamberlains Department

T: 020 7332 1372

Page 47



E: amanda.luk@ocityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 48


mailto:amanda.luk@cityoflondon.gov.uk

City of London Corporation Risk Matrix (Black and white version)

Note: A risk score is calculated by assessing the risk in terms of likelihood and impact. By using the likelihood and impact criteria below (top left (A) and bottom right (B) respectively) it is possible to calculate a
risk score. For example a risk assessed as Unlikely (2) and with an impact of Serious (2) can be plotted on the risk scoring grid, top right (C) to give an overall risk score of a green (4). Using the risk score

definitions bottom right (D) below, a green risk is one that just requires actions to maintain that rating.

(A) Likelihood criteria

Rare (1)

Unlikely (2)

Possible (3)

Likely (4)

Appendix 1

(C) Risk scoring grid

Criteria

Less than 10%

10-40%

40-75%

More than 75%

Probability

Has happened
rarely/never
before

Unlikely to occur

Fairly likely to occur

More likely to occur
than not

Time period

Unlikely to occur
ina 10 year
period

Likely to occur
within a 10 year
period

Likely to occur once
within a one year
period

Likely to occur once
within three months

Numerical

Less than one
chanceina
hundred
thousand (<10-5)

Less than one
chance in ten
thousand (<104)

Less than one
chance in a thousand
(<10-3)

Less than one chance
in a hundred
(<10-2)

61 abed

(B) Impact criteria

Impact title

Definitions

Minor (1)

Service delivery/performance: Minor impact on service, typically up to one day. Financial:
financial loss up to 5% of budget. Reputation: Isolated service user/stakeholder complaints
contained within business unit/division. Legal/statutory: Litigation claim or find less than
£5000. Safety/health: Minor incident including injury to one or more individuals. Objectives:
Failure to achieve team plan objectives.

Serious (2)

Service delivery/performance: Service disruption 2 to 5 days. Financial: Financial loss up to
10% of budget. Reputation: Adverse local media coverage/multiple service user/stakeholder
complaints. Legal/statutory: Litigation claimable fine between £5000 and £50,000.
Safety/health: Significant injury or iliness causing short-term disability to one or more persons.
Objectives: Failure to achieve one or more service plan objectives.

Major (4)

Service delivery/performance: Service disruption > 1 - 4 weeks. Financial: Financial loss up
to 20% of budget. Reputation: Adverse national media coverage 1 to 3 days. Legal/statutory:
Litigation claimable fine between £50,000 and £500,000. Safety/health: Major injury or
iliness/disease causing long-term disability to one or more people objectives: Failure to
achieve a strategic plan objective.

Extreme (8)

Service delivery/performance: Service disruption > 4 weeks. Financial: Financial loss up to
35% of budget. Reputation: National publicity more than three days. Possible resignation
leading member or chief officer. Legal/statutory: Multiple civil or criminal suits. Litigation claim
or find in excess of £500,000. Safety/health: Fatality or life-threatening illness/disease (e.g.
mesothelioma) to one or more persons. Objectives: Failure to achieve a major corporate
objective.

Impact
Minor Serious Major Extreme
X (1) @ @ 8)
Likely 4 8 16 32
3 4) Green Amber Red Red
<]
£ Possible 3 6 12 24
E (3) Green Amber Amber Red
=
Unlikely 2 4 8 16
(2) Green Green Amber Red
Rare 1 2 4 8
(W) Green Green Green Amber
(D) Risk score definitions
RED Urgent action required to reduce rating

AMBER | Action required to maintain or reduce rating

Action required to maintain rating

GREEN

This is an extract from the City of London Corporate Risk Management
Strategy, published in May 2014.

Contact the Corporate Risk Advisor for further information. Ext 1297

October 2015




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50



Pensions Committee - CHB Pensions - Detailed Report

Report Type: Risks Report
Report Author: Amanda Luk
Generated on: 05 September 2025

Rows are sorted by Risk Score

Risk Level Description Service

CITY
LONDON

remedy for McClou

d.

—_—
B?"sk Code CHB Pensions 009 | |Risk Title McCloud Remedy

(@

0]

(@)} Cause: Implementation of the proposed remedy following new pension legislation and scheme specific regulations for the removal of age discrimination
(o from the LGPS due to the McCloud judgement.

Description Event: The impact of scheme amendments upon scheme members, Pensions Office and scheme employers due to implementation of the proposed

Effect: The Pensions Office is unable to adequately comply with legislative and regulatory amendments arising from the proposed McCloud remedy.

Current Risk g . Target Risk E () Original Risk E
3 3 3
Impact Impact Impact
Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact
12 Possible Major 4 Unlikely Serious 16 Likely Major
Amber Trend Constant Green Target Date  |31-Dec-2025 Red Creation Date 11-Aug-2022




In December 2018, the Court of Appeal ruled that the “underpin protection” included in the 2014 LGPS reforms directly discriminated

against some younger pension scheme members — this is now referred to as the McCloud Judgement or McCloud.

The finalised LGPS (Amendment) (No.3) Regulations 2023 came into force from 1 October 2023 and amended the LGPS Regulations

2013 accordingly.

009b
Identification of
eligible members

members who will qualify for the
remedy. All data must be reviewed and
if necessary amended. In some cases
data may be missing and must be

identify scheme members who may qualify and/or
identify missing data.

Latest Note 05-Sep-2025
Since this date, all new retirements have been calculated with reference to the Remedy.
From-August2025-enwards; The Annual Benefit Statements (ABS) issued in August 2025 sheuld-included information in respect of the
McCloud Remedy for all affected members.
Risk Level Service Risk Approach Reduce
Department Chamberlain’s Risk Owner Kate Limna
Associated Actions
‘_T:gf No: Description Latest Note Note Date Owned By Due Date
E—iB Pensions MHCLG has confirmed the proposed Continue with membership of working groups including [05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman |31-Dec-2025
Gd9a Initiating remedy and the intention to introduce |South East Counties Senior Officer Group (SECSOG),
WreCloud legislation to the statute books from 1 |Aquila Heywood Remedy Implementation Group, to
Rémedy April 2023 but applied retrospectively to [ensure development of software and understanding of
31 March 2012 and 31 March 2014. legislation.
The Pensions Office will need to
understand what this means, develop |Attend conferences, webinars, forums and seminars as
processes and calculations to apply the |appropriate and keep up to date with bulletins and
regulations for the amended schemes |guidance from the Home Office.
and should be aware of all relevant
correspondence issued by the MHCLG,
LGA & HMRC and regularly attend
seminars, forums, webinars and user
groups.
CHB Pensions [ldentification of eligible scheme Perform data review exercise in bulk and individually to |05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman [31-Dec-2025




requested from employers and previous
pension providers.

Software provider has developed systems to identify
qualifying scheme member on bulk reports.

Any missing information to be obtained and scheme
member record update.

CHB Pensions  |System Development The software has been updated to allow for calculations|05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman [31-Dec-2025
009c System Calculation/Revaluation and recalculations of deferred benefits and those
Development already in payment to identify where the Remedy will
Calculation/Reval affect the benefits already calculated. The calculators
uation are kept under constant review to ensure that they work
as intended and regular updates are provided as they
are developed by the software supplier.
Development has included bulk calculations and
calculations for individuals, and include revised pension
amounts, arrears payable/collectible (benefits and
o contributions) plus interest payable where applicable.
Q
@®HB Pensions Working in conjunction with LGA to It will be essential for communications to be regular. 05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman |31-Dec-2025
00ad prepare communications and standard |clear and ongoing. Updates in respect of the remedy
©dmmunication responses (FAQs) to be sent to and delivery of it, including scheme members who may
to Members affected scheme members. be affected, must be provided as appropriate.

The Pensions Office website carries current information
from various sources including MHCLG. Further
communications will be added when they are released.

The 2023 Annual Benefit Statements (ABS) included a
link to a leaflet that was created by the LGA in
conjunction with the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB).
This leaflet was also already available on the City’s
Pension Website.

The 2025 ABS willnow-need-to-be was amended to
include McCloud data willnreed-to-be-included-for each
eligible scheme member.




Scheme members who may be affected will need a
final communication confirming if benefit values have
been amended and if so by how much, including value
of arrears and interest if applicable.

G abed




Risk Code

CHB Pensions 001

| |Risk Title Insufficient Assets

Description

Cause: The asset allocation of the Pension Fund portfolio is unable to fund long term liabilities due to market movements
Event: There are insufficient assets to meet liabilities
Effect: Reduced income or lower than anticipated growth. Participating employers are required to provide further funding through increased contributions
to finance liabilities.

001a Investment
Strategy review

Fund is reviewed at least every three
years following the triennial valuation

following the completion of the 2022 triennial valuation
of the Fund’s liabilities, by the Pensions Committee in
September 2023. New Investments into Corporate

Beyerty; Kate
Limna

Current Risk g [@] Target Risk E () Original Risk E @
Impact Impact Impact
Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact
8 Unlikely Major 4 Unlikely Serious 8 Unlikely Major
:‘g Amber Trend Constant Green Target Date  |31-Mar-2026 Amber Creation Date 17-Aug-2022
Q
Z;I The Pension Fund’s absolute return target has been set at 5.2% annually from 1st April 2020 by the Financial Investment Board (which
o1 is consistent with the strategy for funding the Fund’s liabilities). As at 30-Nevember2024 30 June 2025, the Fund is outperforming its
Latest Note absolute return target over all time horizons except three one years. The Fund has produced a positive return over all time frames. This 05-Sep-2025
is largely as a result of global equity markets which have returned positively amid a resilient and generally solid economy, despite
markets reacting to evolving monetary policies; major election results; and on-going geo-political tensions.
Risk Level Service Risk Approach Reduce
Department Chamberlain’s Risk Owner Kate Limna
Associated Actions
Ref No: Description Latest Note Note Date Owned By Due Date
CHB Pensions |The Investment strategy of the Pension [The Pension Fund Investment Strategy was reviewed [05-Sep-2025 Caroline Al- 31-Mar-2026




with proper advice from the Investment
Consultant.

Bonds, Renewable Infrastructure and broad private
markets were agreed to ensured that the investment
strategy remained appropriate in the context of the
Fund’s updated liabilities valuation and the current
investment environment. Subsequently in September
2024, the allocation to broad private markets was
replaced by increasing the allocation to infrastructure
which has a similar impact from a total Fund risk/return
perspective and an investment into infrastructure
manager JP Morgan was made in January 2025. The
next Investment Strategy Review will take place
alongside the triennial valuation.

CHB Pensions
001b Investment
Performance
gl-\lféasurement

oG ab

The investment performance of the
Pension Fund is measured against
absolute return targets required to meet
long term objectives. This will be
reported to the Pensions Committee
throughout the year and is
supplemented by market insight from
the Corporation’s Investment
Consultant who will assist any strategic
decisions required in between the
three-year formal strategy reviews.

The investment performance of the Pension Fund will
be brought to each Pensions Committee for
consideration.

05-Sep-2025

Kate Limna

31-Mar-2026




Risk Code

CHB Pensions 007

| [Risk Title

Cyber Security

Description

Cause: IT system failures due to ineffective procedures, or Inadequately trained staff.
Event: Breach of Corporate IT systems and Cyber security due to inadequate preparation and not maintaining robust effective IT security systems and

procedures.

Effect: Inaccurate benefits paid or delayed to scheme members. Financial penalties/ sanctions. Breach of Data Protection regulations. Loss/corruption of
data. Harm to individuals. Reputational damage

Current Risk g @) Target Risk E () Original Risk E ()
Impact Impact Impact
Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact
) 8 Unlikely Major 4 Unlikely Serious 4 Unlikely Serious
D Amber Trend Increasing Green Target Date  [31-Mar-2026 Green Creation Date 17-Aug-2022
@
ﬂ A malicious breach of Corporate IT systems may lead to a failure of the pensions administration system and/or a breach of Data
Protection regulations. The Corporate IT system has a minimum-security baseline which has been agreed as part of the National Cyber
Security Centre’s (NCSC) Cyber Assurance Framework.
Latest Note 05-Sep-2025
A failure of the pensions administration system or a breach of the Data Protection Regulations may mean a failure or inability to calculate
benefits accurately and on time which may lead to financial penalties and sanctions being imposed by the governing industry bodies
such as the Pensions Regulator or Information Commissioner’s Office.

Risk Level

Service

Risk Approach

Reduce

Department

Chamberlain’s

Risk Owner

Kate Limna




Associated Actions

Ref No: Description Latest Note Note Date Owned By Due Date
CHB Pensions  |Pensions administration staff to be Corporate online training regarding cyber-security to be [05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman (31-Mar-2026
007a Corporate |aware of the corporate policy regarding |carried out by all staff integrating cyber security into risk
Policies cyber security and to follow the management processes.
guidelines integrating cyber security
into risk management processes.
CHB Pensions  |Corporate and departmental specific To ensure the most up-to-date software is being used, |05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman [31-Mar-2026
007b Corporate [software to be updated as required to  [staff should update their computers as and when
and departmental [ensure the latest and most secure prompted.
specific software |version is being used.
CHB Pensions Ensuring that the pensions Updating the business impact analysis details used in  |05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman [31-Mar-2026
007c Business  |administration software is included in the departmental continuity plan as required.
Continuity the departmental business continuity
plans
@B Pensions  |Pensions administration staff to be Data Protection reviewed and all staff reminded of the [05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman [31-Mar-2026
QD7d Data aware of Data Protection legislation legislation and its importance. Processes amended for
otection home working, ensuring the protection of scheme
I€gislation member data.

&




Risk Code

CHB Pensions 010

| [Risk Title

|Targeted returns

Description

Cause: Fund managers (including the London CIV) fail to achieve the targeted investment returns because
* unsuitable fund managers are appointed,

« individual fund managers underperform against the benchmarks agreed by the Committee,

» aggregate fund manager performance fails to achieve the long-term targets
* Number of investors in a fund may diminish below a minimum level causing the fund to close.

Event: Failure to be seen to manage the funds responsibly.

Effect: Supervisory intervention over management of the Funds.

Current Risk

O

g

Impact

Target Risk

g O

Impact

Original Risk

g O

Impact

'U .
Q Risk Score

Likelihood

Impact

Risk Score

Likelihood

Impact

Risk Score

Likelihood

Impact

6

Possible

Serious

6

Possible

Serious

6

Possible

Serious

Amber

Trend

Constant

Amber

Target Date

31-Mar-2026

Amber

Creation Date

17-Aug-2022

66 oD

Latest Note

The performance of fund managers and their aggregate performance is reported against target to the Pensions Committee. The
Pensions Committee will set a diversified investment strategy to mitigate volatility and as such it expects different parts of the strategy to
outperform at different times. The Strategic Asset Allocation was revised in September 2023 and will next be reviewed alongside the
2025 triennial valuation.

The London CIV is a pooling vehicle for which the City of London Pension Fund is a shareholder. CoL PF assets under management are

held in eight funds — Global Alpha Growth Fund (managed by Baillie Gifford), Alternative Credit Fund (managed by CQS), Buy and
Maintain Fund — Short duration and Buy and Maintain Fund — Long duration (managed by Insight), Renewable Infrastructure Fund
(multiple managers), Global Equity Value (managed by Wellington), Global Equity Quality (managed by Morgan Stanley) and the M&G

UK Residential Fund. The Pension Fund is currently 62 59% pooled (including commitments).

05-Sep-2025

Risk Level

Service

Risk Approach

Reduce

Department

Chamberlain’s

Risk Owner

Caroline Al-Beyerty




Associated Actions

Ref No:

Description

Latest Note

Note Date

Owned By

Due Date

CHB Pensions
010a Investment
manager
Benchmarking

Investment managers' performance and
their aggregate performance is
measured against appropriate
benchmarks and will be monitored by
the Pensions Committee throughout the
year. It is supplemented by market
insight from the Corporation’s
investment consultants which provides
peer group comparisons; checks on
movement of key officers; and reviews
on the incorporation of ESG
considerations in implementing their
investment strategies.

Fund managers are invited to meet with
Officers and Members to account for
their performance as and when deemed
necessary/as required.

The performance report for the Pension Fund to 30
November2024 30 June 2025 is reported to the

Pensions Committee on 43-February 22 September
2025.

05-Sep-2025

Kate Limna;
Sarah Port

31-Mar-2026

B Pensions
Ob London CIV

Goabed

Under the Government pooling agenda,
London CIV is the asset pool operator
for London LGPS funds.

The LCIV holds monthly updates for
Shareholders advising on latest
developments for examples, product
development and ESG/Climate related
actions.

[ [
”Hle Nove nb|e1 2g2_| ot thiy neetﬁ ﬁg ; ellzel., ad
keeping-a-close-watch-on-Fund-Manager-performance.

At a meeting in late 2022, the investors in the Global
Alpha Growth Fund (of which there were 5) were
advised that should the number of investors fall below
3, an orderly exit from the fund may be considered. The
current number of investors remains at 5.

05-Sep-2025

Kate Limna;
Sarah Port

31-Mar-2026




Risk Code CHB Pensions 003 | |Risk Title Short term Cash flows
Cause: Inadequate cash flow planning and monitoring.
Description Event: Delayed settling of benefits/ assets disinvested at an opportune time

Effects: llliquidity or insufficient liquid assets to meet short term obligations

Current Risk g ) Target Risk E () Original Risk E ()
Impact Impact Impact
Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact
4 Unlikely Serious 4 Unlikely Serious 4 Unlikely Serious
. Green Trend Constant Green Target Date  [31-Mar-2026 Green Creation Date
O
8 Insufficient liquidity to meet pension benefit payments, transfer payments and other costs, or to meet cash calls from fund managers
%test Note 05-Sep-2025
|_\
Risk Level Service Risk Approach Avoid
Department Chamberlain’s Risk Owner Kate Limna
Associated Actions
Ref No: Description Latest Note Note Date Owned By Due Date
CHB Pensions  |The Pension Fund asset allocation is | The Pension fund asset allocation remains within 05-Sep-2025 Kate Limna; 31-Mar-2026
003a Asset established to ensure appropriate tolerance of control ranges established by Pensions Sarah Port
Allocation exposure to asset classes. Committee under the revised Strategic Asset allocation
as agreed by Committee in September 2023.
CHB Pensions  |Alert fund managers in advance of Fund Managers are aware of the contractual 05-Sep-2025 Kate Limna; 31-Mar-2026
003b Notice transferring notification period of 10 working days for any Sarah Port
Periods drawdowns and Officers alert fund managers Trading +




new monies and Fund managers are
required to provide sufficient notice of
cash calls and redemption payments.

X number of working days in in advance of a withdrawal
(X is dependent on the fund manager).

CHB Pensions
003c Cash flow
forecasting

Cash flow forecasting to ensure
adequate monitoring and planning.

A Cash flow forecast has been created to ensure the
Pension Fund is able to meet any obligations required
of it. This is reported to Committee on a half yearly
basis.

05-Sep-2025

Kate Limna;
Sarah Port

31-Mar-2026

29 abed




Risk Code

|cHB Pensions 004

| [Risk Title

|Breach of GDPR / Data Protection regulations

Description

Cause: (i) Ineffective procedures. (ii) Inadequately trained staff. (iii) Data Accuracy. (iv) Lack of resources.
Event: Scheme members’ personal data is released to an unauthorised third party.

Effect: (i) Breach of GDPR / Data Protection regulations. (ii) Financial penalties/ sanctions. (iii) Reputational damage

Current Risk g ) Target Risk E () Original Risk E ()
Impact Impact Impact
Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact
4 Unlikely Serious 4 Unlikely Serious 4 Unlikely Serious
. Green Trend Constant Green Target Date  [31-Mar-2026 Green Creation Date
U
% Personal data may be accidentally issued to an incorrect third party or body — e.g. an old postal address may be held for a scheme
o member or an error is made whilst typing an email address.
w
Latest Note A breach of the GDPR / DP regulations may lead to financial penalties and sanctions being imposed by the governing industry bodies 05-Sep-2025
such as the Pensions Regulator or Information Commissioner’s Office.
Risk Level Service Risk Approach Reduce
Department Chamberlain’s Risk Owner Kate Limna
Associated Actions
Ref No: Description Latest Note Note Date Owned By Due Date
CHB Pensions  |Pensions administration staff to be Corporate online training regarding data-security to be [05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman [31-Mar-2026
004a Corporate [|aware of the corporate policy regarding |carried out by all staff and reviewed as required.




Policies on data
security

data security and to follow the
guidelines given.

004d GDPR/Data
Legislation

aware of GDPR / Data Protection
legislation

reminded of the legislation and its importance.
Processes amended for hybrid working, ensuring the
protection of scheme member data.

CHB Pensions  |Ensuring that any data sent All staff are trained in how to protect documents and 05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman [31-Mar-2026
004b Electronic [electronically is sent securely / send emails securely. However, it is important that this
Data password protected with the password |training is kept up to date as technology / processes
sent separately evolve and are changed.
CHB Pensions Ensuring that member address details |Notating the member records when the Pensions Office |05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman [31-Mar-2026
004c Keeping are kept up-to-date and that records are|is made aware that the data held is no longer valid
member data up |updated when the Pensions Office is prevents their inclusion in any automated bulk
to date made aware that the information held is |mailshots.
no longer valid.
CHB Pensions  |Pensions administration staff to be GDPR / Data Protection reviewed and all staff 05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman [31-Mar-2026

79 abed




Risk Code

CHB Pensions 006

| [Risk Title

Employer Insolvency

Description

Cause: Processes not in place to capture or review covenant of individual employers.
Event: Employer becomes insolvent or is abolished with insufficient funding to meet liabilities.
Effect: Fund would pick up the liabilities potentially leading to increased contribution rates for other employers.

Current Risk g ) Target Risk E () Original Risk E ()
Impact Impact Impact
Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact
4 Unlikely Serious 4 Unlikely Serious 4 Unlikely Serious
. Green Trend Constant Green Target Date  [31-Mar-2026 Green Creation Date 17-Aug-2022
O
% Since 2013 the LGPS regulations generally require all admission bodies to enter into an indemnity or bond to cover the possibility of an
o employer becoming insolvent or prematurely leaving the Fund. This would mean the Fund and the remaining employers would have to
a1 meet the outgoing employer’s liabilities in the Fund.
Latest Note The actuary assesses the value of these risks to the Fund and sets the value for a bond, generally for a three-year period. 05-Sep-2025
It is generally a requirement of the City of London for all new admission agreements to have a bond and the responsibility of the
admission body to arrange and regularly reassess the bond.

Risk Level

Service

Risk Approach

Accept

Department

Chamberlain’s

Risk Owner

Kate Limna




Associated Actions

indemnity/guaran
tee

admission agreements where
appropriate.

Academies Trust where admissions have been
completed on a pass-through basis and the Department

of Education guarantee is in place.

Ref No: Description Latest Note Note Date Owned By Due Date
CHB Pensions  |Bond indemnity/guarantee required for [Recent admissions to the scheme have provided a 05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman (31-Mar-2026
006a Bond admitted bodies and incorporated into  |bond except for TUPESs in relation to the City of London

99 abed




Risk Code

|cHB Pensions 008

| [Risk Title

Pension Scheme Administration

Description

Effect:

(i) Inaccurate benefits paid or delayed. (ii) Increased costs. (iii) Financial penalties/ sanctions.

Cause: (i) Ineffective succession planning. (ii) Inadequately trained staff. (iii) Absences/increased staff turnover. (v) Data Accuracy. (vi) Lack of resources.
Event: The failure of administrators to accurately calculate and pay the correct level of benefits.

Regulator.

Incorrect member data, lack of administrative knowledge and skills could lead to incorrect calculation of pension benefits and delays in
payment. This may lead to financial penalties and sanctions being imposed by the governing industry bodies such as the Pensions

Current Risk g ) Target Risk E () Original Risk E ()
Impact Impact Impact
Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact
4 Unlikely Serious 4 Unlikely Serious 4 Unlikely Serious
:‘g Green Trend Constant Green Target Date  [31-Mar-2025 Green Creation Date
Q
‘C; The Regulations of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) set out how LGPS pensions should be calculated; the procedures to
ey be followed in certain circumstances (i.e. normal retirement and ill health retirement); the timeframes/deadlines to be adhered to; and the
notifications to be provided to Scheme members.
Other bodies such as the Pensions Regulator, HM Revenue & Customs, the Office of National Statistics and the Financial Conduct
Latest Note Authority also impose rules that work alongside the Scheme Regulations or may even supersede them. 05-Sep-2025

Risk Level

Service

Risk Approach

Accept

Department

Chamberlain’s

Risk Owner

Kate Limna




Associated Actions

008f Member
data kept up to
date

date, with any amendments being
made as appropriate.

amendments that must be made to a member record
during the course of their scheme membership and that
they are trained in how to make the necessary changes
and updates.

Ref No: Description Latest Note Note Date Owned By Due Date
CHB Pensions  |Job descriptions used at recruitment to [Ensuring that candidates with the necessary skills and |05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman (31-Mar-2026
008a attract candidates with skills and abilities are employed by the City. Once in post, staff
Recruitment job |experience related to LGPS continue to receive relevant training and attend
descriptions administration. The appraisals process |courses, seminars and conferences when appropriate.
to monitor progress and assess training
needs.
CHB Pensions  |Pensions administrator staff are trained [Ensuring that administrators are fully trained to use the |[05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman [31-Mar-2026
008b Pensions [to use the pensions administration pension administration software to enable them to
Administration software. provide accurate and efficient calculations. In addition,
software administrators should know the correct process to
report to the software provider any errors encountered
with the system in order that they can be investigated
and resolved.
B Pensions Practical disaster recovery/succession |Ensuring that skill sets are not restricted to one staff 05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman [31-Mar-2026
8c Succession [plans in place to ensure continuity in member alone.
ans the event that key staff leave or are
@ unable to work for a prolonged period of |Priority cases and work types are identified to ensure
o)) time. continuation in the event that staff or other resources
oo become unavailable.
Disaster Recovery reviewed in light of hybrid working.
CHB Pensions  |Accurate and appropriate checking All checking procedures reviewed and where necessary|05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman [31-Mar-2026
008e Checking |procedures in place at all areas of amended due to take account of hybrid working.
procedures administration.
CHB Pensions  |Scheme Member records are kept up to [Ensuring that all administrative staff are aware of the 05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman [31-Mar-2026




Risk Code

CHB Pensions 011

| |Risk Title Service provider failure

Description

Cause: Corporate, financial, economic or cybersecurity threats result in service provision withdrawal or liquidation of partner organisations.
Event: Failure of fund manager, investment consultant or other service provider without notice.
Effect: Pension Fund asset valuations at risk or a period of time without service provision.

due Diligence

consultant or other service provider are [contract was recently re-tendered via the National

appointed.

LGPS procurement framework. Following a rigorous
and competitive exercise Mercer were appointed to the
role in October 2021.

Current Risk g Target Risk E Original Risk E
- @ - L - L
Impact Impact Impact
Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact
4 Rare Major 4 Rare Major 4 Rare Major
. Green Trend Constant Green Target Date  [31-Mar-2026 Green Creation Date 17-Aug-2022
O
% Officers meet regularly with fund managers, investment consultants and other service providers. Officers write to all counterparties
Ootest Note requesting latest internal control report from fund managers and custodian ahead of the closure of accounts. 05-Sep-2025
(o)
Risk Level Service Risk Approach Avoid
Department Chamberlain’s Risk Owner Kate Limna
Associated Actions
Ref No: Description Latest Note Note Date Owned By Due Date
CHB Pensions Detailed due diligence is carried out New manager due diligence undertaken in consultation |05-Sep-2025 Kate Limna; 31-Mar-2026
011a Detailed when new fund managers, investment |with investment consultant. The investment consultant Sarah Port




CHB Pensions
011b Internal
control reports

Review of internal control reports on
annual basis.

Corporate Treasury compile an archive of the most up
to date relevant annual internal control reports issued
by all issuing fund managers and custodian as part of
statement of account compilation across Funds. All
internal control reports from the pooled fund managers
have been received where available. Officers are in the
process of reviewing the findings of the reports to
ensure they remain satisfied with the control
environments operated by the Corporation’s appointed
asset managers.

05-Sep-2025

Kate Limna;
Sarah Port

31-Mar-2026

CHB Pensions
011c Monitoring
Markets

Monitor markets regularly through
financial publications and seek advice
of managers and investment consultant
when appropriate.

Officers regularly monitor financial press and industry
publications particularly in search of any news
regarding entities that have an existing relationship
across the Corporation's Funds.

05-Sep-2025

Kate Limna;
Sarah Port

31-Mar-2026

0/ abed




Risk Code CHB Pensions 012 | |Risk Title Governance/Legislative Compliance
Cause: Lack of understanding of the applicable statutory requirements such as investment regulations, prudential code etc. Inadequate oversight of the
operations and developments at the regional pool operator, the London CIV. New legislative requirements that require retrospective adjustments.
Event: Committee Members and officers do not have appropriate skills or knowledge to discharge their responsibilities including the calculation and
Description payment off benefits. Regulatory breach. The Pension Fund’s pooled assets are managed inappropriately. Benefits are not paid correctly and need to be

recalculated.

Effect: Inappropriate decisions are made leading to a financial impact, or a breach of legislation or service not provided in line with best practice and legal
requirements. Potential regulatory fines. The financial value of the Pension Fund’s assets is impaired. There is a potential increase in scheme liabilities

and a need for retrospective benefit corrections.

Current Risk

o

Original Risk g

g Target Risk g

Impact Impact

Impact

D

Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood

Impact

% Risk Score
4

Unlikely Serious 2 Rare Serious 4 Unlikely

Serious

-
= Green

Trend Constant Green Target Date  [31-Mar-2026 Green Creation Date

17-Aug-2022

Latest Note

Officers will have produced a comprehensive training plan incorporating best practice to ensure committee Members have access to
acquiring the appropriate levels of knowledge and understanding.

The Virgin Media Ltd v NTL Pension Trustees |l Ltd (and others) case affects defined benefit schemes that provided contracted-out
benefits before 6 April 2016 based on meeting the reference scheme test. Where scheme rules were amended, potentially impacting
benefits accrued from 6 April 1997 to 5 April 2016, schemes needed the actuary to confirm that the reference scheme test was still being

met by providing written confirmation under Section 37 of the Pension Schemes Act 1993. In the Virgin Media case, the judge ruled that
alterations to the scheme rules were void and ineffective due to the absence of this written actuarial confirmation. The case was taken to
the Court of Appeal, and the original ruling was upheld in July 2024.

The Government Actuary’s Department is currently undertaking a review to confirm whether such changes occurred in Local
Government Pension Schemes (LGPS). The most recent Local Government Association bulletin in November 2024 states that HM
Treasury does not believe the Virgin Media case expressly addresses whether confirmation is required for public service pension

05-Sep-2025




schemes. Their view is that the relevant amendments in the LGPS would have been made by legislation and therefore would remain

valid until revoked or repealed by subsequent legislation or declared void by a court.

On 2 September 2025, the Government published amendments to the Pension Schemes Bill to allow the retrospective validation of

amendments which may have otherwise been invalid, this followed the Court of Appeal’s decision in the Virgin Media case.

012c Staff
Training

part of the performance appraisal
arrangements, which are reviewed
every six months.

be carried out in line with corporate policy.

Beyerty; Kate
Limna

Risk Level Service Risk Approach Avoid
Department Chamberlain’s Risk Owner Kate Limna
Associated Actions
Ref No: Description Latest Note Note Date Owned By Due Date
CHB Pensions |Training provided to Committee In line with the training policy, an annual review will be |05-Sep-2025 Kate Limna; 31-Mar-2026
012a Training for [IMembers on a range of investment undertaken of the skills set of the Members of the new Sarah Port
mmittee topics and asset classes on a needs Pensions Committee. All Members of the Committee
embers basis. Continued Professional will be expected to complete the Pension Regulator’s
O Development (CPD) records Public Services Toolkit within 12 months of joining the
® maintained and updated annually. Committee. Members of the Committee are also
~ expected to complete the new Enlighten! Training
N provided by Barnett Waddingham (Actuary).
CHB Pensions  |Job descriptions used at recruitment to [Officers continue to attend training courses, seminars |05-Sep-2025 Caroline Al- 31-Mar-2026
012b attract candidates with skills and forums, webinars, user groups and conferences were Beyerty; Kate
Recruitment job [experience related to investment deemed appropriate to enhance understanding of Limna
descriptions finance. The Corporation maintains markets, financial instruments, regulatory and statutory
membership of CIPFA’s Pension reporting issues and administration.
Network, the LAPFF, LPFA and PLSA
Pensions UK- all providing access to
training opportunities via courses,
seminars and conferences.
CHB Pensions  |Training plans in place for all staff as Performance and development appraisals continue to  |05-Sep-2025 Caroline Al- 31-Mar-2026




monitoring

Pension Fund.

relevant sources which detail the legal cases and
legislation that effect the Pension Fund.

CHB Pensions  |External professional advice sought The investment consultant attends each meeting of the |05-Sep-2025 Kate Limna; 31-Mar-2026
012d where required. Pensions Committee providing advice on investment Sarah Port
Professional matters.
advice
CHB Pensions  |The Committee maintains regular The Chair of the Pension’s Committee is the City’s 05-Sep-2025 Kate Limna; 31-Mar-2026
012e Oversight |oversight of the London CIV. representative on the London CIV (with the Deputy Sarah Port
of London CIV chair acting as the alternate representative). The Chair

is expected to attend 2 general meetings a year and

also sits on the Shareholder Committee (4 meetings a

year).
CHB Pensions Regular monitoring of ongoing legal Officers will continue to review the Local Government [05-Sep-2025 Kate Limna; 31-Mar-2026
012f Leqislation [cases/legislation that impacts the Association, Scheme Advisory websites and other Sarah Port

¢/ obed




Risk Code

CHB Pensions 013

| [Risk Title

Responsible investment duties

Description

Cause: Insufficient attention is paid to the environmental, social and governance (ESG) dimensions of the Corporation's financial investments.

Event: The Corporations' financial investments include an underappreciated exposure to negative ESG risks and the means to effectively manage such
risks is not understood.
Effect: The Corporation suffers reputational or financial damage.

Current Risk g ) Target Risk E () Original Risk E ()
Impact Impact Impact
Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact
4 Unlikely Serious 4 Unlikely Serious 4 Unlikely Serious
:‘g Green Trend Constant Green Target Date  |31-Mar-2026 Green Creation Date 17-Aug-2022
Q
‘\UI The Pensions Committee inherited an advanced approach to responsible investment and asset stewardship. The Corporation (via the
N then Financial Investment Board) has formally recognised its asset stewardship role and the need to manage ESG risks through its
Responsible Investment Policy which also outlines the Corporation's approach in this area. The City of London Corporation (as a whole)
is a signatory to the Principles for Responsible Investment.
The then Financial Investment Board undertook an in depth review of its climate risk exposure (including the use of scenario analysis) in
Latest Note 2021 resulting in a commitment to achieve net zero carbon emissions by 2040 together with the development of interim goals via a 05-Sep-2025
transition pathway.
The Corporation’s second scenario analysis is-being was undertaken during 2024/25 to better understand the latest risks and
opportunities associated with the City’s Financial investments.

Risk Level

Service

Risk Approach

Reduce

Department

Chamberlain’s

Risk Owner

Kate Limna




Associated Actions

Ref No: Description Latest Note Note Date Owned By Due Date
CHB Pensions  |Reporting on responsible investment The PRI 2024 2025 reporting period opened May 2024 |05-Sep-2025 Kate Limna; 31-Mar-2026
013a Reporting |activities to the Principles for 2025 and the Corporation placed its submission by the Sarah Port
on responsible  |Responsible Investment is completed |26-J3uhy-2024 30 July 2025 deadline. The PRI have not
investment on an annual basis. The Committee commented on when the results will be published.
activities (along with other relevant
Committees/Boards) will receive an The full 2023/24 PRI results were released in
annual Transparency Report from the |November 2024, and the results are beinrg were
PRI from which it can evaluate progress|presented underseparate-cover to this the February
against responsible investment goals. |2025 Pensions Committee.
The PRI have stated that the reporting period for 2025
2026 is expected to be broadly aligned with that of the
2024 2025 assessment (May to July).
.|
B Pensions |As part of the regular management and [The Committee will receive regular updates on ESG 05-Sep-2025 Kate Limna; 31-Mar-2026
3b monitoring of investment mandates, the |standings amongst its appointed investment managers Sarah Port
nagement and |Pensions Committee and responsible |from the Investment Consultant on a quarterly basis.
nitoring of officers challenge investment managers |As part of the City’s Climate Action Strategy, new
Investment on ESG issues arising in the portfolio. |climate risk expectations for existing and potential
mandate The Investment Consultant will report to [investment managers have been established and these
the Committee on its monitoring of ESG [form part of the regular ongoing monitoring of
risks on a quarterly basis. managers’ performance.
CHB Pensions |There is a general commitment by the [All of the Pension Fund’s UK-based pooled fund 05-Sep-2025 Kate Limna; 31-Mar-2026
013c UK City Corporation to meeting the managers (i.e. excluding the alternative assets Sarah Port
Stewardship standards of the new 2020 UK portfolio) are signatories to the Stewardship Code.
code Stewardship Code and needs to ensure

compliance is developed. The
Committee (reviews asset stewardship
across its investment mandates on an
annual basis and uses the exercise to
encourage better ESG outcomes
amongst its existing managers (this will
need to be done in conjunction with




other committees which now have
investment oversight responsibilities).

CHB Pensions
013d Climate
Action Strategy
delivery

9/ abed

The Committee (along with other
relevant Boards/Committees) has been
assigned several key actions which will
enable the Corporation to deliver its
Climate Action Strategy. Key to this is
achieving a clear plan on how to
achieve Paris-alignment by 2040.

With the support of a specialist external consultancy
firm, an in depth review of the climate risk exposure
involving the use of scenario analysis, the development
of a transition pathway consistent with a net zero by
2040 commitment, and the establishment of
expectations for existing and potential mandates has

been completed. Fhe-transitionpathway-itself-involves
al Senes eI_speeE Ie ek of IIS “'lt ' vaIIIGHS dead ||||es “I'l'e '
Committees)willarget-overthe-coming-years- The
Corporation’s second scenario analysis is-beirg was
undertaken during 2024/25 to better understand the
latest risks and opportunities associated with the City’s
Financial investments. The current Corporation’s
pathway to net zero in 2040 and existing interim targets
are currently under review, and work will continue over
the near future to advance further the Pension Fund’s
responsible investment practices and will inform actions
for the period beyond 2027.

05-Sep-2025

Kate Limna;
Sarah Port

31-Mar-2026




Risk Code

|CHB Pensions 005 | |Risk Title Fraud

Description

Cause: (i) Not notified of death.

(ii) Staff acting inappropriately (iii) Pension transfer scams

Event: (i) Fraudulent claim of pension benefits (ii) pension benefits transferred to an inappropriate / unauthorised body.

Effect: (i) Continued payment of pensions following death.

(ii) Overpaid pensions. (iii) Financial loss for the Fund (iv) Financial loss for the scheme member (v) Financial penalties / sanctions (vi) Reputational
damage

Current Risk g @ Target Risk E () Original Risk E ()

Impact Impact Impact
— Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact
g 2 Unlikely Minor 2 Unlikely Minor 2 Unlikely Minor
?JD Green Trend Constant Green Target Date  [31-Mar-2026 Green Creation Date 17-Aug-2022
\I
Nl

Latest Note

If the death of a LGPS beneficiary is not reported, their pension may continue to be paid when there is no longer an entitlement.

This may be a deliberate failure to report the death or may be where there is no fraudulent intention, but in either case it will lead to
benefit overpayment and a potential financial loss.

05-Sep-2025
Scammers design attractive offers to persuade members to transfer their pension pot to them or to release funds from it. It is then
invested in unusual and high-risk investments or simply stolen outright.

Risk Level

Service Risk Approach Avoid

Department

Chamberlain’s Risk Owner Kate Limna




Associated Actions

005e Due
Diligence

form has been received, staff dealing with the transfer
should carry out necessary due diligence in respect of
the potential receiving scheme to ensure that the
transfer can be legally paid.

Ref No: Description Latest Note Note Date Owned By Due Date
CHB Pensions  |Robust fraud protection/detection Use of Mortality Screening Service and Tell Us Once 05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman (31-Mar-2026
005a Robust processes Service [Government initiative that allows us to be
fraud notified of a death when registered]. Participation in the
protection/detecti National Fraud Initiative. Annually sending Life
on processes Certificates to Overseas Pensioners.
CHB Pensions  |Ensuring all members that are All correspondence sent to scheme members 05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman [31-Mar-2026
005b Transfer considering transferring their benefits  |considering a transfer-out of the scheme must contain
Scam out of the scheme are made aware of |warnings in respect of transfer scams. In addition,
communications [the potential for transfer scams. website links to appropriate bodies such as the Money
Helpline and the Pensions Regulator are included as
well as any advisory literature provided by these and
similar bodies.
CHB Pensions Ensuring all staff are aware of the All staff dealing with transfers should be proficient with |05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman [31-Mar-2026
0850 Transfer guidance / instructions provided by the [the guidance / instructions that have been provided in
Q) LGA and the Pensions Regulator in respect of transfers-out of the scheme. This will help to
(@) respect of transfers-out of the scheme. |spot a transfer scam and/or prevent a payment being
@ made if there is any uncertainty about the receiving
~ scheme.
CHB Pensions Robust identity verification processes |Controls in place to verify and ensure the legitimacy of |05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman [31-Mar-2026
005d Identity any signed discharge form. This must also include
Verification timeframes in respect of how long a letter of authority
from a scheme member is valid.
CHB Pensions  |Due Diligence Once a legitimate and verified transfer-out discharge 05-Sep-2025 Graham Newman [31-Mar-2026




Risk Code

CHB Pensions 002

| [Risk Title

Actuarial valuation

Description

Cause: Inappropriate assumptions used by the Actuary/ Inaccurate data supplied to the Actuary for the triennial valuation.
Event: Unsuitable triennial actuarial valuation.

Effects: Employer contribution rates insufficient to maintain long term cost efficiency & solvency.

Current Risk g Target Risk E Original Risk E
= I = 2 = 2
Impact Impact Impact
Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact Risk Score Likelihood Impact
1 Rare Minor 1 Rare Minor 1 Rare Minor
. Green Trend Constant Green Target Date  [31-Mar-2026 Green Creation Date 17-Aug-2022
U
% The latest full actuarial valuation of the Pension Fund, using member data and investment asset information as at 31 March 2022, has
~ been completed. Using updated financial and demographic assumptions, the actuary has been able to generate an accurate picture of
© the Pension Fund’s funding position (assets compared to liabilities) which has been used to establish appropriate employer contribution
Latest Note rates for use from 1 April 2023. The next actuarial valuation will has commenced this year as at 31 March 2025, and the draft results will | 05-Sep-2025
be presented to this Committee in December 2025.
Risk Level Service Risk Approach Accept
Department Chamberlain’s Risk Owner Kate Limna
Associated Actions
Ref No: Description Latest Note Note Date Owned By Due Date
CHB Pensions  |Regular meetings with the Actuary to  [At Pensions Committee on 11 July 2022, a working 05-Sep-2025 Kate Limna; 31-Mar-2026

002a Regular

ensure that assumptions are

group was set up to discuss the preliminary triennial

valuation results and the robustness of the financial and

Graham Newman




Actuary

meetings with the

appropriate involving Officers and
Members of the Pensions Committee.

demographic assumptions used in the valuation
process. This working group met on 14 November 2022
and the draft triennial valuation results were reported to
the Pensions Committee on 29 November 2022. The
final triennial valuation results were reported to
Committee on 8 February 2023 and the Actuary signed
the final valuation certificates on 31 March 2023. At the
Pensions Committee on 7 July 2025, a panel was set
up to discuss the preliminary 2025 triennial valuation
results and the robustness of the financial and
demographic assumptions used in the valuation
process. The panel will meet on the 22 September
2025.

data, which are held on two distinct management
information systems. As a result, errors are more easily
identified during the valuation process itself. For
example, if the scheme member data demonstrates
that a given number of scheme members belonging to
a single employer retired during the valuation period
then this should also be evident from the benefit
payments reported in the cash flow data.

CHB Pensions  |Robust Year End procedures and The Pension Fund Statement of Accounts for the year |05-Sep-2025 Kate Limna; 31-Mar-2026
002b Robust updates ending 31 March 2025 were published in draft format Graham Newman
Year End within the City Fund Accounts on the 33:-May-2024 30
%ocedures June 2025 and were-sighed-off are currently being
reviewed by the External Auditors. The Pension Fund
g annual report was will be uploaded to the website in
D Nevember2024-ahead of the statutory deadline of 1
[0e) December 2025.
©UB Pensions Checking for errors or inconsistencies |Officers review data quality prior to submission to the  [05-Sep-2025 Kate Limna; 31-Mar-2026
002c Checking [in valuation extract report before actuary. Additionally, scheme member data is Graham Newman
for errors submission to the Actuary submitted separately from employer level cash flow




Agenda Iltem 8

City of London Corporation Committee Report

Committee(s): Dated:

Pensions Committee — For Decision 3 December 2025
Local Government Pensions Board — For Information 12 January 2026
Subject: Public report:
Local Government Pension Scheme — Transfers-out of For Information

the scheme: processes and precautions

This proposal:
e provides statutory duties
e provides business enabling functions

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or No

capital spending?

If so, how much? n/a

What is the source of Funding? n/a

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the n/a

Chamberlain’s Department?

Report of: The Chamberlain

Report author: Graham Newman
Summary

In December 2024, the Pensions Committee received a report on Barnett Waddingham’s
General Code of Practice Compliance Review which checked the City of London Pension
Fund’s compliance with the Pension Regulators General Code of Practice. That report
recommended that a document be created to cover the steps taken around Transfers Out
including ensuring as much as possible that scheme members are made aware of potential
scams and take the necessary steps to protect themselves and the process and transfer of
contributions.

The document was originally brought to the Committee on 22 September 2025, however
Members asked for Section 3.2 of the document (‘Due Diligence and Scam Prevention’) to
be expanded with further details added in respect of escalation procedures, should the
Pensions Office believe the transfer cannot proceed.

The revised document is at Appendix A, with the changes underlined. It should be noted
that this is a working document, and all sections will be expanded or amended, as required

Recommendation
Members are asked to approve the City of London Pension Fund Transfers-out document.

Appendices:

Appendix A: City of London Pension Fund Transfers-out document.

Graham Newman Pensions Manager | Chamberlain’s Department
T:020 7332 1132 E: graham.newman@ecityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 81


mailto:graham.newman@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 82



APPENDIX A

x’$ 4\ 4-;3;

4’@\

TN ]

)\
(

ClTY
LONDON

The City of London Pension Fund

Transfers-out of the scheme:
processes and precautions

September 2025

Page 83




Actions and precautions when transferring benefits out of the pension scheme

1. Introduction

The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is a defined benefit public sector
pension scheme governed by the LGPS Regulations 2013. Transfers out of the
scheme are permitted under specific conditions and require careful administration to
ensure compliance, scheme member protection, and scheme integrity.

The Pensions Office plays a critical role in safeguarding scheme members' pension
rights during transfers. By adhering to regulatory requirements, conducting thorough
due diligence, and prioritising scheme member protection, administrators ensure the
integrity of the scheme and the financial security of its scheme members

2. Eligibility and Conditions for Transfer

The Pensions Office must confirm that the scheme member meets the statutory
conditions for transfer:

e The scheme member must be deferred (no longer contributing to the LGPS).

o« Transfers must be made to an HMRC-registered pension scheme or
a Qualifying Recognised Overseas Pension Scheme (QROPS).

o Transfers are only allowed if the scheme member is at least one year away
from their Normal Pension Age.

« Scheme members cannot transfer their benefits if they are already receiving
LGPS pension benefits or have retired due to ill health and received Tier 3
benefits.

3. Required Actions by the Pensions Office

3.1. Provide Transfer Quotations

o Calculate and issue a transfer value quotation, guaranteed for three months
from the calculation date.

e Include a written option form and relevant documentation for the receiving
scheme

3.2. Due Diligence and Scam Prevention
e Conduct due diligence checks on the receiving scheme.

e Assess for signs of pension scams, including how the scheme member was
contacted and advised.

o If risks are identified, the Pensions Office must pause or refuse the transfer.
Risks are divided into Red and Amber Flags

« Red flags: Indicators of high scam risk. If a red flag is identified the
transfer must be refused. Examples include:

Page 84



« Member pressured to transfer quickly;

« Receiving scheme offers incentives or loans;

« Evidence of scam activity.

« Amber flags: Indicators of potential risk. If an amber flag is identified,
the scheme member must obtain quidance from MoneyHelper before
the transfer can proceed. Examples include:

o Complex investment structures;

¢ Qverseas investments:

o Unclear or inconsistent information from the receiving scheme.

3.3. Escalation Procedures

e« Step 1: Initial Due Diligence

e Collect all required information from the member and the receiving
scheme.

¢ Check statutory conditions for transfer and identify any amber or red
flags.

e Step 2: If Amber Flags Are Found

e Inform the member in writing that they must obtain MoneyHelper
quidance.

« Do not proceed until confirmation of guidance is received.

« Document all communications and decisions.

e Step 3: If Red Flags Are Found

 Refuse the transfer under statutory rules.

« Notify the member in writing, explaining the reason for refusal and their
right to complain.

 Record the decision and rationale for audit purposes.

« Consider reporting to Action Fraud if scam activity is suspected.

e Step 4: Reporting Obligations

o Apply the traffic light framework for breaches:

« Red breach: Must report to The Pensions Requlator.

o Amber breach: Use judgment; may need to report.

Page 85



3.4. Financial Advice Requirement

If the transfer value exceeds £30,000, the Pensions Office must ensure the
scheme member has received independent financial advice from an FCA-
authorised adviser

Maintain records of the advice confirmation before proceeding.3.4. Scheme member
Communication

Clearly explain the implications of transferring from a defined benefit to a
defined contribution scheme, including loss of guaranteed benefits and survivor
pensions

Encourage scheme members to consult MoneyHelper or Pension Wise for
guidance.

4. Precautions and Safeguards

4.1. Scam Protection Measures

Follow the Pensions Regulator's guidance on scam  prevention
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/pension-scams .

Invite scheme members to attend a meeting to discuss the concerns if risks are
suspected

4.2. Regulatory Compliance

Ensure all actions comply with LGPS Regulations 2013, particularly Part 2
(Administration) https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/2356/part/2 and

Part 2 Chapter 7 (Transfers)
https://www.leqislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/2356/part/2/chapter/7

Maintain accurate records of all communications, calculations, and decisions.

4.3. Club Transfers (generally transfers between public sector pension schemes)

If transferring to another public service pension scheme, apply Club transfer
rules for equivalent benefit treatment.

Ensure the transfer is initiated within 12 months of joining the new scheme and
there is no break exceeding five years

5. Additional Considerations

AVCs (Additional Voluntary Contributions) may be transferred separately,
subject to specific conditions

Transfers related to the McCloud remedy must be handled with care, as
protections vary across the different pension schemes to which the Remedy

may apply.

Page 86


https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/pension-scams
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/2356/part/2
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/2356/part/2/chapter/7

Agenda Item 9

Committee(s): Dated:
Audit and Risk Management Committee — For decision 15/09/2025
Finance Committee — For decision 16/09/2025
Pensions Committee — For decision 22/09/2025
Local Government Pensions Board — For Information 12/01/2026
Subject: City Fund and Pension Fund — Statement of Public

Accounts, Audit Findings and external auditor's Annual
Audit Report 2024-25

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate N/A
Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly?

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or No

capital spending?

If so, how much? N/A

What is the source of Funding? N/A

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the N/A

Chamberlain’s Department?

Report of: The Chamberlain For Decision (Audit and
Report author: Risk, Pensions and
Daniel Peattie, Assistant Director — Strategic Finance Finance)

lain Jenkins - Chief Accountant

Summary

The draft Statement of Accounts for the City Fund and Pension Fund were presented
to Audit and Risk Management Committee on 14 July 2025. This report provides an
update on the audit of the Accounts, any changes and the Auditor’s findings.

The audited 2024-25 City Fund Statement of Accounts are presented in Appendix 1
for approval. This set of accounts reflects the changes agreed with the auditors as part
of their work.

The Audit Findings Reports from Grant Thornton are presented at Appendix 2 (in
respect of the City Fund audit) and Appendix 3 (in respect of the Pension Fund audit).
These documents summarise the results of the audit and include the auditor’s
recommendation and details of any audit adjustments which have been made to the
accounts. A copy of the draft Management Representation letter for the Pension Fund
is presented at Appendix 4. The draft Management Representation letter for the City
Fund is included within the Audit Findings Report at Appendix 2.

The external auditor's Annual Audit Report summarises all of the work that Grant
Thornton have undertaken in relation to the City Fund during 2024-25. This is
presented at Appendix 5. The Annual Audit Report includes their commentary on the
City Fund’s Value for Money (VfM) arrangements.

Recommendation(s)

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is asked to:

Page 87




e Recommend approval of the 2024-25 Statement of Accounts to Finance
Committee.

e Delegate authority to the Chamberlain, in consultation with the Chairman and
Deputy Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee, approval of any
material changes to the financial statements required before the signing of the
audit opinion by Grant Thornton, which is expected by 30" September 2025.

e Consider the Audit Findings Report for the City Fund and Pension Fund 2024-25
as set out in Appendix 2 and Appendix 3.

e Approve the management representation letter for the City Fund as set out on
pages 52-55 of Appendix 2, and the management representation letter for the
Pension Fund as set out in Appendix 4.

e Consider the Auditor's Annual Audit Report 2024-25 as set out in Appendix 5

The Pensions Committee is asked to:

e Consider the Audit Findings Report for the Pension Fund 2024-25 as set out in
Appendix 3.

The Finance Committee is asked to:

e Recommend approval of the 2024-25 Statement of Accounts to Finance
Committee.

e Delegate authority to the Chamberlain, in consultation with the Chairman and
Deputy Chairman of the Finance Committee, approval of any material changes to
the financial statements required before the signing of the audit opinion by Grant
Thornton, which is expected by 30" September 2025.

e Consider the Audit Findings Report for the City Fund and Pension Fund 2024-25
as set out in Appendix 2 and Appendix 3.

The Local Government Pensions Board is asked to:

e Note the Audit Findings Report for the Pension Fund 2024-25 as set out in
Appendix 3

Main Report

Background and current position

1. The update provided to the Audit and Risk Management Committee on 14" July
2025 presented the draft 2024-25 City Fund Statement of Accounts to the
Committee. That report set out the key elements within the City Fund accounts.
The key points to note since that date are set out in paragraphs 2 to 13 below

Public Inspection period

Page 88



. The draft, unaudited 2024-25 Statement of Accounts for the City Fund, which
includes the accounts for the Pension Fund, were published on the City of London
Corporation’s website on 30 June 2025. Publishing these accounts by 30 June
2025 met the statutory requirements set out in the Accounts and Audit Regulations
2015 and the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2022.

Following the publication of the City Fund Statement of Accounts a period of public
inspection was undertaken, as required by the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014. The inspection period commenced on Tuesday 1st June and ran for 30
working days, concluding on 11th August 2025. During the inspection period,
members of the public had the opportunity to inspect the accounts, and also to
question the auditor or raise objections. No inspection requests, questions or
objections were received during the public inspection period.

Audit of the 2024-25 Accounts

. The audit of the 2024-25 Statement of Accounts commenced in June 2025 and

has been undertaken by Grant Thornton.

. The updated version of the 2024-25 Statement of Accounts for the City Fund and
Pension Fund is provided in Appendix 1.

. This revised version incorporates the following changes and adjustments to the
City Fund accounts which have been identified during the audit and results in a
total increase in Total Comprehensive (Income) and Expenditure of £90.4m due
to:

Description Effect on
Comprehensive
Income & Effect on Balance Sheet
Expenditure
Statement

Pensions Liability — Application of asset | Dr Remeasurement of | Cr Pension Liability
ceiling under IFRIC 14, resulting in | Pension Liability -£90.4m
remeasurement of pensions liability £90.4m
Rents received in advance — Correction | Nil Dr Long Term rents received in
between long term and short-term balances advance

£1.3m

Cr Short Term rents received in

advance

-£1.3m
Assets under construction (AUC) — The | Nil Dr Intangible Assets
AUC balance in the draft accounts was £6.2m
classified as Property Plant & Equipment
AUC, but some of it related to Investment Dr Investment Props
Properties and Intangible assets. This is £13m
now reclassified on the balance sheet

Cr PPE

-£19.2m
Total Dr £90.4m Cr £90.4m

Further details on these audit adjustments can be seen on page 46 of the audit
findings report at Appendix 2. These adjustments have nil effect on the General
Fund balance.

Page 89



8. Grant Thornton’s Audit Findings Report is presented at Appendix 2 in respect of
the City Fund audit and at Appendix 3 in respect of the Pension Fund audit.

9. The Audit Findings Report from prior year audits contained thirteen
recommendations. Eight of these have now been implemented, and five remain
open. Actions to address these remaining recommendations are in place for 2025-
26 and these are set out on pages 43-45 of Appendix 2. Two additional
recommendations have been made this year and these are shown on pages 41-
42 of the Audit Findings Report.

10.Additional measures to prevent such adjustments in the future are being
implemented through a training programme, with assistance from Grant Thornton.

Auditor's Annual Report and Value for Money (VM) opinion

11.The auditors are required to report their commentary on the City Fund’s
arrangements under specified criteria in relation to VM —

a. Financial sustainability
b. Governance
c. Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness (the 3 ES)

12.The full report is included as Appendix 5. Within it there was one key
recommendation raised by Grant Thronton in respect of the Housing Revenue
Account (HRA) and pressures on the remaining Reserves. See page 20 of the
report (Appendix 5). The management actions to address this are then set out on
page 34 of Appendix 5.

13.The 2023-24 VFM report included 25 improvement recommendations. Of those,
sixteen have been addressed and are now closed, four have been superseded by
the new recommendations for 2024-25 and five remain open. Of those that remain
open, one was not due to take effect in 2024-25 and one is noted as in progress.
Further detail is in Appendix 5 pages 39 to 51.

Corporate & Strategic Implications

14. The Corporate and Strategic implications are set out below:

e Strategic implications — There are no specific links to the Corporate Plan. However,
the accounts assist the City Corporation in maintaining a clear and transparent

dialogue regarding its activities with residents and other stakeholders

« Financial implications — Recommendations to improve Value for Money scrutiny are
responded to within Appendix 5. Additionally, progress is being shared with the
Efficiency and Performance Working Party, which is a member officer working group

reporting into the Finance Committee.
« Resource implications — None

« Legal implications — None

Page 90



« Risk implications — Recommendations relating to risk management are responded to
within Appendix 5.

« Equalities implications — None

o Climate implications — None

« Security implications — None
Conclusion

15. At present, there are no material queries remaining unadjusted regarding the 2024-
25 accounts. Having provided their Audit Findings Report the external auditor is
conducting final reviews of the Statement of Accounts, and an unqualified audit
opinion is expected to be issued by GT by the end of September 2025.

16.Whilst none are expected, should any material adjustments to the statement of
accounts be required before that position is reached, it is recommended that
authority to approve such amendments should be delegated to the Chamberlain in
consultation with the Chairmen and Deputy Chairmen of the Audit and Risk
Management and Finance Committees in order to ensure compliance with the
statutory requirement to sign and publish accounts by the 30" September.

Appendices

e Appendix 1 — Revised City Fund Accounts 2024-25 (Audit & Risk and Finance
Committees only)

e Appendix 2 — City Fund Audit Findings Report 2024-25 (Audit & Risk and Finance
Committees only)

e Appendix 3 — Pension Fund Audit Findings Report 2024-25
e Appendix 4 — Pension Fund Letter of Representation 2024-25

e Appendix 5 — City Fund Auditor’'s Annual Report 2024-25 (Audit & Risk Committee
and Finance only)

Background Papers

Audit and Risk Management Committee — 14 July 2025 — City Fund and Pension
Fund Statement of Accounts update

Daniel Peattie
Assistant Director — Strategic Finance
E: daniel.peattie @cityoflondon.gov.uk

lain Jenkins
Chief Accountant
E: iain.jenkins@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 91


mailto:daniel.peattie@cityoflondon.gov.uk
mailto:iain.jenkins@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 92



@ Grant Thornton

Audit Findings (ISA 260)
Report for City of London

Corporation Pension
~und

Year ended 31 March 2025

Date of issue: 10 September 2025



Commercial in Confidence

Q Grant Thornton

City of London Corporation Pension Fund Grgnt Thorn’Fon UK LLP
Pensions Office 8 Finsbury Circus
Chamberlain’s Department London EC2M 7EA
Guildhall

London EC2P 2EJ www.grantthornton.co.uk

Dear Alderman Prem Goyal OBE,

Audit Findings for City of London Corporation Pension Fund for the 31 March 2025

o
is Audit Findings Report presents the observations arising from the audit that are significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the
ancial reporting process and confirmation of auditor independence, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260. Its contents will be discussed with

@anagement and the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

'Es auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), which is directed towards forming and
expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the
financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However,
where, as part of our testing, we identify control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all defalcations
or other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. This report has been
prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss
occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any
other purpose.

Chartered Accountants

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 8 Finsbury Circus, London EC2M 7EA. A
list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK
LLPis a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the
member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 2



Commercial in Confidence

Q Grant Thornton

We encourage you to read our transparency report which sets out how the firm complies with the requirements of the Audit Firm Governance Code and the steps we
have taken to manage risk, quality and internal control particularly through our Quality Management Approach. The report includes information on the firm’s
processes and practices for quality control, for ensuring independence and objectivity, for partner remuneration, our governance, our international network
arrangements and our core values, amongst other things. This report is available at transparency-report-2024-.pdf.

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the kind assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

Grant Patterson
ﬁ-gro nt Patterson
(@]

jrector
r Grant Thornton UK LLP

Chartered Accountants

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 8 Finsbury Circus, London EC2M 7EA. A
list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK
LLPis a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the
member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 3


https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2024-.pdf
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2024-.pdf
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2024-.pdf
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2024-.pdf
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2024-.pdf
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2024-.pdf
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2024-.pdf

Commercial in Confidence

Contents

Section Page Appendices Page
Headlines and status of the audit 05 A. Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance 52
Financial statements 09 B. Internal controls 54
Materiality 12 C. Our team and communications 55
@verview of audit risks 15 D. Logistics 56
«Q
@ther findings 28
o
Communication requirements and other responsibilities 35
Audit adjustments 40O

Independence considerations 46

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 4



Headlines and
status of the audit



Headlines

Financial statements

Introduction

These are the key findings and other matters arising from the statutory audit of
City of London Corporation Pension Fund (the ‘Pension Fund’) and the
preparation of the Pension Fund’s financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2025 for the attention of those charged with governance.

ISA Requirements

tnder the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice (the ‘Code"), we
gre required to report whether, in our opinion:

@ the Pension Fund’s financial statements give a true and fair view of the

8 financial transactions of the Pension Fund during the year ended 31 March
2025 and of the amount and disposition at that date of the fund’s assets and
liabilities; and

* have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of

Practice on Local Authority Accounting and prepared in accordance with the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Commercial in Confidence

Audit Work

Our audit work was completed during July — August 2025. Our findings are
summarised on page 18.

We have identified no adjustments to the financial statements that have resulted
in changes to the Pension Fund’s reported financial position. Audit adjustments
are detailed on pages 41 to 42.

We have also raised recommendations for management as a result of our audit
work. These are set out in our action plan on page 43. Our follow up of
recommendations from the prior year’s audit are detailed on pages 44 and 45.

Continued overleaf

The Audit Findings | 6



Headlines

Financial statements

Audit Work - continued

Our work is substantially complete and there are no matters of which we are
aware that would require modification of our audit opinion or material changes
to the financial statements, subject to the following outstanding matters:

» Benefits payable - receipt of BACS payment evidence for Lump Sums from the
strategic finance team;
:U senior engagement team review;
% receipt of management representation letter; and
D review of the final set of financial statements.

@e have concluded that the other information to be published with the financial
statements is consistent with our knowledge of your organisation and the
financial statements we have audited.

Our anticipated opinion on the financial statements will be unmodified.

Drafts of our anticipated opinion and the management representation letter are
reflected in a separate report for consideration by the Audit and Risk
Management Committee.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Commercial in Confidence

WAhilst our work on the Pension Fund financial statements is complete, we will be
unable to issue our final audit opinion on the Pension Fund financial statements
until the audit of the Administering Authority is complete. We are pleased to
report that we anticipate this being in September 2025, well ahead of the
statutory deadline of 27 February 2026.

We are also required to give a separate opinion for the Pension Fund Annual
Report on whether the financial statements included therein are consistent with
the audited financial statements.

The statutory deadline requires that the Pension Fund Annual Report is published
by 1 December 2025. We have received a draft of the Annual Report from the
Pension Fund and are completing our work upon it. We are therefore not yetin a
position to give this separate ‘consistency’ opinion at this time. We anticipate
being able to issue our ‘consistency’ opinion in the forthcoming weeks and
ahead of the 1 December Annual Report deadline.

We do note that whilst an opinion on the administering authority’s financial
statements can be issued by their auditor the formal certificate confirming
completion of the audit of the administering authority cannot be given until their
work on Whole of Government Accounts and our work on the Annual Report has
been completed.

The Audit Findings | 7



Headlines

Local & National Context - Administration and Governance

The total membership of the City of London Corporation Pension
Fund (the ‘Fund’) was c. 16,000 people as at the end of March
2025. Of this number around one third are active employees who
still contribute to the scheme. In total, there were 10 active
employers covered by City of London Corporation Pension Fund
at the end of March 2025.

The Fund has continued to work through the processes for
connecting to the Pensions Dashboard ecosystem and is on track
to connect to the Pensions Dashboard by the public sector
staging date of 31 October 2025. The service itself will not be
released to the general public until a later date. Schemes will be
Wven at least 6 months notice before the public go-live date.

%he Fund has continued to implement the McCloud remedy. No
significant issues have been encountered. The Pensions Office has
@ plemented the Remedy in respect of active scheme members
Ghd all retirements that have occurred since the implementation
date (i.e. 1 October 2023) have been processed on this basis.

At the time of writing, the Pensions Office, is currently working on
the 2025 Annual Benefit Statements (ABS), which for eligible
active and deferred scheme members must be provided by 31
August 2025, and these will reflect the estimated underpin
protection as provided for by the McCloud Remedy.

We have received requests from employer body auditors to
undertake work on the accuracy and completeness of the
information provided to the actuary as part of the 2024/25 IAS 19
valuation process. This work has been completed and appropriate
assurances provided.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Commercial in Confidence

Local & National Context - Investments and Funding

The net assets of the City of London Corporation Pension Fund as at the end of March 2025
amounted to £1,525.3m (31 March 2024: £1,495.8m).

The 2022 triennial valuation was undertaken by Barnett Waddingham, and showed that the
Fund had assets sufficient to cover 98% of the accrued liabilities as at 31 March 2022. The 2025
triennial valuation is now well progressed with cleansed information being provided to the
actuary in August. Preliminary results are expected in the autumn and the anticipation is that
funding levels across the sector will improve.

At the end of May 2025 the Government published its response to the ‘Fit for the Future’
consultation. Its key proposals include:

» reforming asset pooling - transferring all assets to the management of the pool alongside
taking principal investment advice from the pool and delegating implementation of the
investment strategy to the pool,

* boosting investment in local areas and regions - setting out the approach to local investment
in the Investment Strategy Statement and working with relevant Strategic Authorities to
identify suitable local investment opportunities, and

+ strengthening the governance of LGPS Administering Authorities and LGPS pools -
undertaking an independent governance review once in every three-year period, have an
independent advisor without voting rights, rather than an independent member of a
committee and prepare strategies on governance, knowledge and training and administration.

The minimum standards for pooling and the independent governance review will be introduced in
the Pension Schemes Bill which is about to enter the Committee stage in Parliament. Subsequent
regulations and statutory guidance will provide further detail on implementation of all the new
requirements.

The Fund is in the London CIV pool and already well advanced with pooling. During 2024/25 the
Fund continued to move assets into the pool. As at 2024/25 year end, there are 3 new
Investments, 2 of which were through the London CIV (Level 2) and one Infrastructure Manager
(Level 3). Pooled funds with the London CIV now represent £845.3m of the funds £1,502.1m net
investment assets, i.e. 56% of the funds net investment assets. We will track progress against the

other proposals once regulations and guidance are finalised. .
The Audit Findings | 8



Financial statements

The Audit Findings | ¢



Financial statements

Overview of the scope of our audit

This Audit Findings Report presents the observations arising from the audit
that are significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to
oversee the financial reporting process, as required by International Standard
n Auditing (UK) 260 and the NAO Code of Audit Practice (the ‘Code’). Its
acontents will be discussed with management and the Audit and Risk
%Monogement Committee.

FAs auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with

Snternotionol Standards on Auditing (UK) and the Code, which is directed
towards forming and expressing an opinion on the financial statements that
have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with
governance. The audit of the financial statements does not relieve
management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements.

For City of London Corporation Pension Fund, the Audit and Risk
Management Committee fulfil the role of those charged with governance. We
note that there is a separate Pension Committee which considers the draft
financial statements and is part of the overall member oversight process.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Commercial in Confidence

Audit approach

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Pension
Fund’s business and is risk based, and in particular included:

e an evaluation of the Pension Fund’s internal controls environment,
including its IT systems and controls; and

* Substantive testing on significant transactions and material account
balances, including the procedures outlined in this report in relation to the
key audit risks.

The Audit Findingg 10



Commercial in Confidence

Financial statements (continued)

Conclusion Acknowledgements
We have substantially completed our audit of your financial statements and We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the
subject to outstanding queries being resolved, we anticipate issuing an assistance provided by the finance team and other staff.

unqualified audit opinion following the Audit and Risk Management
Committee meeting on 15t September 2025 and following final approval of
aythe accounts by the Finance Committee on 16" September 2025 , subject to

%the following outstanding matters:

Benefits payable- receipt of BACS payment evidence for Lump Sums from
the strategic finance team:;

. €01

senior engagement team review;

receipt of management representation letter; and

review of the final set of financial statements.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 11



Materiality

The Audit Findings | 12



Our approach to materiality

Commercial in Confidence

As communicated in our Audit Plan dated April 2025, we determined headline materiality at the planning stage as £29m based upon 2% of Gross Investment Assets
as at 31 March 2024. At year-end, we have reconsidered planning materiality based on the 2024/25 figures in the draft financial statements. We have retained the
planning materiality due to the actual value of gross investment assets changing insignificantly from the planning stage and no new risk indicators being identified.

A recap of our approach to determining materiality is set out below.

Basis for our determination of materiality

* We have determined materiality at £29m based
on professional judgement in the context of
our knowledge of the Fund, including
«Q consideration of factors such as stakeholder
® expectations, industry developments, financial
P stability and reporting requirements for the
Orfinancial statements.

* We have used 2% of gross investment assets as at
31 March 2024 as the benchmark for our
materiality.

* The benchmark percentage applied has increased
from 1.9% in the prior period audit, to 2%, based
on the fallowing factors:

— The Fund’s portfolio being primarily level 2
assets, for which market data is available for
audit purposes.

— Prior period experience noted limited findings
with no adjusted or unadjusted misstatements
raised in relation to the net assets statement.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Performance materiality

* We have determined performance materiality at
£20.3m, this is based on 70% of headline
materiality. We have not had to revise
performance materiality from the planned level.

Specific materiality for the Fund Account

* We have determined a lower separate materiality

for the fund account at £7.23m, this is based on
10% of gross expenditure (in the Fund Account) as
at March 2024. The lower specific materiality for
the fund account was applied to the audit of all
fund account transactions, except for investment
transactions , for which headline materiality was
applied. Similarly to our headline materiality we
did reconsider this based upon the draft financial
statements. Whilst expenditure has increased our
view is that this is linked to possible one-off events
which it would not be appropriate to take into
consideration when reviewing our materiality. We
have therefore not revised our Fund Account
materiality from the planned level.

Reporting threshold

* We will report to you all misstatements identified

in excess of £1.45m, in addition to any matters
considered to be qualitatively material.

The Audit Findings | 13



Commercial in Confidence

Our approach to materiality (continued)

A summary of our approach to determining materiality is set out below.

Description Amount (E) Qualitative factors considered

Materiality for the financial statements 29,000,000  The Fund’s portfolio is primarily level 2 assets, for which market data is available for audit
purposes. Prior period experience noted limited findings with no adjusted or unadjusted
misstatements raised in relation to the net assets statement.

Headline Materiality for planning equates to 2% of your gross investment assets as at 31

9-? March 2024.

«Q

D

= .-

g)erformcnce materiality 20,300,000  Performance Materiality is based on a percentage (70%) of the overall materiality.
Specific materiality for the fund account 7,230,000 The contribution and benefit structures of the Fund are not complex as there are only 20

employers in the scheme, of which the City of London Corporation itself represents 92% of
active members and of beneficiaries receiving a pension.

Materiality for the Fund Account for planning equates to 10% of gross expenditure (in the
fund account) as at 31 March 202L4.

Trivial matters - reporting threshold 1,450,000  performance Materiality is based on a percentage (70%) of the overall materiality.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 14



Overview of audit risks



Commercial in Confidence

Overview of audit risks

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK) as an identified risk of material misstatement for which the assessment of inherent risk is close to the upper end of the

spectrum due to the degree to which risk factors affect the combination of the likelihood of a misstatement occurring and the magnitude of the potential
misstatement if that misstatement occurs.

Significant classes of transactions, account balances, and disclosures, are associated with risks of material misstatement but are not always significant risks
(SCOTH).

Material only are material financial statement line items not associated with risks of material misstatement.
Other audit risks are accounts that are not associated with any SCOT + or with a material only financial statement line item or disclosure.
In the graph overleaf, we have presented the, significant risks, SCOT, material only and other risks relevant to the audit.

o
Q
«Q
>

‘\ —

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Plan | 16



Commercial in Confidence

Overview of audit risks

There have been no changes to the audit risk assessment communicated in our audit plan.

c
-:%)A ' Management override of
. Level 2 Investments controls
-
O .
< Change in Market Value .
. . Level 3| t t
é ‘ Benefits paid or payable evel 3 Investments
Investment income oL
an @ Contributions
% Cash and cash
= . equivalents )
> Transfers in . .
© Management expenses O F[nonmol Instrument @ Actuarial valuation of Fund
disclosures disclosures
3 Low COMPLEXITY High™
Glossary

Significant risk
SCOT+
Material only

Other audit risks — none identified

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Plan | 17



Overview of audit risks

Change in risk since

Level of judgement or estimation

Commercial in Confidence

Risk title Risk level Audit Plan Fraud risk uncertainty Status of work
Management override of controls Significant > v Low
Valuation of Level 3 Investments Significant «—> X High
Valuation of Level 2 Investments SCOT+ «—> X Medium
ol st ko o omied Rtrement gy, o x
§303h and cash equivalents SCOT+ «—> X Low
D
:jeneﬂts payable SCOT+ > X Low
o
Contributions receivable SCOT+ S X Low
Financial instrument disclosures SCOT+ «—> X Low

Glossary

T Assessed risk increased since audit plan
<> Assessed risk consistent with audit plan

Assessed risk decrease since audit plan

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Not likely to result in material adjustment or change to disclosures within the financial statements

Potential to result in material adjustment or significant change to disclosures within the financial statements

® Likely to result in material adjustment or significant changes to disclosures within the financial statements

The Audit Findings | 18



Commercial in Confidence

Significant risks

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK) as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In identifying risks, audit teams consider
the nature of the risk, the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

This section provides commentary on the significant audit risks communicated in the Audit Plan.

Risk identified Audit procedures performed Key observations
Management override of As part of our audit procedures, we have: We have noted one finding in relation to management override of controls.
controls 1. Reviewed accounting estimates, As documented in our follow up of prior period audit recommendations, the Fund
accordance with ISA (UK) judgements and decisions made by have made improvements during 2024/25 to its control environment for journals
40, we have identified a risk management over £100k. For those under £100k, the fund is currently willing to tolerate the risk

%f fraud in respect of in respect of detection and correction. We have looked at these and the total of
pnanagement override of _ o _ journals processed under £100k is £1.6m and therefore we are satisfied with the
Feontrols. 3. Reviewed unusual significant transactions  |ow risk of material misstatement. However, we continue to recommend that

= management implement changes to the control environment to ensure timely
detection and correction of potential errors in these entries.

2. Tested journals entries

4. Incorporated an element of
unpredictability into our audit procedures

During our testing of journal entries, we identified a highly trivial miscoding error
between Cash and Current Assets — Receivables. Had there of been a review of

journal entries below £100k, this may have been identified by the fund. However,
Igniticant we are satisfied that this is not indicative of management override of controls.

We are satisfied that judgements made by management are appropriate and
have been determined using consistent methodology.

Having assessed management judgements and estimates individually and in
aggregate we are satisfied that there is no material misstatement arising from
management bias across the financial statements.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 19



Significant risks (continued)

Risk identified

Audit procedures performed

Commercial in Confidence

Key observations

Valuation of level 3 investments

The valuations of level 3 investments are
based on unobservable inputs and hence
there is a risk of material misstatement due
to error and/or fraud.

Relevant assertion(s)
Valuation, Existence
;%pplicable assertion(s)
%Qights & Obligations, Presentation

I;\F’Ionned level of control reliance

As part of our audit procedures, we have:

1.

Evaluated management's processes for valuing Level 3
investments;

. Obtained and reviewed the audited financial statements of

the investment accounts. Where these were at a different
reporting date to the Fund’s financial statements the
valuations were compared using the accounting for
cashflows;

. Obtained and reviewed the corresponding investment

manager report as at the investment accounts and the Fund
accounts reporting dates where appropriate;

. Reviewed purchase and sale transactions of the investment

near the reporting date where appropriate;

. Reviewed the guidelines under which the investment has been

valued at the date of the investment accounts and the Fund
accounts;

. Reviewed management’s classification of the assets;

. Obtained and reviewed investment manager service auditor

report on design and operating effectiveness of internal
controls where appropriate.

We have noted no material adjustments or
findings in relation to the valuation of level 3
investments.

We are satisfied that judgements made by
management are appropriate and the
valuations have been determined using
consistent methodology.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 20



Significant Classes of Transactions

Commercial in Confidence

Significant classes of transactions, account balances, and disclosures (SCOT+s), are associated with risks of material misstatement but are not linked to a significant
risk. This section provides commentary on the SCOT+ risks communicated in the Audit Plan.

Risk identified

Audit procedures performed

Key observations

Valuation of level 2 investments

Level 2 investments do not carry the same level of inherent
risks associated with level 3 investments, however there is
still an element of judgement involved in their valuation as
-gheir very nature is such that they cannot be valued directly.
ghese assets represent a class of transaction in the financial
mtatements due to the size of the balance (£1,201m as at 31
HMarch 2025). As a result, the valuation of the Fund’s Level 2
c"@vestments have been identified as a significant class of
transactions.

Significant Class of transactions
(SCOT+)

Relevant assertion(s)

Existence, Valuation

Applicable assertion(s)

Rights & Obligations, Presentation
Planned level of control reliance

None

As part of our audit procedures, we have:

1.

Agreed the valuation to the confirmation received from
the investment manager;

2. Agreed the valuation back to quoted prices at year-

w

end where available;

. Compared the valuation to purchase and sale

transactions near the reporting date (where
appropriate);

. Reviewed the guidelines under which the investment

has been valued (where appropriate);

. Obtained and reviewed a service auditor’s report on

internal controls for the investment manager (where
appropriate);

. Reviewed management’s classification in the fair value

hierarchy for a sample of level 2 investments;

. No additional detailed testing was performed beyond

the planned procedures as we have obtained sufficient
assurance.

We have noted no material
adjustments or findings in relation to
level 2 investments.

We are satisfied that judgements
made by management are
appropriate and have been
determined using consistent
methodology.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 21



Commercial in Confidence

Significant Classes of Transactions (continued)

Risk identified

Audit procedures performed

Key observations

Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits
disclosure — IAS 26

The disclosure of the Fund’s Actuarial Present Value of
Promised Retirement Benefits is an accounting estimate and
is sensitive to changes in key assumptions. As an actuarial
valuation has not been prepared at the date of the financial
statements IAS 26 requires the most recent valuation (which
ould be based on IAS 19, not the pension fund’s funding
gssumptions) to be used as a base and the date of the
aluation disclosed (net assets of £160m as at 31 March

12025). The Pension Fund engage the services of a qualified
Fetctuary to develop an IAS 26 compliant estimate of the
%isclosure. As a result, it has been identified as a significant
class of transactions.

Significant Class of transactions
(SCQOT+)

Relevant assertion(s)

Valuation

Applicable assertion(s)
Presentation

Planned level of control reliance

None

As part of our audit procedures, we have:

1.

Updated our understanding of the processes and
controls put in place by management to ensure that
the Fund’s Actuarial Present Value of Promised
Retirement Benefits is not materially misstated;

2. Evaluated the instructions issued by management to

their management expert (an actuary) for this
estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work;

. Assessed the competence, capabilities and

objectivity of the actuary who carried out the Fund’s
valuation;

. Assessed the accuracy and completeness of the

information provided by the Fund to the actuary to
estimate the liability;

. Tested the consistency of disclosures with the

actuarial report from the actuary; and

. Undertaken procedures to confirm the

reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made
by reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as
auditor’s expert) and performing any additional
procedures suggested within the report.

We have noted no material
adjustments or findings in relation to
the actuarial present value of
promised retirement benefits
disclosure (IAS 26).

We are satisfied that judgements
made by management are
appropriate and have been
determined using consistent
methodology.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 22



Commercial in Confidence

Significant Classes of Transactions (continued)

Risk identified Audit procedures performed Key observations

Cash and cash equivalents As part of our audit procedures, we have: We have noted no material
adjustments or findings in relation to
the cash and cash equivalents

2. Obtained monthly bank reconciliations as at the year-end and for balance.

one month post year-end; and

The receipt and payment of cash represents 1. Obtained direct confirmations for all bank accounts;
a significant class of transactions occurring
throughout the year, culminating in the year-
end balance for cash and cash equivalents

reported on the Net Asset Statement. 3. Reconciling items we deemed to be immaterial and as such did not
Y require confirmation of clearance through the bank account after the
Significant Class of transactions year-end

(SCOT+)

I{ﬁelevcmt assertion(s)
Existence, Completeness
Applicable assertion(s)
Rights & Obligations, Presentation
Planned level of control reliance

None

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 23



Commercial in Confidence

Significant Classes of Transactions (continued)

Risk identified

Audit procedures performed

Key observations

Benefits payable

Pension benefits payable represents a
significant percentage of the Fund’s
expenditure.

Significant Class of transactions
(SCOT+)

‘%elevont assertion(s)

Eccuracg

cE’pplicc:ble assertion(s)
Completeness, Occurrence, Presentation
Planned level of control reliance

None

As part of our audit procedures, we have:

1.

Evaluated the Fund's accounting policy for recognition of pension
benefits expenditure for appropriateness;

. Gained an understanding of the Fund's system for accounting for

pension benefits expenditure and evaluate the design of the
associated controls;

. Tested a sample of lump sums and associated individual pensions in

payment by reference to member files; and

. Tested relevant member data to gain assurance over management

information to support a predictive analytical review with reference
to changes in pensioner numbers and increases applied in year to
ensure that any unusual trends are satisfactorily explained.

At the time of writing, we have not
noted any material adjustments or
findings in relation to the benefits

payable balance.

However, the conclusion of our audit
findings is pending the receipt of
BACS payment evidence for Lump
Sums from the strategic finance team.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 24



Commercial in Confidence

Significant Classes of Transactions (continued)

Risk identified

Audit procedures performed

Key observations

Contributions receivable

As part of our audit procedures, we have:

Contributions from employers and employees 1. Evaluated the Fund's accounting policy for recognition of

represents a significant percentage of the
Fund’s revenue. As a result, it has been
identified as a significant class of
transactions.

Significant Class of transactions

(SCOT+)

|:Qelevc: nt assertion(s)

Completeness

Applicable assertion(s)

Accuracy, Occurrence, Presentation
Planned level of control reliance

None

contributions for appropriateness;

2. Gained an understanding of the Fund's system for accounting for
contribution income and evaluate the design effectiveness of the
associated controls;

3. Tested a sample of contributions to source data to gain assurance
over their accuracy and occurrence; and

L. Tested relevant member data to gain assurance over management
information to support a predictive analytical review with reference
to changes in member body payrolls and the number of contributing
employees to ensure that any unusual trends are satisfactorily
explained.

We have noted no material adjustments or
findings in relation to the contributions
receivable balance.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 25



Commercial in Confidence

Significant Classes of Transactions (continued)

Risk identified Audit procedures performed Key observations
Financial instrument disclosures As part of our audit procedures, we have: We have noted no material
Financial instrument and associated risk 1. Updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in adjustments or findings in relation to

disclosures provide crucial information to
allow users to understand and evaluate:

* The significance of financial instrumentsto 2.
the entity’s financial position and
performance. 3

o
® The nature and extent of risks from

% financial instruments during, and at the 4
= close of, the reporting period.

=

o

How the Fund manages these risks. 5

Significant Class of transactions
(SCOT+)

Relevant assertion(s)

Accuracy

Applicable assertion(s)
Completeness, Presentation
Planned level of control reliance

None

place by management to prepare the financial instrument
disclosures;

Documented and evaluate the Fund’s accounting policies for
appropriateness and consistency;

. Evaluated the instructions issued by management to their

management expert/information provider for these disclosures;

. Tested the consistency of disclosures with the actuarial report from

the actuary; and

. For all material financial instrument disclosures we have confirmed

they are disclosed in accordance with IFRS 7, measured in
accordance with IFRS 9 and classified in accordance with CIPFA
guidance on IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

the financial instrument disclosures.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 26



Rebuttal of presumed risks

Risk

Risk relates to

Audit team’s assessment

Commercial in Confidence

Final audit procedures

The revenue
cycle includes
fraudulent
transactions

6TT obed

The expenditure
cycle includes
fraudulent
transactions

Under ISA (UK) 240 thereis a
rebuttable presumed risk that revenue
may be misstated due to the improper
recognition of revenue

Practice Note 10 (PN10) states that as
most public bodies are net spending
bodies, then the risk of material
misstatements due to fraud related to
expenditure may be greater than the
risk of material misstatements due to
fraud related to revenue recognition.
As a result under PN10, there is
requirement to consider the risk that
expenditure may be misstated due to
the improper recognition of
expenditure.

We have identified and completed a risk assessment of all revenue streams
for the Fund. We have rebutted the presumed risk that revenue may be
misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue for all revenue
streams, because:

* thereis little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition;

* opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited; and

* the culture and ethical frameworks of public sector bodies, including the
Fund, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable.

Therefore, we do not consider this to be a significant risk for the Pension
Fund.

We have identified and completed a risk assessment of all expenditure
streams for the Fund. We have considered the risk that expenditure may be
misstated due to the improper recognition of expenditure for all expenditure
streams and concluded that there is not a significant risk, because:

* thereis little incentive to manipulate expenditure recognition;

* opportunities to manipulate expenditure recognition are very limited; and

* the culture and ethical frameworks of public sector bodies, including the
Fund, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable.

Therefore, we do not consider this to be a significant risk for the Pension
Fund.

At planning we did not
consider this to be a
significant risk for the
Fund and that standard
audit procedures would be
carried out. We have
continued to review this
rebuttal throughout the
audit to ensure this
judgement remains
appropriate and are
satisfied that it does.

At planning we did not
consider this to be a
significant risk for the
Fund and that standard
audit procedures would be
carried out. We have
continued to review this
rebuttal throughout the
audit to ensure this
judgement remains
appropriate and are
satisfied that it does.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 27



Other findings



Commercial in Confidence

Other findings — key judgements and estimates

This section provides commentary on key estimates and judgements in line with the enhanced requirements for auditors.

Summary of management’s approach

Level 3 investments - £301.1m
The Pension Fund has investments in Infrastructure funds, Pooled property funds and Private equity funds that total £301.1m on the net assets statement at year-
end.

Management receive quarterly performance reports which are reviewed and subsequently presented to the Pensions Committee, providing scrutiny of estimates.
Investment managers will periodically provide update reports for committee meetings — providing an opportunity for officers and members to challenge unusual
ﬁovements or assumptions.

ghese investments are not traded on an open exchange/market and the valuation of the investment is highly subjective due to a lack of observable inputs. To
letermine the value, management rely on the valuations provided by the investment managers.

O

Bhe value of the investment has increased by £79.3m in 2024/25, largely due to an in-year investment of £75.0m into an open-ended Infrastructure Fund in
Hanuary 2025 as part of the strategic asset allocation. To fund the new investment, the Pension Fund fully disinvested from Lindsell Train and made a drawdown
from equity manager C Worldwide (both of which were Level 2 assets) and used Cash in the Bank Account.

/

In response to management’s approach, we have:

1. Reviewed the audited financial statements of the investment accounts. Where there were different reporting dates, cashflows have been considered in the
comparison

2. Ensured consistency of the investment management report with the financial statements
3. Compared the valuation to purchase and sale transactions of the investment near the reporting date (where appropriate)

continued overleaf

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 29



Commercial in Confidence

Other findings — key judgements and estimates (continued)

4. Reviewed the guidelines under which the investment has been valued at the date of the investment accounts and fund accounts
5. Obtained and reviewed investment manager service auditor reports on design and operating effectiveness of internal controls where appropriate
6. Evaluated the reasonableness of any increase/decrease in valuation of the estimate, using relevant indices where appropriate

In undertaking this approach, we have also considered the completeness and accuracy of the underlying information used to determine the estimate, in addition
to the impact of any changes to valuation method from the prior period (if applicable).

T

&Ve have also confirmed that the sensitivities disclosed in the notes to the accounts are reasonable and in line with the CIPFA Code, and the estimate is adequately

Myisclosed in the financial statements.
H
N
N

Assessment

® [Green] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

Assessment Key

® [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious
® [Green]  We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 30



Commercial in Confidence

Other findings — key judgements and estimates (continued)

Summary of management’s approach

Level 2 investments - £1,201m

The Pension Fund has investments in the LCIV Pool that total £1,201m on the net assets statement at year-end.

Management receive quarterly performance reports which are reviewed and subsequently presented to the Pensions Committee, providing scrutiny of estimates.
Investment managers will periodically provide update reports for committee meetings — providing an opportunity for officers and members to challenge unusual
movements or assumptions.

These investments involve inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly. The
investments are not traded on an open exchange/market and the valuation of the investment is subjective. In order to determine the value, investment managers
nake use of evaluated price feeds.

L%he value of the investment has decreased by £61m in 2024/25, largely due to in-year disinvestment from Lindsell Train and a drawdown from equity manager C
Worldwide, in order to help invest £75.0m into an open-ended Infrastructure Fund (Level 3 asset) in January 2025 as part of the asset allocation. Note the level 3
%set was also funded by Cash in the Bank Account.

/

In response to management’s approach, we have:

1. Ensured consistency of the investment management report with the financial statements;

2. Agreed the valuation back to quoted and/or publicly published prices at year-end where available;

3. Compared the valuation to purchase and sale transactions of the investment near the reporting date (where appropriate); and
L. Reviewed the guidelines under which the investment has been valued at the date of the investment accounts and fund accounts

continued overleaf

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 31



Commercial in Confidence

Other findings — key judgements and estimates (continued)

5. Obtained and reviewed investment manager service auditor reports on design and operating effectiveness of internal controls where appropriate

6. Evaluated managements classification within the fair value hierarchy

In undertaking this approach, we have also considered the completeness and accuracy of the underlying information used to determine the estimate, in addition
to the impact of any changes to valuation method from the prior period (if applicable).

e have also confirmed that the sensitivities disclosed in the notes to the accounts are reasonable and in line with the CIPFA Code, and the estimate is adequately
(QQdiscIosed in the financial statements.

®
e

® [Green] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

Assessment Key
® [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious
® [Green]  We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 32



Other findings — Information Technology

Commercial in Confidence

This section provides an overview of results from our assessment of the Information Technology (IT) environment and controls therein which included identifying risks
from IT related business process controls relevant to the financial audit. This table below includes an overall IT General Control (ITGC) rating per IT application and
details of the ratings assigned to individual control areas. For further detail of the IT audit scope and findings please see separate ‘IT Audit Findings’ report.

ITGC control area rating

Overadll Technology acquisition, Related
ITGC Security development and Technology  significant
IT application Level of assessment performed rating management maintenance infrastructure  risks/other risks
General ITGC assessment (design, implementation and Management
dger - operating effectiveness). * override of
racle E- controls

%usiness Suite

Prepared in conjunction with the City of London
Corporation's (administering authority) general

*See overleaf

= ledger. Noting that the Oracle E-Business Suite for non -
ol system is hosted by the City of London Corporation significant
and used by the City of London Corporation deficiency
Pension Fund.
Pension ITGC assessment (design and implementation Contributions

Administration
System - Altair

effectiveness only)

receivable,
Benefits payable
and the actuarial
valuation

Assessment:
©® [Red]

Significant deficiencies identified in IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements

Non-significant deficiencies identified in IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements/significant deficiencies identified but with sufficient
mitigation of relevant risk
IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements judged to be effective at the level of testing in scope

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 33



Commercial in Confidence

Other findings — Information Technology

Additional procedures carried out to address risks arising from our findings

The Oracle E-Business Suite application’s technology infrastructure
was noted to have a non-significant deficiency related to there being
a lack of formal documentation for batch job changes. This is detailed
further in our separate ‘IT Audit Findings’ report which has been
shared with management. There was no direct impact on the planned
financial audit approach of the Fund. We have also provided
suggestions for improving password controls.

s recommendation was also raised in the prior period and is
@herefore detailed in our follow up of prior period recommendations on
@ages 44 to 4b.

=
N
o

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 34



Communication requirements
and other responsibilities



Commercial in Confidence

Other communication requirements

Issue Commentary
1 Matters in relation to * We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit and Risk Management Committee. We have not been made
fraud aware of any other incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures
2 Matters in relation to We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed

related parties

w

Matters in relation to laws
and regulations

The unintended exclusion of some casual workers from the LGPS by the City of London Corporation may have led to non-
compliance with employment and pension regulations. The matter was reported by the Fund Employer (i.e. the City of
London Corporation) to the Pensions Regulator as a breach in pensions regulations. The Regulator advised that “where an
employer has identified an error or failed to carry out their enrolment duties, they must rectify the error as it did not occur”. A
remediation process is in place. A remediation process is in place. On this basis we were satisfied that no further action was
required from us as the Fund's auditors and that no additional risks were identified.

You have not made us aware of any other incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not
identified any incidences from our audit work

+82T obed

Written representations

A letter of representation has been requested from the Pension Fund. This will be shared with management and the Audit &
Risk Management Committee informed at its meeting that there were no specific representations requested beyond those
normally sought, which is an report item at this committee.

This will be signed alongside the final draft of the financial statements in advance of the conclusion of the audit.

5 Confirmation requests
from third parties

We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to their custodian and investment managers. This
permission was granted and the requests were sent. All requests were returned with positive confirmation and no alternative
procedures were required.

We requested management to send letters to those internal legal counsel who worked with the Pension Fund during the year.
All responses have been received with no issues noted.

6 Disclosures

Qur review found no material omissions in the financial statements

Significant disclosures in the 2024/25 statutory financial statements include the Fair Value Hierarchy, Actuarial Present Value
of Promised Retirement Benefits, Uncertainty and risk disclosures

© 2025 Grant Thornton UKLLP

The Audt Findings 136



Commercial in Confidence

Other communication requirements (continued)

Going Concern

Our responsibility

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
assumption in the preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity’s ability
to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK) 570).

In performing our work on going concern, we have had reference to Statement of Recommended Practice — Practice Note 10: Audit of financial statements of
TPublic sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2024). The Financial Reporting Council recognises that for particular sectors, it may be necessary to clarify
ﬁﬁow auditing standards are applied to an entity in a manner that is relevant and provides useful information to the users of financial statements in that sector.
(MPractice Note 10 provides that clarification for audits of public sector bodies.

II:EJchtice Note 10 sets out the following key principles for the consideration of going concern for public sector entities:

R the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of significant focus of the auditor’s time and resources because the applicable financial
reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis for accounting will apply where the entity’s services will continue to be delivered by the public
sector. In such cases, a material uncertainty related to going concern is unlikely to exist, and so a straightforward and standardised approach for the
consideration of going concern will often be appropriate for public sector entities

» for many public sector entities, the financial sustainability of the reporting entity and the services it provides is more likely to be of significant public interest
than the application of the going concern basis of accounting.

Practice Note 10 states that if the financial reporting framework provides for the adoption of the going concern basis of accounting on the basis of the anticipated
continuation of the provision of a service in the future, the auditor applies the continued provision of service approach set out in Practice Note 10.

continued overleaf

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 37



Other communication requirements (continued)

Going Concern

Commercial in Confidence

The financial reporting framework adopted by the Pension Fund meets this criteria, and so we have applied the continued provision of service approach. In doing

so, we have considered and evaluated:

the nature of the Pension Fund and the environment in which it operates

* the Pension Fund's financial reporting framework

the Pension Fund's system of internal control for identifying events or conditions relevant to going concern
management’s going concern assessment.

abed .

-On the basis of this work, we have obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence to enable us to conclude that:
8 a material uncertainty related to going concern has not been identified

* management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 38



Commercial in Confidence

Other responsibilities

Issue Commentary

Other information The Pension Fund is administered by the City of London Corporation (the ‘Corporation’), and the Pension Fund’s accounts form
part of the Corporation’s financial statements. We are required to read any other information published alongside the
Corporation’s financial statements to check that it is consistent with the Pension Fund financial statements on which we give an
opinion and is consistent with our knowledge of the Authority. No inconsistencies have been identified. We plan to issue an
unmodified opinion in this respect — refer to separate agenda item.

Wlatters on which we report ~ We are required to give a separate consistency opinion for the Pension Fund Annual Report on whether the financial statements
&g exception included therein are consistent with the audited financial statements.
D

The statutory deadline requires that the Pension Fund Annual Report is published by 1 December 2025. We have received a draft of
the Annual Report from the Pension Fund and are completing our work upon it. We are therefore not yet in a position to give this
separate ‘consistency’ opinion at this time. We anticipate being able to issue our ‘consistency’ opinion in the forthcoming weeks
and ahead of the 1 December Annual Report deadline.

TET

We do note that whilst an opinion on the administering authority’s financial statements can be issued by their auditor the formal
certificate confirming completion of the audit of the administering authority cannot be given until their work on Whole of
Government Accounts and our work on the Annual Report has been completed.

We are required to report if we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties as outlined in the NAO Code. We have nothing to
report on these matters.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 39



Audit adjustments



Adjusted misstatements

Commercial in Confidence

This is a summary of adjusted misstatements identified during the audit. We are required to report all non-trivial misstatements to those charged with governance.

We have noted no adjusted misstatements which impact upon the balances reported in Net Assets Statements and Fund Account.

Disclosure misstatement

Auditor recommendations

Note 17 - Funded Obligation of the Overall Pension Fund

The discount rate reported in Barnett Waddingham’s IAS 26 report is 5.85%,
whereas the draft 2024/25 Statement of Accounts (SOA) reflected a rate of
5.9%.

We recommend that management update the final version of the SOA to align
with the IAS 26 report.

Management response

This update has been processed in the final version of the SOA

Note 23 - Contingent liabilities and contractual commitments

In a case involving Virgin Media and NTL in June 2023, the High Court ruled
at a lack of evidence of actuarial confirmation would render relevant
«@mendments to affected contracted-out Defined Benefit pension schemes’
Pules invalid and void. The Court of Appeal upheld the ruling in July, with
(ng\otentioI far-reaching implications for many Defined Benefit schemes —
GAcluding Local Government Pension Schemes.

We requested management reflect upon this matter as a potential contingent
liability and update the Note 19 disclosure to reflect their judgement.

Management response

Management have deemed this to be a contingent liability and have agreed to
update the disclosure in Note 19

Note 23 - Contingent liabilities and contractual commitments

As part of our review of contractual commitments we noted a clerical error of
£2.145m, which would result in the corrected balance being £61.8m.

We recommend that management update the final version of the SOA to reflect
this.

Management response

This update has been processed in the final version of the SOA

Note 15 - Risk and risk management - Interest rate risk

As part of our review of the financial statements we noted that the bond value
differed to the amounts disclosed in Note 12 for both the current and prior
period:

2023/24 - £182.2m in Note 15 should have been £212.7m per Note 12

2024/25 - £388.9m in Note 15 should have been £203.3m per Note 12

We recommend that management update the final version of the SOA to reflect
this.

Management response

This update has been processed in the final version of the SOA

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | '+



Commercial in Confidence

Unadjusted misstatements

We are required to report all non-trivial misstatements to those charged with governance.

We have noted no unadjusted misstatements which impact upon the balances reported in Net Assets Statements and Fund Account.

@mpact of unadjusted misstatements in prior year

w
Faere were no unadjusted misstatements identified in 2023/24 which required reporting as they would not result in changes to the reported figures in the key

financial statements and the reported net assets of the Fund for the year ending 31 March 2024.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 42



Commercial in Confidence

Action plan

We have identified one recommendation for the Pension Fund as a result of issues identified during the course of our audit. We have agreed our recommendations
with management and we will report on progress on these recommendations during the course of the 2025/26 audit. The matters reported here are limited to those
deficiencies that we have identified during the course of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to you in
accordance with auditing standards.

Assessment Issue and risk Recommendations
1 ® [Green] The most recent period in which the internal audit scope included areas Management and officers should consider adding
attributable to the Pension Fund was 2019/20. The City of London Corporation the pension fund to the upcoming scope of internal
has been investing in recent years to increase the capacity and resilience of audit.

internal audit, and as a result the service is now fully resourced. Management response

Whilst there is not a formal requirement for internal audit to undertake work on Internal audit have built this into their programme of
pensions arrangements at Administering Authorities, and practice is not consistent ok for 2025/26, including a review planned for
across the sector, we believe that it is best practice to include the Pension Fund the LGPS Administration. The headline objective for
within the scope of internal audit on a regular basis. The Fund may also wish to
consider this in the wider light of Government’s expectations on governance
arrangements following the ‘Fit for Future’ consultation.

GeT obed

this work will be to provide assurance that the
governance , risk and control arrangements over
administration of the Local Government Pension
Scheme are adequate and effective.

Assessment key:

@ [Red] High — Significant effect on financial statements
Medium — Limited effect on financial statements

® [Green|] Low — Best practice

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 43



Follow up of prior year recommendations

Commercial in Confidence

This is a summary of where we identified recommendations for the Pension Fund because of issues identified during the prior year audit, and an update on actions

taken by management as a result.

Assessment Issue and risk previously communicated

Update on actions taken to address the issue

1 - Lack of formal documentation in Altair user access provisioning processes

During the audit, we noted that the Altair user access request required notification to and
approval by the Pension Manager. However, the process was not documented.

At the time of receiving the recommendation in
the prior year, the ‘Systems Administrator’ post
(which is responsible for this area of work) was

S-DU Risk still vacant and applicants to the role were
(=) 'S being sought. The post was filled in late March
® Documentation provides accountability by establishing a clear trail of who requested 2025 and since this date the Pensions Office
B access, WhO Opproved |t, Gﬂd Wheﬂ it was ngnted. Wlthout th|S dOCUmenthion, hgve been Working to formg”g document the
(@)) OCCOUHth”itg and tanSpGrenCU in access mGnGgemeht processes dre Compromised. processes used to set up New users within the

User access may not be appropriately aligned to job role requirements which may lead to Altair system.

inappropriate access within the application or underlying data.

The Authority should establish formal policies and procedures for all user access requests

and retain relevant documentation. This includes details of the required user access rights,

approver authorization, and the effective date for any access changes or removals. These

policies and procedures should be communicated to all staff to ensure that activities are

consistently performed, logged, and monitored.
Assessment:

v' Action completed
- Work in progress / Partially addressed
x Not yet addressed

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 44



Commercial in Confidence

Follow up of prior year recommendations

This is a summary of where we identified recommendations for the Pension Fund because of issues identified during the prior year audit, and an update on actions
taken by management as a result.

Assessment Issue and risk previously communicated Update on actions taken to address the issue
2 - Journal authorisation timeliness The Pension Fund have implemented a monthly control process to
During the 2023/2% audit, we noted that there was no defined monitor journal approvals during 2024/25.
- timeline for sending follow-up emails for approvals or for receiving Each month, journals requiring approval by a designated approver are
Q formal approval of journal entries. extracted from Oracle, and are then categorized into two groups:
L(% Risk * Transactions below £100,000
B Timeliness of journals authorisation enables the appropriate * Transactions above £100,000
~ detection and correction of errors to be addressed in a timely For transactions exceeding £100,000: a formal email is sent to the
manner. respective designated approver, with appropriate processes to escalate
We recommended that a check on authorisations being undertaken  delays in review.
is established. For transactions below £100,000: No changes have been made to the
control environment to address the risk of detection and correction of
error in these entries within a timely manner.
We recommend that a check on authorisations being undertaken is
established for transactions below £100,000.
Assessment:
v" Action completed

- Work in progress / Partially addressed
*x Not yet addressed

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 45



Independence
considerations




Commercial in Confidence

Independence considerations

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence
of the firm or covered persons (including its partners, senior managers, managers [and network firms]). In this context, we disclose the following to you:

Matter Conclusion

Our firm provides audit services to the London Collective Investment Vehicle (LCIV) We have concluded that these services would not have an impact
o on our independence, on the basis that these entities are legally
Q and operationally independent from this pension scheme. In
% addition, these services are being provided by a team which is

= separate and independent from our audit team. The result of their
% work would not have any impact in the financial statements that

are subject to our audit. We have considered that an objective
reasonable and informed third party would concur with this
conclusion.

We are required to report to you details of any breaches of the requirements of the FRC Ethical Standard, and of any safeguards applied and actions we have taken
to address any threats to independence. In this context, we confirm that there are no such matters.

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirement of the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard

Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in February 2025 which sets out supplementary
guidance on ethical requirements for auditors of local public bodies.

The Audit Findings 47
© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP |



Commercial in Confidence

Independence considerations (continued)

As part of our assessment of our independence we note the following matters:

Matter Conclusions

Relationships with Grant Thornton We are not aware of any relationships between Grant Thornton and the Fund that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our integrity, independence and objectivity.

Relationships and Investments held by individuals ~ We have not identified any potential issues in respect of personal relationships with the Fund or investments in
the Fund held by individuals.

Employment of Grant Thornton staff We are not aware of any former Grant Thornton partners or staff being employed, or holding discussions

in respect of employment, by the Fund as a director or in a senior management role covering financial,
accounting or control related areas.

qusiness relationships Grant Thornton UK LLP have been appointed as the London CIV ‘s new auditor. The London CIV are a LGPS
% asset pool for which the City of London Corporation Pension Fund are one of the 32 Shareholders. We are
= satisfied that this does not impact upon our independence (see page 47).

g Grant Thornton UK LLP moved London Offices in July 2025. The new office is within the City Of London

Corporation boundaries and business rates will be payable. As these are a statutory tax, we are satisfied that
there is no impact upon our independence.

Contingent fees in relation to non-audit services No contingent fee arrangements are in place for non-audit services provided.

Gifts and hospitality We have not identified any gifts or hospitality provided to, or received from, a member of the Fund’s
committees, senior management or staff (that would exceed the threshold set in the Ethical Standard).

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention and
consider that an objective reasonable and informed third party would take the same view. The firm and each covered person and network firms have complied with
the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

Following this consideration, we can confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements. In making the above

judgement, we have also been mindful of the quantum of non-audit fees compared to audit fees disclosed in the financial statements and estimated for the current
year.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 48



Commercial in Confidence

Fees and non-audit services

The following tables overleaf set out the total fees for non-audit services that we have been engaged to provide or charged from the beginning of the financial year to
date, as well as the threats to our independence and safeguards have been applied to mitigate these threats.

The non-audit services are consistent with the Fund’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditor.

None of the services were provided on a contingent fee basis.
For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton teams within the Grant Thornton International Limited network member firms providing
services to City of London Corporation Pension Fund. The table overleaf summarises all non-audit services which were identified. We have adequate safeguards in
Tgace to mitigate the perceived self-interest threat from these fee.

ur firm also provides audit and non-audit services to the City of London Corporation. The fees in relation to these services and the related ethical considerations are
I@ported in the Audit Findings Report issued to Those Charged With Governance (TCWG) for that entity. Consequently, such fees are disclosed in the Corporation’s
fnancial statements rather than the Pension Fund’s.
H

The Audit Findings 49
© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP



Commercial in Confidence

Fees and non-audit services

Audit fees £
Audit of Pension Fund 95,000
Total 95,000

Audit related non-audit

services £ Threats identified Safeguards applied
IAS 19 Assurance letters 1,100 Self-Interest — Work is awarded as part of the The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant
for Admitted Bodies audit contract; additional fees are not threat to independence as the total fee for this work is £1,100 in comparison to
outside of the NAO Code significant compared to the audit of the the total proposed fee for the audit of £95,000 and in particular relative to Grant
of Audit Practice financial statements and is fixed based on the Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no
T number of admitted bodies. contingent element to it. These factors all mitigate the perceived self-interest
Q Advocacy - Work is subject to internal review ~ threatto an acceptable level.
% by qualified accountants. Template letters
- and methodology are created centrally to
I support the teams in wording communications
N objectively.
Other audit related Non-
audit service 0
Total 1,100

The above fees are exclusive of VAT.
The audit fees agree to the financial statements.

We confirm that the non-audit fees pertain to IAS19 assurances for admitted bodies of the pension fund. As these costs are passed onto those admitted bodies, the
fund are effectively acting as an agent and therefore there will be no fees in PF account.

This covers all services provided by us and our network to the Fund, its directors

and senior management, that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
integrity, objectivity or independence.

The Audit Findings 50

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP |



Appendices

The Audit Findings | 51



Commercial in Confidence

A. Communication of audit matters with those charged
with governance

Our communication plan Audit Plan Audit Findings
Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those charged with governance o
Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit, form, timing and expected general content of communications P

including significant risks

Confirmation of independence and objectivity [ [

A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. Relationships and other
matters which might be thought to bear on independence. Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK L
P and network firms, together with fees charged. Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence

‘%igniﬁcont matters in relation to going concern L

RPiews about the qualitative aspects of the Fund’s accounting and financial reporting practices including accounting
ﬁolicies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

Significant findings from the audit

Significant matters and issue arising during the audit and written representations that have been sought

Significant difficulties encountered during the audit

Significant deficiencies in internal control identified during the audit

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 52



Commercial in Confidence

A. Communication of audit matters with those charged
with governance

Our communication plan Audit Plan Audit Findings
Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or which results in material misstatement of the financial P
statements

Non-compliance with laws and regulations

Unadjusted misstatements and material disclosure omissions

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter

ISA (UK) 260, as well as other ISAs (UK), prescribe matters which we are required to communicate with those charged with governance, and which we set out in
the table here.

This document, the Audit Findings, outlines those key issues, findings and other matters arising from the audit, which we consider should be communicated in
writing rather than orally, together with an explanation as to how these have been resolved.

Respective responsibilities

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on the
financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities.

Distribution of this Audit Findings Report

Whilst we seek to ensure our audit findings are distributed to those individuals charged with governance, as a minimum a requirement exists for our findings to
be distributed to all the company directors and those members of senior management with significant operational and strategic responsibilities. We are
grateful for your specific consideration and onward distribution of our report, to those charged with governance.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 53



Commercial in Confidence

B. Internal controls

We confirm that we have not identified a deficiency or a significant deficiency in our evaluation of relevant controls for 2024/25.

Relevant controls are those that auditors believe may prevent, detect or correct a material misstatement.

We are satisfied that our audit findings in relation to IT, Journals below £100k and frequency of internal audit, do not constitute deficiencies to relevant controls, in
line with the above definition.

“The purpose of an audit is for the auditor to express an opinion on the financial statements. Our audit included consideration of internal control relevant
to the preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. The matters being reported are limited to those deficiencies that the auditor has identified

during the audit and that the auditor has concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to those charged with governance.” (ISA (UK)
265)

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 54



C. Our team and communications

Grant Thornton core team

- Key contact for senior + Audit planning + On-site audit team management
management and Au.d|t and Risk * Resource management » Day-to-day point of contact
Management Committee

. » Performance management reporting + Audit fieldwork
» Overall quality assurance
Service delivery Audit reporting Audit progress Technical support
Formal * Client Surveys « The Audit Plan + Audit planning meetings » Technical updates
communications + Audit Progress and Sector Update + Audit clearance meetings
Reports + Communication of issues log

* The Audit Findings
» Auditor’s Annual Report

Informal * Open channel for discussion « Communication of audit issues as » Notification of up-coming issues
communications they arise

As part of our overall service delivery we may utilise colleagues who are based overseas, primarily in India and the Philippines. Those colleagues work on a fully integrated basis with our team members based in the UK and
receive the same training and professional development programmes as our UK based team. They work as part of the engagement team, reporting directly to the Audit Senior and Manager and will interact with you in the
same way as our UK based team albeit on a remote basis. Our overseas team members use a remote working platform which is based in the UK. The remote working platform (or Virtual Desktop Interface) does not allow
the user to move files from the remote platform to their local desktop meaning all audit related data is retained within the UK.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 55



Commercial in Confidence

D. Logistics

Audit and Risk Audit and Risk
Keg Management Pensions Management Manage
Year end: Committee: Committee: Committee: Committee:

31 March 2025 12 May 2025 7 July 2025 14 July 2025 15 September 2025

The audit timeline

Dates

Planning -

Eelsusilfie iy Final — Completion —

2025 July-August 2025 September 2025

Key elements Key elements Key elements

* Planning meeting with management to set audit scope e Audit teams onsite to complete * Draft Audit Findings issued to management

fieldwork and detailed testi
* Agree timetable and deliverables with management and Audit and Risk O e e e Audit Findings meeting with management
Management Committee ¢ Weekly update meetings

. e Draft Audit Findings issued to Audit and Risk Management
with management

* Issue the Audit Plan to management and Audit and Risk Management Committee and Pensions Committee

Committee * Issue Audit progress report and
Prog P e Audit Findings presentation to Audit and Risk Management
sector update to management

* Planning meeting with Audit and Risk Management Committee to and Audit and Risk Committee (15 September 2025)

discuss the Audit Plan (12 May 2025) Management Committee * Audit Findings presentation to Pensions Committee (22

* Planning meeting with Pensions Committee to discuss the Audit Plan (7 September 2025)

July 2025
v ) * Finalise and sign financial statements and audit report

* Document design effectiveness of systems and processes



61T obed

o Grant Thornton

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or
more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a
worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL
and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 150



Commercial in Confidence

[**Prepare on client letterhead**]

Grant Thornton UK LLP
17th Floor

103 Colmore Row
Birmingham

B3 3AG
[Date] — {TO BE DATED SAME DATE AS DATE OF AUDIT OPINION]

Dear Grant Thornton UK LLP

City of London Corporation Pension Fund
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of City of
London Corporation Pension Fund (“the Fund”) for the year ended 31 March 2025 for the purpose of
expressing an opinion as to whether the Fund financial statements give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024-25 and applicable law.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Fund’s financial statements in
accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, International Financial Reporting
Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2024-25 ("the Code"); in particular the financial statements are fairly presented
in accordance therewith.

i.  We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the Fund and these
matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the financial statements.

iii. ~ The Fund has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material
effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has been no non-
compliance with requirements of any regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on
the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.

iv.  We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control to prevent and detect fraud.

v.  Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at
fair value, are reasonable. Such accounting estimates include valuation of Level 2 and Level 3
investments. We are satisfied that the material judgements used in the preparation of the
financial statements are soundly based, in accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed in
the financial statements. We understand our responsibilities includes identifying and considering
alternative, methods, assumptions or source data that would be equally valid under the financial
reporting framework, and why these alternatives were rejected in favour of the estimate used.
We are satisfied that the methods, the data and the significant assumptions used by us in making
accounting estimates and their related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition,

Page 151



Commercial in Confidence

measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in accordance with the Code and adequately
disclosed in the financial statements.

vi.  Except as disclosed in the financial statements:
a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent;
b. none of the assets of the Fund has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged; and

c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring items
requiring sepatate disclosure.

vii.  Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards
and the Code.

viii.  All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which International

Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or disclosure have been
adjusted or disclosed.

ix.  We have considered the misclassification and disclosures changes schedule included in your
Audit Findings Report. The financial statements have been amended for these misclassifications
and disclosure changes and are free of material misstatements, including omissions.

X. Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance
with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

xi.  We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of
assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.

xii. The prior period adjustments disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements are accurate and
complete. There are no other prior period errors to bring to your attention.

xiii. We have updated our going concern assessment. We continue to believe that the Fund’s
financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis and have not identified any
material uncertainties related to going concern on the grounds that that:

a. the nature of the Fund means that, notwithstanding any intention to liquidate the Fund or
cease its operations in their current form, it will continue to be appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting because, in such an event, services it performs can be
expected to continue to be delivered by related public authorities and preparing the
financial statements on a going concern basis will still provide a faithful representation of
the items in the financial statements;

b. the financial reporting framework permits the Fund to prepare its financial statements on
the basis of the presumption set out under a) above; and

c. the Fund’s system of internal control has not identified any events or conditions relevant to
going concern.

We believe that no further disclosures relating to the Fund's ability to continue as a going
concern need to be made in the financial statements.

Information Provided

xiv.  We have provided you with:

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the
financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters;

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; and

c. access to persons within the Fund from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit
evidence.

Page 152



Commercial in Confidence

XV. We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is
aware.

XVi. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements.

xvii. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

xvii. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are
awate of and that affects the Fund, and involves:
a. management;
b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Xix. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud,
affecting the financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts,
regulators or others.

xx.  We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance
with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial
statements.

xxi.  We have drawn to your attention all correspondence and notes of meetings with regulators.

xxii.  We are not aware of any reports having been made to The Pensions Regulator by any of our
advisors.

xxiii. ~ We have disclosed to you the identity of the Fund's related patties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

XX1v. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should
be considered when preparing the financial statements.

Approval

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Fund’s Audit and Risk Management

Committee at its meeting on [**date**].

Yours faithfully

Signed on behalf of the Fund

Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 154



Agenda Item 10

City of London Corporation Committee Report

Committee(s): Dated:

Pensions Committee (For Information) 3 December 2025
Local Government Pensions Board (For Information) 12 January 2026
Subject: Public report:
Local Government Pension Scheme ‘Fair Access’ For Information

Consultation
This proposal:
e provides statutory duties
e provides business enabling functions

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or No
capital spending?

If so, how much? n/a

What is the source of Funding? n/a

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the n/a

Chamberlain’s Department?

Report of: The Chamberlain

Report author: Graham Newman
Summary

On 13 October 2025 the UK Government launched a consultation entitled 'Local
Government Pension Scheme in England and Wales: Scheme Improvements (Access
and Protections)', commonly referred to as the LGPS Fair Access Consultation.

Alongside the consultation, the Government also released draft regulations in respect
of two of the four proposals: ‘LGPS Access for Elected Mayors and Councillors’ and
the ‘New Fair Deal’. Draft regulations in respect of the remaining two proposals
(increases to the ‘Normal Minimum Pension Age’ and ‘Academies and Employer
Consolidation’) are expected later in 2025.

This report summarises the key proposals and protections outlined in the consultation,
which aims to enhance fairness, accessibility, and consistency within the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).

Recommendation

The Committee is asked to note the report and provide any feedback in relation to
this information.

Page 155



Main Report

Purpose of the Consultation

1. The consultation seeks to address key administrative and benefits-related issues,
including proposals that have been anticipated for some time, such as Fair Deal,
and newer initiatives such as the re-admission of councillors into the scheme.
The consultation closes on 22 December 2025 and can be found here.

2. The City of London does not currently intend to respond to the consultation.

3. The consultation covered four key proposals which are summarised below.

Normal Minimum Pension Age (NMPA)

4. The government proposes implementing the increase in the Normal Minimum
Pension Age from 55 to 57 from 6 April 2028, except for ill-health retirements. This
change will affect when members can access their benefits, but protections will
apply for certain members under the Protected Pension Age (PPA) provisions
outlined in the Finance Act 2022.

5. Key points of the proposal include:

All scheme members (active and deferred) in the LGPS immediately before 4
November 2021 will retain a PPA, allowing access from age 55 after 2028.
Scheme members joining on or after 4 November 2021 will not have a PPA
and will only be able to access benefits from age 57.

Transfers from non-LGPS schemes where there was an actual or prospective
right to retire at 55 will not confer a PPA in the LGPS.

The protections will be complex to administer, and administrators will need to
be able to verify scheme member status as of 4 November 2021.

Draft regulations for this change are expected later in the year.

6. The main elements of PPA are shown in the table below:

Feature Before 6 April 2028 | After 6 April 2028 Notes
NMPA 55 57 Applies to all unless
PPA applies

PPA eligibility | Based on rights Retained if eligible | Must meet qualifying
before 4 Nov 2021 conditions

Access to From 55 (if scheme From 57 (unless Depends on scheme

benefits allows) PPA applies) rules

Transfers PPA may apply to Yes, but limited to Bulk transfers may
transferred-in transferred rights preserve PPA
benefits only

LGPS Access for Elected Mayors and Councillors

7. The government proposes extending LGPS access to councillors and mayors in

England, recognising their vital public service roles.

This includes all English

Page 156


https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-scheme-in-england-and-wales-scheme-improvements-access-and-protections/local-government-pension-scheme-in-england-and-wales-scheme-improvements-access-and-protections

mayors, deputy mayors, and councillors of principal English local authorities,
including the Common Council of the City of London. Councillors remunerated for
roles such as combined authorities or audit committees will also be eligible for
pension benefits.

8. Elected Members will participate as scheme members of the LGPS 2014, with the
estimated national employer cost estimated to be £40-50 million annually, with no
additional funding provided.

9. The Government has published draft regulations covering this issue alongside the
consultation. Whilst the consultation does not say when this change would be
effective from, the draft regulations have an indicative coming into force date of 1
April 2026, potentially indicating the government’s plans

Academies and Employer Consolidation

10. The consultation proposes changes to LGPS employer consolidation rules,
particularly for multi-academy trusts (MATS), which now account for over half of
English schools. Consolidation aims to simplify administration and improve
efficiency for MATs. Four criteria for consolidation without Secretary of State
consent include:

Clear value-for-money assessment in favour of consolidation.
Pre-existing relationship with the receiving fund.

Agreement from all administering authorities involved.

The receiving fund’s ability to manage the transfer effectively.

11. Draft regulations for this change are expected later in the year.
New Fair Deal

12. The government seeks to implement New Fair Deal in local government, ensuring
continuity of LGPS membership for staff outsourced to contractors. The broadly
comparable scheme option will be removed except in exceptional cases.
Contractors will participate via the ‘deemed employer’ route, with pass-through
contribution arrangements. The admission body route will end for new contracts,
while existing agreements will remain until expiry. All LGPS employers will be Fair
Deal employers, except higher education corporations and admission bodies.

13. The Government has published draft regulations covering this issue alongside the
consultation, however, there is no indication of when this proposal is expected to
take effect from.

Conclusion

14. These proposals introduce significant administrative and financial considerations,
including complexity in verifying PPA eligibility, cost impact for councils and
employers due to expanded access for elected officials, governance changes for
MAT consolidations, and contractual adjustments for outsourcing under Fair Deal.

Graham Newman Pensions Manager | Chamberlain’s Department
T: 020 7332 1132 E: graham.newman@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 157


mailto:graham.newman@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 158



Agenda Item 11

City of London Corporation Committee Report

Committee(s): Dated:

Local Government Pensions Board 12 January 2026
Subject: Public report:
LGPS Communications issued to scheme members For Information

This proposal:
e provides statutory duties
e provides business enabling functions

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or | No
capital spending?

If so, how much? n/a

What is the source of Funding? n/a

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the | n/a
Chamberlain’s Department?

Report of: The Chamberlain

Report author: Graham Newman —
Chamberlain’s Department

Summary

At the Board’s meeting of 17 January 2025, Members were provided with copies of all
standard letters and communications issued by the Pensions Office.

Included as appendices for this report are the documents that have been created /
amended since the Board’s last review of communications. This is the 2025 Annual
Benefit Statement accompanying notes together with the 2025 Annual Benefit
Statement that is produced via the Pensions Online Member Portal.

All letters issued by the Pensions Office are written with reference to the legislative
details set out in the Scheme Regulations and, where possible, using templates
provided by the Local Government Association.

Recommendation

The Board is asked to note the report and provide any feedback in relation to this
information.

Appendices:
Appendix 1: 2025 Annual Benefit Statement Accompanying Notes.
Appendix 2: 2025 Annual Benefit Statement.

Graham Newman

Pensions Manager | Chamberlain’s Department
T:020 7332 1132

E: graham.newman@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 159



mailto:graham.newman@cityoflondon.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 160



G
cITY
LONDON Appendix 1

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
Annual Benefit Statement 2025

Enclosed is your Annual Pension Benefit Statement (Statement) for 2025. It is important that
you read this Statement and these explanatory notes.

If you believe any of the details on the Statement are not correct (as at 31st March 2025)
please email - pensions@cityoflondon.gov.uk

1 - Annual Benefit Statement Contents
Your Annual Benefit Statement contains the following sections

1. Your personal details including pensionable pay.

2. The total value of your pension at 31 March 2025 & your nomination details.

3. CARE pension value in the 12 months to 31 March & total CARE value built up to 31
March 2025.

4. Final Salary pension values at 31 March 2025.

5. Total projected pension at your normal pension age & Annual Allowance estimate .

6. Final Salary scheme membership details.

Since 1 April 2014 the LGPS has been a Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE)
Scheme, benefits build up at the rate of a 1/49th of your pensionable pay (if you are a
member of the main section of the Scheme), or at the rate of 1/98th of your pensionable
pay (if you are a member of the 50/50 section of the Scheme) and then revalued in line
with increases in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) on 1 April each year.

The CARE benefits shown on this Statement have had the 2024 inflationary increase of
6.7% applied to them.

All benefits built up to 31 March 2014 will continue to be based on final pensionable pay.
This Statement shows that benefits have been calculated on the 1/80th pension and
automatic 3/80ths lump sum basis in respect of your membership up to 31 March 2008,
plus 1/60th pension with no automatic lump sum from your membership built up between
1 April 2008 and 31 March 2014.

If there is no survivor'’s pension shown and you are married, in a civil partnership or have a
co-habiting partner, then we have not seen verification that you are in a qualifying
relationship. Therefore, please send to the Pensions Office either the appropriate
certificate or a completed Notification of Co-habiting Partner form available on the
pensions office website - Co-habiting Partner Nomination Form | City of London Pension
Fund

Also, if the "Nomination Details" section is blank you should complete an "Expression of
Wish" form ( Expression of Wish — Death Grant | City of London Pension Fund) in order to
indicate to whom you would like the Death Grant to be paid.

Page 161


mailto:pensions@cityoflondon.gov.uk
https://www.cityoflondonpensions.org/resources/co-habiting-partner-nomination-form/
https://www.cityoflondonpensions.org/resources/co-habiting-partner-nomination-form/
https://www.cityoflondonpensions.org/resources/expression-of-wish-death-grant/

G
cITY
LONDON Appendix 1

2 - When can | retire?

Since 1 April 2014 you can choose to leave your employment and receive payment of
your pension anytime from age 55 but the longer you work the more your pension will be.
Your pension will be reduced if you choose to retire before your normal pension age and
increased if you retire later.

Normal pension age is no longer fixed at 65; it will be the same as your current state
pension age - with 65 as the earliest age but please see section 3 below. If you are unsure
of your state pension age have a look at - www.gov.uk/calculate-state-pension

If you were age 55 or over as at 31 March 2025 your figures do not show any early
retirement reduction which would apply had you retired on this date.

Also included in your Statement is a projection of your pension benefits to your normall
pension age. If you were over your Normal Pension Age as at 31 March 2025 section 5 has
been left blank intentionally.

3 - Protections

If you were a member of the Scheme on 1 April 2014, you automatically joined the career
average pension scheme and will continue to build up benefits in the LGPS. The entire
pension you have built up in the LGPS before this date is fully protected.

All benefits built up before 1 April 2014 will continue to be based on your final year’s pay
when you leave or retire, as these benefits were built up in the final salary scheme. That
means that all the membership you built up to 31 March 2014 will be used to calculate
your final salary benefits when you leave.

Your Normal Pension Age is also protected. This means that the benefits you built up
before 1 April 2014 retain their Normal Pension Age under final salary scheme rules, which
for almost all scheme members is age 65.

Rule of 85

If you have rule of 85 protection this continues to apply from 1 April 2014. The only
occasion where this protection does not automatically apply is if you choose to voluntarily
receive payment of your pension on or after age 55 and before age 60, further
information can be found here - https://www.lgpsmember.org/more/eightyfive.php

4 - Underpin

Protections are in place if you are nearing retirement to ensure that you will get a pension
at least equal to that which you would have received in the scheme had it not changed
on 1 April 2014. This protection is known as the 'underpin’.

The underpin generally applies to you if you were: Paying into the Scheme on 31 March
2012 and were a member of the scheme between 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2022, further
information can be found here - https://www.Igpsmember.org/more/pre2014.php

This underpin protection also applies if you were an active member of a different public
service pension scheme (e.g. Civil Service Pensio heme) on 31 March 2012 and you
ePage fgﬁ


http://www.gov.uk/calculate-state-pension
https://www.lgpsmember.org/more/eightyfive.php
https://www.lgpsmember.org/more/pre2014.php

) ;;%]Lé (|
cITYy
LONDON Appendix 1
were within 10 years of age 65 on 1 April 2012; if you transfer your pension benefits from
the other public service pension schemes into the LGPS and part or all of that transfer

buys final salary benefits in the LGPS, the underpin will apply to you.

5 - Age Discrimination - The ‘McCloud Remedy’

When the LGPS changed from a final salary to a career average pension scheme in 2014,
protections for older scheme members were introduced. Similar protections were
provided in other public sector pension schemes. The Court of Appeal ruled that younger
members of the Judges' and Firefighters’ Pension schemes had been discriminated
against because the protections did not apply to them. The Government has confirmed
that there must be changes to all main public sector schemes, including the LGPS, to
remove this age discrimination. This ruling is often called the ‘McCloud judgment’ and the
action taken to remove the discrimination is known as the ‘McCloud Remedy’, or simply,
‘the Remedy’.

For the LGPS, for those eligible for the Remedy, it meant a simple extension to the pre-
existing underpin (see section 4 above). Originally the underpin only applied to those
scheme members that were within 10 years of their Normal Pension Age on 1 April 2012; as
a result of the Remedy it now applies to all scheme members that were paying in to the
LGPS on 31 March 2012 and paid into the scheme between 1 April 2014 and 31 March
2022 (known as the Remedy Period).

If you are eligible for the Remedy, we will check the protected part of your pension when
you retire. If you would have built up a bigger pension in the final salary scheme, your
pension will be increased. The increase is known as your final guarantee amount. If you
are protected, we have shown an estimate of this figure in your Statement and included it
in the projection of your annual pension at Normal Pension Age (see section 5 of the
Statement).

For some members, the estimated final guarantee is zero. This is because their pension is
better than it would have been in the final salary scheme.

The estimated final guarantee amount is based on the pay information used for this
Statement. We will work out the actual figure when you take your pension. It could be
higher or lower than the amount included in this year's Statement, but it cannot be less
than zero.

If the ‘McCloud Values’ part of Section 5 of your Statement shows the Provisional
Underpin Amount to be £0, this means that our records indicate that you are not eligible
for the underpin to be applied to your benefits (see the previous section of this notes
page for the eligibility criteria). If you believe your status is incorrect, please contact the
Pensions Office at pensions@cityoflondon.gov.uk

You can find out more about this protection by reading the McCloud pages of the
national LGPS member website: www.lgpsmember.org/mccloud-remedy/

Page 163


mailto:pensions@cityoflondon.gov.uk
http://www.lgpsmember.org/mccloud-remedy/

=
Maer e
kg_‘%
f e

&
LONDON Appendix 1

6 - Transfers into the LGPS

If you have been a member of the LGPS with City of London Pension Fund for less than 12
months you can elect to transfer any of your previous pension rights into the scheme.
However, you do need to make an election before the 12 months expires.

7 - Additional Contributions (if applicable)
If you are paying or have paid to Purchase Additional Years the value of this at 31 March
2025 is included in the illustration amounts.

If you are paying or have paid Additional Regular Contributions (ARCS) the value of this at
31 March 2025 is included in the illustration amounts.

If you are paying or have paid Additional Pension Contributions (APC) the value of this at
31 March 2025 is included in the illustration amounts.

If you are paying or have paid Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVC) values are not
included in the illustration amounts. AVC annual Statements will be provided separately
by your AVC provider.

8 - Changes to Pre - April 2014 AVC contracts

If you pay or have paid Additional Voluntary Conftributions (AVCs) and the confract to
pay those AVCs started before 1 April 2014, you will see some changes to your AVC plans
and how you can receive payment of them.

When you take the main scheme benefits you will no longer be able to leave the AVC
invested and take it at a later date.

All scheme members can now buy additional pension from the LGPS with the AVC plan
when they take their benefits from the scheme. Previously, this option was only available
to scheme members who took immediate payment of their main scheme benefits (i.e.
pension and lump sum) and their AVC plan when they left the scheme.

If you die before taking the AVC and a lump sum is to be paid from your AVC plan, the
Pension Fund now has absolute discretion over who to pay that sum to (rather than it
having to be paid to your estate). As any lump sum owed will now be paid at the
discretion of the Pension Fund it currently will not be subject to inheritance tax.

For scheme members currently paying AVCs:
e You can now pay up to 100% (rather than 50%) of your pensionable pay into the
AVC plan.
e AVCs will now also be deducted from any voluntary overtime you work (if you pay
AVCs as percentage of your salary).

Page 164



LONDON Appendix 1

9 - Divorce Pension Debits

If you have been divorced and your former spouse awarded part of your LGPS benefits as
part of the divorce settlement your pension values will be reduced. The current and
projected pension values shown are before the pension debit has been deducted.

10 - Annual Allowance (AA)

This is the amount by which your pension can grow before you may have to pay
additional tax. The 2024/25 limit was £60,000, but if your taxable earnings were over
£200,000 for the tax year 2024/25 the limit may be reduced to a minimum of £10,000.

We will write to all scheme members who we think may be affected by 6 October 2025.

Most scheme members will not be affected by the annual allowance tax charge,
however, we have included the estimated value of your pension input amount in this
year's Statement based on the information we hold with regard to your LGPS benefits up
to 31 March 2025. You should add this value to any other pension benefits you have
accrued during the year.

If you exceed the annual allowance you may be allowed to bring forward any unused
allowance for the last three years to off-set the excess. This means that even if the value
of your pension savings increase by more than £60,000 in a year you may not be liable to
pay the annual allowance tax charge.

There are, however, some things that the Fund will not know about but could affect your
AA. For example, income from other employments, income from property rental and any
other pension provision you may have.

If you think you are at risk of exceeding the annual allowance you should seek advice.
Further information can be found at - https://www.gov.uk/tax-on-your-private-
pension/annual-allowance

If your LGPS benefits exceed the threshold for AA in 2024/25 we will contact you
separately in October.

11 - Membership Details

The scheme membership used for calculating your final salary benefits are recorded
under section 6 of the Statement. The final salary scheme ended on 31 March 2014 and if
you were a scheme member on this date your membership of the final salary scheme
ended on this date.

With effect from 1 April 2014 the LGPS infroduced the CARE scheme and the pension
values you have built up in the CARE scheme, including any pensions transfers purchasing
CARE benefits, are recorded under Section 3 of the Statement.

Page 165


https://www.gov.uk/tax-on-your-private-pension/annual-allowance
https://www.gov.uk/tax-on-your-private-pension/annual-allowance

LONDON Appendix 1

City of London Pension Fund
Contact Details

Email; pensions@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Change of address forms and Expression of Wish forms can be found on our website (see
below). Both forms need your signature, so please print and sign, then send to the email
address above as an attachment. Alternatively, this information can be updated directly
via the Online Member Portal.

Online Member Portal; https://cityoflondon.pensiondetails.co.uk/login

Website: www.cityoflondonpensions.org

Post: Pensions Manager, City of London, Guildhall, PO Box 270, London EC2P 2EJ

If you have a query regarding this Statement, please email: pensions@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Nothing in this Statement can override the provisions of the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations

YOU SHOULD NOT MAKE ANY FINANCIAL COMMITMENT BASED ON THIS STATEMENT

Important
It is important to note that your Annual Benefit Statement is for guidance only and you
should not base an irreversible decision to retire solely on the figures in this Statement.

The benefit values shown in this Statement are illustrative values ONLY, based on the LGPS
regulations in force at the time of production and do not constitute an offer to pay the
benefit values shown.

l S Local Government
Pension Scheme

Page 166



mailto:pensions@cityoflondon.gov.uk
https://cityoflondon.pensiondetails.co.uk/login
http://www.cityoflondonpensions.org/
mailto:pensions@cityoflondon.gov.uk

City of London Appendix2 Pagelof7

cITY
LONDON

Your 2025 pension statement

Please remember this statement is only an estimate and should not be treated as a guarantee
of your entitlement.

Your details

Name: (S

Date joined fund: 01January 2000
Retirement date: 01 January 2042

Employment: Test Subject 0T January 2000 - present

Your pension forecast

Your normal pension age (NPA): 67
Estimated annual pension at NPA: £39,460.14 a year
Estimated monthly pension at NPA: £3,288.35 a month

Your lump sum options
Standard benefit option

Estimated annual pension at NPA: £39,460.14 a year
With an estimated tax-free lump sum: £15,153.08

Or maximum lump sum option

Estimated annual pension at NPA: £26,179.01 a year

With an estimated tax-free lump sum: £174,526.64
Page 167



Page 2 of 7

Your pension breakdown

This is a summary of how your pension changed between 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025. All figures
shown were correct as of midnight on 31/03/2025,

Increase in your pension this year: £1,894.44
Current pension value: £21,961.15 a year
Estimated tax-free lump sum: £15,153.08

How we calculated your pension

Main section (CARE)

Annual accrual rate: 1/49th of salary
Increase in your pension this year: £1,691.36
Estimated annual pension: £12,010.13 a year

Final salary benefits: 2008-2014

Annual accrual rate: 1/60th of salary
Increase in your pension this year: £100.00
Estimated annual pension; £4,900.00 a year

Final salary benefits: Pre 2008

Annual accrual rate: 1/80th of safary
[ncrease in your pension this year: £103.08

Estimated annual pension: £5,051.02 a year

Death benefits

Lump sum death grant: £147,000.00

Annual survivor's pension: £13,171.85 a year

Page 168



Page 3 of 7

Detailed info and breakdowns

Estimated benefits if you stay in the scheme until your normal pension age
Your normal pension age (NPA): 67

1. Estimated final salary pension built up to NPA: £10,696.58

2. Estimated CARE pension built up to NPA: £28,763.56

Total estimated annual pension at NPA:
£10,696.58 + £28,763.56 = £39,460.14

Total estimated tax-free lump sum retirement grant: £15,153.08

What is normal pension age (NPA)

Normal Pension Age is the date which you can receive your pension benefits without 3
reduction. Your Normal Pension Age Is usually the same as your State Pension Age {with a
minimum age of 65). You can check your state pension age using the Governments State
Pension Age Caiculator.

Tax and your pension

Annual Allowance is a limit on how much pension you can save in any one year before you
pay a tax charge. The Annual Allowance limit for most members is £60,000 per year (higher
earners, over £260,000 per year, may have a lower allowance}. Most members are not affected
by the Annual Allowance limit.

Membership from 1 April 2014

From 1 April 2014, the LGPS became a Career Average Revalued Earnings {CARE) pension
scheme. CARE pensionable pay is your actual pensionable pay that you pay contributions on.
It is used to calculate your pension.

During the period in which you contribute to the Main section of the scheme, a pension
equivalent to 1/49th of your pensionable pay is added to your pension account.

For the period that you are contributing to the 50/50 section of the scheme, a pension equal
to 1/98th of your pensionable pay is added to your pension account.

Page 169



Page 4 of 7

Detailed info and breakdowns

How to calculate your pension

Your pensiohable pay is £49,000.00.

If you are in the Main section of the scheme, the annual pension you build up this year is 1/49
X Main pensionable pay = Calculated figure

After 2 years, your annual pension built up is 1/48 X Main pensionable pay x 2 years = Calculated
figure

Please note that this calculation is valid unless there are any changes in circumstances.

Your pension account is revalued to ensure it keeps up with the cost of living.

Your total CARE account

Please note; This includes your CARE pension build up from 1 April 2014, or the date you joined
if later.

1. Previous year's closing balance; £10,318.77
2. Adjustments for cost of living: £691.36
3. In-year build-up; £1,000.00

Total CARE closing balance at 31st March 2025:
£10,318.77 + £691.36 + £1,000.00 = £12,010.13

In-year build-up

Scheme year April 2024 to March 2025.

1. Your CARE pensionable pay - Main section divided by 49: £1,000.00
2. Your CARE pensionable pay - 50/50 section divided by 98: £0.00

3. Additional pension bought: £0.00

4, Transfer in: £0.00

2024/2025 build up:
£1,000.00 + £0.00 + £0.00 + £0.00 = £1,000.00

Page 170



Page 5 of 7

Detailed info and breakdowns

Membership between 1 April 2008 and 31 March 2014

The LGPS changed from a final salary scheme to a career average scheme on 1 April 2014. If you
joined the Scheme before 1 April 2014, you have built up benefits in the final salary scheme.

For membership built up between 1 April 2008 and 31 March 2014 you receive a pension of
1/60th of your final pay as a pension.

Your annual pension is calculated by dividing your total membership by 60 and multiplying
this figure by your final salary pensionable pay.

Membership before 1 April 2008

Your annual pension is calculated by dividing your total membership by 80 and multiplying
this figure by your final salary pensionable pay. In addition, an automatic tax-free lump sum
is payable if you were a member before 1 April 2008.

Your Final Salary pension benefits

1. For membership to 31/03/2008: £5,051.02
2. For membership from 01/04/2008 to 31/03/2014: £4,900.00
3. Additienal pension: £0.00

Total final salary pensicn:
£5,051.02 + £4,900.00 + £0.00 = £9,951.02

Lump sum retirement grant; £15,153.08
How to calculate your pension

Your final salary pensionable pay is £49,000.00 when you retire.

If you were a member between 1st April 2008 and 31st March 2014, your annual pension for
that period would be calculated using the following formula: 1/60 x Service (between 2008
and 2014) x Salary = Calculated Figure

If you were a member before 1st April 2008, your annual pension for that period would be
calculated as: 1/80 x Service before 2008 x Salary = Calculated Figure .

Your benefits can be reduced or increased, depending upon your reason for retirement.

Page 171




Page 6 of 7

Detailed info and breakdowns
Total estimated survivor's pension at Normal Pension Age (NPA)

1. Estimated CARE survivor's pension at NPA: £8,808.84
2. Estimated final salary survivor's pension at NPA: £4,363.01

Total estimated survivor's pension:
£8,808.84 + £4,363.01 = £13,171.85

Annual survivor's pension

If you die before your pension is paid, we will pay a survivor's pension to your:

» Spouse, or
- Civil partner, or
. Eligible cohabiting partner

A survivor's pension is payable for the rest of their life and will increase in line with the cost
of living. The survivor's pension has been calculated on the assumption that you are married.
Regardless of whether you are in a relationship or not, the survivor's pension has ho impact on
your pension value and is for illustrative purposes. It is calculated separately from your pension
benefits.

A pension is also payable to any eligible children as long as they meet certain conditions at
the time of your death. You can find more detailed information in the death benefits section
of your annual benefit statement on the website.

Lump sum death grant

If you die while you are an active member of the LGPS, a death grant is paid. The amount of
the death grant would be three times your assumed pensionable pay at the date you die.

However, if you die while you are an active member and also have deferred benefits in the
LGPS, are receiving an LGPS member pension (that is, not a survivor's pension) or a suspended
‘tier 3' ill-health pension {or both), the amount of the death grant would be:

- the total of all death in service lump sums; or
+ the total of all death grants from the deferred pension, pension in payment, or suspended
tier 3 ill-health pension records

Page 172



Page 7 of 7

Detailed info and breakdowns

Who you want to receive the lump sum death grant

Please check who you have nominated to receive any death grant that may become due if
you die. You can nominate anyone you wish to recelve your lump sum death grant. Your fund
will take your wishes into account when deciding who the death grant is paid to. You can
nominate or manage your beneficiaries on the website.

Things to consider

While every care has been taken to ensure that all information is accurate and up to date, we
cannot guarantee that inaccuracies will not occur, nor will we be held responsible for any loss,
damage or inconvenience caused as a result of any inaccuracy or error within these pages.

Contact us

If you have any questions or would like more information please get in touch.

Page 173



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 174



Agenda Iltem 15a

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 175



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 15b

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 179



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 185



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 16

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 193



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 199



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 17

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 233



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 237



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 18

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 291



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 315



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 317



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 20

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 351



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 357



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 369



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 375



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 379



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 22

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 393



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 395



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 401



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 24

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 407



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 409



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 411



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3a To agree the public minutes and non-public summary of the Local Government Pensions Board meeting on 21 July 2025
	3b To note the public minutes and non-public summary of the Pensions Committee meeting on 7 July 2025 and 22 September 2025
	22092025 FINAL DRAFT Public Minutes

	4 Annual Review of the Board's Terms of Reference
	LGPB  - Terms of Refererence 2025

	5 Pensions Committee Update Report (Public)
	6 Pension Scheme - Administrator's Update
	2.1 LGPS Board Administrators Report.Jan 2026 Appendix A
	2.4 LGPS Board Administrators Report.Jan 2026. Appendix D - KPIs FINAL

	7 Risk Register for the Pensions Committee
	3.1 Risk Register  -Appendix 1 Risk Register Matrix_FINAL
	3.2 Risk Register Appendix 2 Risk Register

	8 Local Government Pension Scheme – Transfers-out of the scheme: processes and precautions
	4.1 LGPS Committee TRansfer Out Document Appendix FINAL

	9 City Fund and Pension Fund - Statement of Accounts, Audit Findings and External Auditors Annual Report 2024/25
	5.1 Appendix 3 - City of London Corporation Pension Fund  Audit Findings Report 2024-25
	Main deck
	Slide 1: Audit Findings (ISA 260) Report for City of London Corporation Pension Fund
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4: Contents
	Slide 5: Headlines and status€of the€audit
	Slide 6: Headlines
	Slide 7: Headlines
	Slide 8: Headlines
	Slide 9: Financial statements
	Slide 10: Financial statements 
	Slide 11: Financial statements  (continued)
	Slide 12: Materiality
	Slide 13: Our approach to materiality
	Slide 14: Our approach to materiality (continued)
	Slide 15: Overview of audit risks
	Slide 16: Overview of audit risks
	Slide 17: Overview of audit risks
	Slide 18: Overview of audit risks
	Slide 19: Significant risks
	Slide 20: Significant risks (continued)
	Slide 21: Significant Classes of Transactions
	Slide 22: Significant Classes of Transactions (continued)
	Slide 23: Significant Classes of Transactions (continued)
	Slide 24: Significant Classes of Transactions (continued)
	Slide 25: Significant Classes of Transactions (continued)
	Slide 26: Significant Classes of Transactions (continued)
	Slide 27: Rebuttal of presumed risks
	Slide 28: Other findings
	Slide 29: Other findings – key judgements and estimates  
	Slide 30: Other findings – key judgements and estimates (continued)  
	Slide 31: Other findings – key judgements and estimates (continued) 
	Slide 32: Other findings – key judgements and estimates (continued) 
	Slide 33: Other findings – Information Technology 
	Slide 34: Other findings – Information Technology 
	Slide 35: Communication requirements and other responsibilities
	Slide 36: Other communication requirements
	Slide 37: Other communication requirements (continued)
	Slide 38: Other communication requirements (continued)
	Slide 39: Other responsibilities 
	Slide 40: Audit adjustments
	Slide 41: Adjusted misstatements
	Slide 42: Unadjusted misstatements
	Slide 43: Action plan
	Slide 44: Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 45: Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 46: Independence considerations 
	Slide 47: Independence considerations
	Slide 48: Independence considerations (continued)€
	Slide 49: Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 50: Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 51: Appendices
	Slide 52: A. Communication of audit matters with those charged with€governance
	Slide 53: A. Communication of audit matters with those charged with€governance
	Slide 54: B. Internal controls
	Slide 55: C. Our team and communications
	Slide 56: D. Logistics
	Slide 57


	5.2 Appendix 4 - City of London Corporation Pension Fund -  DRAFT Letter of Representation 2024-25

	10 Local Government Pension Scheme 'Fair Access' Consultation
	11 LGPS Communications issued to scheme members
	7.1 Pension Board Administrators Communications Report.jan 2026.Appendix 1 - ABS Notes
	7.2 LGPS Board Administrators Communications Report.Jan 2026.Appendix 2 - 2025 Annual Benefit Statement

	15a To agree the non-public minutes of the Local Government Pensions Board meeting on 21 July 2025
	15b To note the non-public minutes of the Pensions Committee meeting on 7 July 2025 and 22 September 2025
	22092025 FINAL DRAFT NP Minutes

	16 Pensions Committee Update Report (Non-Public)
	8.1 Appendix A - CoL 2025 Valuation Committee 0312

	17 Draft Funding Strategy Statement (FSS)
	9.1 COL Funding Strategy Statement 2025 DRAFT v2 clean

	18 Investment Performance Monitoring to 30 September 2025
	19 Investment Strategy Review and Training
	11.1 City of London Pension Fund_Investment Strategy Review_vF

	20 Transition of Assets to the London CIV
	12.1 Appendix A - City of London Pension Fund - C Worldwide Disinvestment_vF
	12.2 Appendix B - COL - LCIV Equity Investment Update
	12.3 Appendix C - LCIV Response re Global Alpha Growth Fund - Sept25

	21 London Collective Investment Vehicle (LCIV) Update
	22 Admittance to the London CIV - Request for Delegated Authority
	14.1 Appendix - Business case for Buckinghamshire Pension Fund joining

	23 Pension Fund Cashflow Forecast 2025/26 to 2028/29
	24 Pension Scheme - Administrator's Update Non-Public Appendix
	2.3 LGPS Board Administrators Report.Jan 2026.Appendix C - member training details
	2.5 LGPS Board Administrators Report.Jan 2026.Appendix E - Dashboard Matching Criteria (NON PUBLIC) FINAL


